PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

REGULAR MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD

UNION SCHOOL

DISTRICT
Wednesday, September 9, 2020 This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom.
The public may observe and address the meeting
Closed Session 6:30 p.m. by going to:
Closed Session 6:32 p.m. Join Zoom Meeting

Public Session 7:00 p.m.
Adjournment 10:00 p.m.

OB wWN -

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81233068917?pwd=TGFEaUN
ROVEXZTVzeWd50XVnOXZIUT09

Meeting ID: 812 3306 8917

Passcode: 8j2Udq

One tap mobile
+16699009128,,81233068917#,,,,,,0#,,326811# US (San
Jose)

AGENDA

A copy of the agenda, complete with backup materials, may be reviewed in the District Office, 3450 Coffey Lane, Santa Rosa,
beginning the Monday prior to the Wednesday Board Meetm%_ Office hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday
or as othehwse posted. Agendas are always posted at, the District Office, the Board/Conference Room 24 and on our web site at
www.pousd.org.

ADA Com Iian%e: In compliance with Government Code § 54954.2(a2 the Piner-Olivet Union School District, will, on request, make
thisa _e_naa available in a pr(l)j)nate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the American with
Disabilities Acts of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals
who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate

in the meetmg should contact Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary to the Superintendent, Piner-Olivet Union School District, 3450
Coffey Lane, Santa Rosa, CA 95403 (707) 522-3000 at least two days before the meeting date.
www.pousd.org
. CALL TO ORDER
. ROLL CALL
. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION
. CLOSED SESSION

Adjournment to Closed Session during this meeting to consider and/or take action upon any of the following items:
5.1 With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to
Gov. Code Section 54957:
5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
(No additional information required)
5.1.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT
Title: Teacher, Personnel Tech, Outreach Worker, PAII/Yd Dty
5.1.3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Title: Superintendent
5.2 With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section
54957.6:
5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent
Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate
5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent
Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate.
5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent
Name of organization representing employees: Confidential, Supervisory, Administrative Staff



https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F81233068917%3Fpwd%3DTGFEaUNROVExZTVzeWd5QXVnQXZlUT09&sa=D&ust=1598827055231000&usg=AOvVaw07uEJTW_xMfPMaVa-Hj7gC
https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F81233068917%3Fpwd%3DTGFEaUNROVExZTVzeWd5QXVnQXZlUT09&sa=D&ust=1598827055231000&usg=AOvVaw07uEJTW_xMfPMaVa-Hj7gC

6. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING

7. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY

8. AGENDA MODIFICATION

9. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS

Persons addressing the Board without giving previous notice should realize that the action upon any request may be delayed. This is a time for members of
the audience to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda. Individual speakers will be allowed three minutes to address the Board under this
agenda item. The Board will not respond but may place the subject on a future Board Agenda. Anyone desiring an item to be placed on the prepared agenda
shall notify the Secretary ten (10) working days prior to the meeting.

10. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD

11. RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE
None

12. SUPERINTENDENT'’S REPORT
12.1 Announcements

13. ASSOCIATION REPORTS
13.1 POEA
13.2 POCA

14. BOARD POLICIES
14.1 BB/E 9270 Conflict of Interest Code (Attachment 1) (Pgs. 4-13)

15. DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS
None

16. ACTION ITEMS

16.1 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Jack London Families
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the 2020-2021 Jack London
Families Application as a School-Connected Organization. A representative from the organization will
be present to answer any questions. (Action 1) (Pgs. 14-53)

16.2 Approval of 2019-2020 Unaudited Actuals for the Piner-Olivet Union School District,
Including Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter School, Piner-Olivet Charter School and
Northwest Prep Charter School

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the 2019-2020 Unaudited Actuals
for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter School, Piner-Olivet
Charter School and Northwest Prep Charter School. (Action 2) (Pgs.54-126 )

16.3 Approval of Resolution # 540 Establishing a Revised “Gann Limit” for 2019-2020

and Establishing a Projected “Gann Limit” for 2020-2021

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of Resolution # 540 regarding the
“Gann Limit” for 2019-2020 and establishing a projected “Gann Limit" for 2020-2021. (Action 3)

(Pgs. 127-131)

16.4 Public Hearing Regarding the Sufficiency of Instructional Materials per Ed. Code 60119
The Board of Trustees will hold a public hearing regarding the sufficiency of instructional materials per
Ed. Code 60119. (Action 4) (Pg. 132)

16.5 Approval of Resolution # 541Regarding Textbook and Instructional Materials Sufficiency
for the Piner-Olivet Union School District for the 2020-2021 School Year per Ed. Code 60119
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of Resolution #541 regarding

the sufficiency of instructional materials per Ed. Code 60119. (Action 5) (Pgs. 133-134)

16.6 Approval of Contract with Blach Construction Company for Solar Structure Repair

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of Contract with Blach Construction
Company for Solar Structure Repair. (Action 6) (Pgs. 135-167)

16.7 Public Hearing Regarding the 2020-2021 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-
Olivet District, Schaefer Charter, Olivet Charter, Piner-Olivet Charter, Northwest Prep Charter Schools
The Board of Trustees will hold a public hearing regarding the 2020-2021 Learning Continuity and
Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet District, Schaefer Charter, Olivet Charter, Piner-Olivet Charter,
Northwest Prep Charter Schools.

(Action 7) (Pgs.168-258 )



17.

CONSENT ITEMS

All matters listed under “consent items” are considered by the Board to be routine and will be enacted upon in one motion. The public has a right to comment

on any consent item. At the request of any member of the Board, during “agenda modifications” any item on the consent agenda shall be removed and given
individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item. Members of the public may request the Board to place a “consent item” on the regular agenda

during “agenda modifications.”

17.1 Approval of Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of August 12, 2020(Consent 1) (Pgs. 259-262)

1

7.2 Approval of Personnel Action Report (Consent 2) (Pg. 263)

17.3 Approval of Vendor Warrants (Consent 3) (Pgs. 264-273)

17.4 Approval of Routine Budget Updates (Consent 4) (Pgs. 274-277)
17.5 Approval of Agreement for Crossing Guard Services between Piner-Olivet Union School District

and All City Management Services, INC., a California Corporation (Hereinafter Called the Contractor”)
Commences on or about July 1, 2020 and ends on June 30, 2021 (Consent 5) (Pgs.278-281)

17.6 Approval of Contract to Provide Nursing Services/ Support 2020-2021 Annual Agreement
between Piner-Olivet Union School District and Sonoma County Office Of Education from August 10,

2020 to June 30, 2021 (Consent 6) (Pgs.282-284 )

18.
19.

20
21
22
23
24

ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD

DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
19.1 Next Regular Board Meeting — October 14, 2020

. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA

. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (If Necessary)

. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING

. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA

. ADJOURNMENT



14.1
BOARD POLICIES

Review & Approval of Board Policies
@ September 9, 2020
Board Meeting

= BB/E 9270 Conflict of Interest

Policies are available for review at the
Piner-Olivet District Office
3450 Coffey Lane
Santa Rosa, CA 95403




Board Bylaw

Conflict Of Interest

BB 9270
Board Bylaws

Incompatible Activities

Governing Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity which is inconsistent
with, incompatible with, in conflict with or inimical to the Board member's duties as an officer of
the district. (Government Code 1126)

Conflict of Interest Code

The district's conflict of interest code shall be comprised of the terms of 2CCR 18730 and any
amendments to it adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, together with a district
attachment specifying designated positions and the specific types of disclosure statements
required for each position.

Upon direction by the code reviewing body, the Board shall review the district's conflict of
interest code in even-numbered years. If 110 change in the code is required, the district shall
submit by October 1 a written statement to that effect to the code reviewing body. If a change in
the code is necessitated by changed circumstances, the district shall submit an amended code to
the code reviewing body. (Government Code 87306.5)

When a change in the district's conflict of interest code is necessitated by changed circumstances,
such as the creation of new designated positions, amendments or revisions; the changed code
shall be submitted to the code reviewing body within 90 days. (Government Code 87306)

When reviewing and preparing conflict of interest codes, the district shall provide officers,
employees, consultants and members of the community adequate notice and a fair opportunity to
present their views. (Government Code 87311)

If a Board member or designated employee determines that he/she has a financial interest in a
decision, as described in Government Code 87103, this determination shall be disclosed. The
member shall be disqualified from voting unless his/her participation is legally required. (2
CCR 18700)

Statements of economic interests submitted to the district by designated employees in accordance
with the conflict of interest code shall. be available for public inspection and reproduction.
(Government Code 81008)

Financial Interest



Board members and designated employees shall not be financially interested in any contract
made by the Board or in any contract they make in their capacity as Board members or
designated employees. (Government Code 1090)

A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if his/her
interest includes, but is not limited to, any of the following: (Government Code 1091.5)

1. That of an officer who is being reimbursed for his/her actual and necessary expenses
incurred in the performance of an official duty

2. That of a recipient of public services generally provided by the public body or board of
which he/she is a member, on the same terms and conditions as if he or she -were not a member
of the board

3. That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party if such contracting party is the federal
government or any federal department or agency, this state or an adjoining state, any department
or agency of this state or an adjoining state, any county or city of this state or an adjoining state,
or any public corporation or special, judicial or other public district of this state or an adjoining
state unless the subject matter of such contract is the property in which such officer or employee
has such interest as landlord or tenant in which even his/her interest shall be deemed a remote
interest - within the meaning of, and subject to, the provisions of Government Code 1091

4. That of a spouse of an officer or employee of the district if his/her spouse's employment
or officeholding has existed for at least one year prior to his/her election or appointment

5. That of a nonsalaried member of a nonprofit corporation, provided flint such interest is
disclosed to the Board at the time of the first consideration of the contract, and provided further
that such interest is noted in its official records

6. That of a noncompensated officer of a nonprofit, tax-exempt corporation which, as one of
its primary purposes, supports the functions of the nonprofit board or to which the school Board
has a legal obligation to give particular consideration, and provided further that such interest is
noted in its official records

7. That of a person receiving salary, per diem, or reimbursement for expenses from a
governmental entity, unless the contract directly involves the department of the government
entity that employs the officer or employee, provided that such interest is disclosed to the Board
at the time of consideration of the contract, and provided further that such interest is noted in its
official records

8. That of an attorney of the contracting party or that of an owner, officer, employee or
agent of a firm which renders, or has rendered, service to the contracting party in the capacity of
stockbroker, insurance agent, insurance broker, real estate agent, or real estate broker, if these
individuals have not received and will not receive remuneration, consideration, or a commission
as a result of the contract and if these individuals have an ownership interest of less than 10
percent in the law practice or firm, stock brokerage firm, insurance firm or real estate firm



In addition, a Board member or employee shall not be deemed to be interested in a contract made
pursuant to competitive bidding under a procedure established by law if his/her sole interest is
that of an officer, director, or employee of a bank or savings and loan association with which a
party to the contract has the relationship of borrower or depositor, debtor or creditor.
(Government Code 1091.5)

A Board member shall not be deemed to be financially interested in a contract if he/she has only
a remote interest in the contract and if the remote interest is disclosed during a Board meeting
and noted in the official Board minutes. The affected Board member shall not vote or debate on
the matter or attempt to influence any other Board member to enter into the contract. Remote
interests are specified in Government Code 1091(b); they include, but are not limited to, the
interest of a parent in the earnings of his/her minor child. (Government Code 1091)

A Board member may enter into a contract if the rule of necessity or legally required
participation applies as defined in Government Code 87101.

Even if there is no prohibited or remote interest, a Board member shall abstain from voting on
personnel matters that uniquely affect a relative of the Board member. A Board member may
vote, however, on collective bargaining agreements and personnel matters that affect a class of
employees to which the relative belongs. "Relative™ means an adult who is related to the person
by blood or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law, or an individual
in an adoptive relationship within the third degree. (Education Code 35107)

A relationship within the third degree includes the individual's parents, grandparents and
great-grandparents, children, grandchildren and great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts and
uncles, nieces and nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse unless the
individual is widowed or divorced.

Disqualification for Board Members Who Manage Public Investments

A Board member who manages public investments pursuant to Government Code 87200 and
who has a financial interest in a decision shall, upon identifying a conflict or potential conflict of
interest and immediately prior to the consideration of the matter, do all of the following:

1. Publicly identify the financial interest that gives rise to the conflict or potential conflict of
interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except that disclosure of the exact
street address of a residence is not required.. (Government Code 87105)

2. Recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter, or otherwise acting in
violation of Government Code 87100. This Board member shall not be counted toward achieving
a quorum while the item is discussed. (Government Code 87105; 2 CCR 18702.5)

3. Leave the room until after the discussion, vote and any other disposition of the matter is
concluded, unless the matter has been placed on the portion of the agenda reserved for
uncontested matters. (Government Code 87105)



If the item is on the consent calendar, the Board member must recuse himself/herself
from discussing or voting on that matter, but the Board member is not required to leave the room
during the consent calendar. (2 CCR 18702.5)

(cf. 3430- Investing)

The Board member may speak on the issue during the time that the general public speaks on the
issue. The Board member shall recuse himself/herself from voting on the matter and leave the
dais to .speak from the same area as members of the public. He/she may listen to the public
discussion of the matter with members of the public. (Government Code 87105; 2 CCR
18702.5)

If the Board's decision is made during closed session, the public identification may be made
orally during the open session before the Board goes into closed session and shall be limited to a
declaration that his/her recusal is because of a conflict of interest pursuant to Government Code
87100. The Board member shall not be present when the decision is considered in closed session
or knowingly obtain or review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the
Board's decision. (2 CCR 18702.5)

Gifts

Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and
limitations specified in Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730.

The limitations on gifts do not apply to wedding gifts and gifts exchanged between individuals
on birthdays, holidays and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not
substantially disproportionate in value. (Government Code 89503)

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the prevailing gift
limitation except as described in Government Code 89506.

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the district for Board members and
designated employees. (Government Code 89506)

Honoraria

Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as
any payment made in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any
public or private gathering, in accordance with law. (Government Code 89501, 89502)

The term honorarium does not include: (Government Code 89501)

1. Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide

business, trade or profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the business, trade or
profession is making speeches



2. Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to
the donor or delivered to the district for donation into the general fund without being claimed as
a deduction from income for tax purposes

APPENDIX
DESIGNATED POSITIONS/DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

It has been determined that persons occupying the following positions manage public
investments and shall file a full statement of economic interests pursuant to Government Code
87200:

Governing Board Members
Superintendent of Schools

1. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees in Category 1:

Assistant/Associate Superintendent
Purchasing Agent

Designated persons in this category must report:

a. Interests in real property, located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within
two miles of district boundaries or of any land owned or used by the district. Such interests
include any leasehold, beneficial or ownership interest or option to acquire such interest in real

property.
b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which:
1) Are engaged in the acquisition or disposal of real property within the district

2 Are contractors or subcontractors which are or have been within the past two years
engaged in work or services of the type used by the district or

3 Manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type used by the
district

2. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees in Category 2:

Director

Principal

Assistant Principal

Maintenance and Operations Director Program Coordinator
Project Specialist

Supervisor

Dean of Students



Designated persons in this category must report investments or business positions in or income
from sources which:

a. Are contractors or subcontractors engaged in work or services of the type used by the
department which the designated person manages or directs, or

b. Manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type used by the
department which the designated person manages or directs. For the purposes of this category, a
principal’s department is his/her entire school.

3. Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as
determined on a case-by-case basis by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or
designee's written determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and a
statement of the extent of disclosure requirements based upon that description. All such
determinations are public records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this
conflict of interest code.

A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, makes a
governmental decision whether to: (2 CCR 18701)

a. Approve a rate, rule or regulation
b. Adopt or enforce a law
C. Issue, deny, suspend or revoke a permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order

or similar authorization or entitlement

d. Authorize the district to enter into, modify or renew a contract that requires district
approval
e. Grant district approval to a contract or contract specifications which require district

approval and in which the district is a party

f. Grant district approval to a plan, design, report, study or similar item

g. Adopt or grant district approval of district policies, standards or guidelines

A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, serves in a staff
capacity with the district and in that capacity participates in making a governmental decision as
defined in 2 CCR 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the

district that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in the
district's Conflict of Interest Code. (2 CCR 18701)

10



Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

1006 Qualifications for holding office

35107 School district employees

35230-35240 Corrupt practices

35233 Prohibitions applicable to members of governing boards.

35239 Compensation for board members in districts under 70 ADA
GOVERNMENT CODE

1090-1098 Prohibitions applicable to specified officers

1125-1129 Incompatible activities

81000-91015 Political Reform Act of 1974, especially:

82011 Code reviewing body

82019 Definition of designated employee

82028 Definition of gifts

82030 Definition of income 87100-87103.6 General prohibitions
87200-87210 Disclosure

87300-87313 Conflict of interest code 87500 Statements of economic interests
89501-89503 Honoraria and gifts 91000-91014 Enforcement

CODE OF .REGULATIONS. TITLE 2

18110-18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission, especially:
18702.5 Public identification of a conflict of interest for Section 87200 filers
COURT DECISIONS

Thorpe v. Lone Beach CO2717711/72in, College District, (2000) 83 Cal.App.4th. 655
Kimec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency, (1997) 55 CalApp.4th 511
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

86 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 138(2003)

85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 60 (2002)

82 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 83 (1999)

81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1998)

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 320 (1997)

69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 255 (1986)

68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 171 (1985)

65 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 606 (1982)

Management Resources:

WEB SITES
Fair Political Practices Commission: http://www.jjapc.ca.gov

Bylaw PINER-OLIVET -UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 4, 2004 Santa Rosa, California

11



Exhibit

Conflict Of Interest

E 9270
Board Bylaws

RESOLUTION OF THE PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

WHEREAS, the political Reform Act, Government Code sections 81000 et seq., requires state
and local government agencies to adopt conflict of interest codes, and

WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, 2 Cal. Code of
Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code and which
can be incorporated by reference and may be amended by the Fair Political Practices
Commission after public notice and hearings to conform to amendments to the Political Reform
Act, and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to adopt this standard code and designate which officers and
employees should disclose financial interests and describe which interests must be disclosed, and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted
by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by reference and, along with
the attached Appendix A and Appendix B, in which members and employees are designated and
disclosure categories are set forth, constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the Piner-Olivet
Union School District, and

2. Pursuant to Section 4 of the standard code, board members shall file statements of
economic interest with the district clerk, who shall retain a copy and forward the original for
filing with the Clerk of the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors. Designated employees shall
file statements with the District. Any District board member or other designated employee
already required to submit a disclosure statement (Form 700) pursuant to Government Code
section 87203 may submit a copy of that statement in lieu of any filing required by this code
provided that no additional disclosure would be required by this code.

The foregoing Resolution was moved by Board Member , seconded by Board
Member , and adopted on roll call vote of the members of the Governing Board of
the Piner-Olivet Union School District.

12



Board Member Janae Franicevic (AYE/NO)

Board Member Mardi Hinton (AYE/NO)
Board Member Mindy Mohr (AYE/NO)
Board Member Cindy Pryor (AYE/NO)
Board Member John Way (AYE/NO)
AYES: NOES: ABSENT/NOT VOTING

WHEREUPON, the President declared the foregoing Resolution adopted, and
SO ORDERED;

CINDY PRYOR, PRESIDENT
PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

ExhibitPINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
version: September 9, 2020 Santa Rosa, California

13



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda ltem Summary

Action Item: 16.1 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected
Organization for Jack London Families

Regular Meeting of: September 9, 2020 Action Item Report Format:Oral

Attachment: Correspondence Board Policy

Background
This is an annual report required by BP and AR 1230.

Issue(s)

Plan/Discussion/Detail

Jack London Families will be prepared to answer any questions the Board may have of the
organization. The organization’s submission has been reviewed and all Board Policy required
items were submitted.

Fiscal Impact

Options

Recommendation

Approve.

Motion:

Moved by: Second:

Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent:
FRANICEVIC HINTON MOHR PRYOR WAy

14



2020-2021
JACK LONDON FAMILIES

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION




Exhibit

School-Connected Organizations
E 1230
Community Relations

SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATIONS CHECK OFF LIST

Requests for authorization as a school-connected organization shall contain:
(Please complete this form and check off each item before turning in to the Superintendent.
Thank you!)

\/ 1. Desired use for any money remaining at the end of the year if the organization is

"o

not continued for authorized to continue in the future. (Attachment #1)

e The name of the organization: Dadc Lendon ﬁma‘es ¥ | 3
3. The date of application: %‘ \O!?,D

4. Copy of the By-laws (to include #9). (Attachment #2)

AN I\ K\\I\\

5. Membership quotas or qualiﬁcatlons Described:
A\ \veresteal '\>ar—heg wodonn owr e\
Commw:\‘c\-\j

/ 6. The names, addresses, phone numbers and general duties of all officers.

Attachment #3)

~~

\

7. A brief description of the organization's purpose.

e\l ioen of enldeen o \orne
Q CSmco - & el dodes
w\«er c;hm mm%mder\% 2 Crocigide

/ ca:hwxo\q oS .
V A list of specific annual objectives and planned activities. (Attachment #4)
z 9. The name of the bank where the group's account will be located and the names of

those authorized to withdraw funds. One signature should be the site administrator,
Superintendent or designee. Check with bank or need both signatures to get information.
(Attachment #5)

/ 10.  The site where the organization will be based, school site or district office.

oo Lordon EAW o |

16



/ 11. Evidence of liability insurance as required by law. (Attachment #6)

{/2. Evidence of having filed appropriate IRS forms. (Attachment #7)

- 13.  An annual financial statement showing prior year activities, total funds raised

from each activity, total funds allocated and the purpose of each allocation, and the fund balance
at year-end. (Attachment #8)

. 14. " The signature of the site administrator who supports the request for authorization.
(See signature line below)

)@@\\) Blioloz0

Site Administrator Signature Date

ExhibitPINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
version: September 20, 2006 Santa Rosa, California

17



ATTACHMENT #1




Attachment # 1

Desired use for any money remaining at the end of the year if the
organization is not continued or authorized in the future:

Article VII: Dissolution {tack London Families Constitution)

Upon dissolution of Jack London Families, after paying or adequately
providing for the debts and obligations of the association, the
remaining assets shall be distributed to the Piner Olivet Educational
Foundation, whose purpose is to raisa funds to provide enriched
educational opportunities for the students of the Piner-Olivet Union
School District.

19



ATTACHMENT #2




Jack London Families By-Laws
Article |: Name
The name of the organization shall be Jack London Families PTO (JLF PTQ).

Article II: Purpose

Jack London Families PTO shall promote the well being of children in home, school and community.
They shall promote and facilitate interaction between parents, students and charitable and educational
purposes.

Article lll: Members

Any parent or legal guardian of a student at the school may be a member and shall have voting rights.
The principal and any teacher employed at the school may be a member and have voting rights.

Article IV: Officers & Elections

Section 1a. Officers- The officers shall consist of President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer.

a. President —The President shall preside over and preserve order at all meetings of the
organization and serve as the primary contact for the Principal, represent the organization at
meetings outside the organization, and coordinate the work of all the officers and committees
so that the purpose of the organization is served.

b. Vice President — The Vice President shall assist the President and carry out the President’s duties
in his or her absence or inability to serve. :

C. Secretary — The Secretary shall keep all records of the organization, take and record minutes,
prepare the agenda, handle correspondence, send notices of meetings to the membership, and
prepare and distribute notices of all PTO events.

d. Treasurer —The Treasurer shall receive all funds of the organization, keep an accurate record of
receipts and expenditures, and pay out funds in accordance with the approval of the PTO
officers and members. He or she will present a financial statement at every meeting and at
other times of the year when requested by the executive board, and make a full report at the
end of the year. He or she will also be responsible for filing the non-profit State and Federal tax
returns as necessary.

Section 1b. Officers Duties- The officers shall transact business in the intervals between meetings
and other business as may be referred to Jack London Families. They are to create event
committees, present a report at the general meetings, and approve bills within the limits of the
budgets.

Section 2- Nominations & Elections- Nomination ballots will be distributed following the second to
last meeting of the year with a requested return date of one week prior to the last meeting of the
year. At the last meeting nominations may be made if the nominee is present to accept the

Jack London Families By-Laws, Amended 05/28/19

21



nomination. During the last meeting voting shall take place by voice vote unless multiple candidates
are running for a position and in that case voting will be done by ballot vote.

Section 3. Terms of Office- Jack London Families officers’ terms shall coincide with the School
District fiscal year. Officers are elected for a two year term. The offices of President and Treasurer
may serve no more than two consecutive terms of the same person in the same position. Each
person elected shall hold only one office at a time. In the event an officer is replaced during their
term the replacement may serve out the remainder of that term and the time fulfilled will not be
included as time served if elected again.

Section 4. Vacancies- If there is a vacancy in the office of President, the Vice President will become
the President. At the next regularly scheduled meeting a new Vice President will be elected. If
there is a vacancy in any other office, members will fill the vacancy through an election at the next
regularly scheduled meeting.

Section 5. JLF PTO prefer to have single representation on all board positions, but should it be
necessary, the board approves the use of co-chairs on any/all board positions when single
representation is not available.

Section 6. Removal From Office- Officers, when charged with a breach of duties, can be removed
from office by a two-thirds majority vote, including two officers.

Article V: Meetings

Section 1. Regular Meetings- The regular meeting of the organization shall be held in the Teacher’s
Lounge on the second Tuesday of each month during the school year at 6:30 p.m., or at a time and
place determined by the officers at least one month before the meeting.

Section 2. Special Meetings- Special meetings may be called by the President or two other officers
submitting a special request to the Secretary. Previous notice of the special meeting shall be sent to
the members at least 48 hours prior to the meeting by flyer and phone call.

Section 3. Quorum- The quorum shall be no less than 6 members of the organization, including two

officers.

Article VI: Committees

Committees may consist of members, officers, and other parent volunteers from the school, with
the President acting as an ex officio member of all committees. The committees will be in charge of
any and all necessary tasks to assist putting on a JLF PTO event.

Article Vil: Business & Finances

Section 1. JLF PTO shall maintain a bank account at a Federally Insured financial institution with the
President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and school Principal as signatories, with two
signatures required.

Jack London Families By-Laws, Amended 05/28/19

22



Section 2. JLF PTO may deposit funds from their own hosted activities and spend their own net
proceeds to benefit their own school and/or students.

Section 3. Minutes of each JLF PTO meeting shall record items of official business, i.e., allocations,
budget items, elections, etc.

Section 4. Upon the dissolution of the organization, any remaining funds should be used to pay any
outstanding bills and, with the membership’s approval, spent for the benefit of the school.

Article VIII: Parliamentary Authority

Any procedural item not covered in the By-Laws is to be done in accordance with Robert’s Rules of
Order.

Article [X: Fiscal Year and Tax ID Number

Section 1. The fiscal year for the JLF PTO shall begin on July 1* and end on June 30™.
Section 2. The IRS EIN for JLF PTO is 33-1071375.

Section 3. The name Jack London Families and/or it’s tax ID number shall only be used and/or cited
in the conduct of official business and activities of Jack London Families and it's committees.

Article X: Dissolution

The organization may be dissolved with previous notice (14 calendar days) and a two-thirds vote of
those present at the meeting.

Article XI: Additions

The By-Laws may be amended by a two-thirds majority of votes cast at any general meeting,
provided notice has been given at the previous general meeting, or thirty days written notice has
been given to the members.

Jack London Families By-Laws, Amended 05/28/19

23



ATTACHMENT #3




Jack London Families PTO Officers 2019-2020

The President facilitates monthly board meetings, acts as a liaison between the school and the JLF
PTO and supports the JLF board in its efforts.
President
Colleen Verdu
2017 Waltzer Road
Santa Rosa, CA 95403
(707) 326-6636
colleen.verdu@ibsa.com

The Vice President assists the President throughout the year, is responsible for registering members
and organizing member volunteers to support PTO functions. Presides over JLF monthly meetings in
the absence of the President.
Vice President
Allen Foster
2314 Andre Lane
Santa Rosa, CA 95403
(707) 580-4065
allen.foster@thermofisher.com

The Secretary records monthly board meeting minutes, conducts the PTO's correspondence and
assembles the email/phone directory of active JLF participants.
Secretary
Ashley Cleveland
2410 Bramble Way

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

(707) 304-1249
ashleynichole1026@yahoo.com

The Treasurer receives and disburses funds, maintains bank accounts, prepares tax documents and
provides monthly financial reports to board members (budget, income statement and balance sheet).
Treasurer

25



ATTACHMENT #4




Jack London Families Parent Teacher .Qrgdhi"_zvaﬁo_n

Events & Activities for 2020-2021 School Year (covip Pending)
Friday, October 30, 2020 Monster Mash Bash
Friday, November 20, 2020 Bingo Night / Pie Eating Contest
Thursday, December 10, 2020 Winter Wonderland
Friday, January 22, 2021 Movie Night
Saturday, February 27, 2021 Spring Fundraiser - Crab Feed
Friday, March 5, 2021 Book Lover’s Ball
Friday, April 16, 2021 Moms & Muffins
Monday, April 26, 2021 Family Paint Night
Friday, May 14, 2021 End of Year BBQ

PTO Meetings are 2nd Tuesday of each month 6:30 - 8:00 in the Teachers Lounge

27



ATTACHMENT #5




Jack London Families Banking Information 2020-2021

Exchange Bank
Coddingtown Branch
1300 Guerneville Road
Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Authorized Signers

Principal - Olga Venegas

President - Colleen Verdu

Vice President - Allen Foster

Secretary - Ashley Cleveland

Treasurer -

29




ATTACHMENT #6




DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 111212019

N .
ACORD
v

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER RaMEACT  Robert V. Nuccio

R.V. Nuccio & Associates Insurance Brokers, Inc. FHONE exti: (800) 364-2433 [ A% noi:  (818) 980-1595
10148 Riverside Drive AbuHEss:  support@rvnuccio.com

Toluca Lake, CA 91602

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A: Fireman's Fund Insurance Company 21873
INSURED insurer B : Nationwide Life Insurance Company 66869
Jack London Families INSURER C :
2707 Francisco Ave INSURER D :
Santa Rosa , CA 95403 INSURERE :
INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUBR] POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A, | SENERALIIREICEY XPK80998373 1/10/2020 | 1/10/2021 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,800
v DAMAGE TO RENTED 100.000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY NANPOOO4581 7 PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ f
| CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE S 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
v | PoLicy FRO- Loc $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &g“ggl’i‘gg?t)s'”@f LiMiT s
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED :
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 5
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I I RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? I:I N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A | Directors and Officers NPODO0051871 1/10/2020 | 1/10/2021 $1,000,000
A | Sexual Misconduct Liability NANPO0045817 1/10/2020 | 1/10/2021 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN’
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Robert V. Nuccio & Lt i

ACORD 25 (2010/05)

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo a8 fegistered marks of ACORD



SCHOOL SUPPORT GROUP/NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION
COMMERCIAL PACKAGE INSURANCE POLICY

MEMORANDUM OF INSURANCE

Master Policy Number: XPK80998373 Memorandum Number: NANPO0045817

Issuing Company: National Program Administrator:

The American Insurance Company R.V. Nuccio & Associates Insurance Brokers, Inc.
1465 N. McDowell Blvd 10148 Riverside Drive

Petaluma, California 94954 Toluca Lake, CA 91602

Nationwide Claims: 1-888-347-3428 Nationwide: 1-800-567-2685

01. MEMORANDUM HOLDER NAME AND ADDRESS (MEMORANDUM HOLDER MEANS NAMED INSURED)

a. Memorandum Holder: Jack London Families
b. Street Address: 2707 Francisco Ave
c. City: Santa Rosa

d. State: CA

e. Zip Code: 95403

02. COVERAGE PERIOD
Inception Date 1/10/2020 12:01A.M. to Expiration Date 1/10/2021 12:01A.M. Standard Time at the Named Insured’s
address as stated above.

03. BUSINESS TYPE

VN [VIpTO [CIBooster Club [CJEducational Foundation [CINonprofit Organization
04. COVERAGE PART LiMIT OF INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE PREMIUM
a. INLAND MARINE PROPERTY COVERAGE PART $62.00
Business Personal Property/Equipment $10,000 $250
b. INLAND MARINE CRIME COVERAGE PART $0.00
(01)Employee Dishonesty Not Covered $250
(02)Forgery Or Alteration Not Covered $250
(03)Theft, Disappearance And Destruction Of Money
(a)Inside The Premises Not Covered $250
(b)Outside The Premises Not Covered $250
c.  GENERAL AND AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART $45.00
(01)General Aggregate $2,000,000 $0
(02)Products/Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000
(03)Personal And Advertising Injury $1,000,000
(04)Each Occurrence $1,000,000
(05)Damage To Premises Rented To You $100,000
(06)Medical Expense $5,000
(07)Non-Owned And Hired Automobiles Not Covered
State Guarantee Fund $0.00
05. TOTAL PREMIUM Due At Inception $107.00

06. FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS ATTACHED AT INCEPTION

Date Issued: By ﬁﬁ“‘ “ {m

Form Number:NPOUWS001 Robert V. Nuccio

3/20/2008
NPOUWSO001
© Copyright 2008. All rights rescrved. R.V. Nuccio & Associates Insurance é@(crs, Inc. 818-980-1413.



ATTACHMENT #7




Form ggo-Ez

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

» Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

Short Form

| OMB No. 1545-1150

2018

Open to Public

Department of the T Inspection
|n'?§r?13?‘§§v§nuees£iii“'y » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990EZ for instructions and the latest information. P

A For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07/01 , 2018, and ending 06/30 y20 19
B Check if applicable: C Name of organization D Employer identification number
I'_'] Address change JACK LONDON FAMILIES 33-1071375

L[] Name change Room/suite | E Telephone number

I:l Initial return

Number and street (or P.O. box, if mail is not delivered to street address)

2707 Francisco Avenue

707-580-4065

Final return/terminated
D Amended return
D Application pending

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

F Group Exemption

Number »

G Accounting Method:  [v] Cash |:| Accrual  Other (specify) » H Check » [ifthe organization is not
I Website: > required to attach Schedule B

J Tax-exempt status (check only one) — 501(c)@) [ 501(c) ( ) « (insertno.) [] 4947(a) 1) or [1527 (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

K Form of organization: [] Corporation ] Trust Association [ other

L Add lines 5b, 6c, and 7b to line 9 to determine gross receipts. If gross receipts are $200,000 or more, or if total assets

(Part Il, column (B)) are $500,000 or more, file Form 990 instead of Form 990-EZ . > $ 42,612
Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part I)
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part | P s Il
1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received . 1 0
2  Program service revenue including government fees and contracts 2 0
3 Membership dues and assessments . 3 0
4  Investment income . ; P . 4 0
6a Gross amount from sale of assets other than mventory 5a 0
b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses . 5b 0
¢ Gain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory (Subtract Ilne 5b from line 5a) . 5¢ 0
6 Gaming and fundraising events:
a Gross income from gaming (attach Schedule G if greater than
g $15,000) . | 6a | 0
o b Gross income from fundraising events (not including $ 0 of contributions
o from fundraising events reported on line 1) (attach Schedule G if the
sum of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) . 6b 42,612
¢ Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising events 6¢c 25,407
d Net income or (loss) from gaming and fundraising events (add lines 6a and 6b and subtract
line 60) s owm w e s w s 5 6d 17,205
7a Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances 7a 0
b Less: cost of goods sold 7b 0
¢ Gross profit or (loss) from sales of lnventory (Subtract hne 7b from Ilne 7a) 7c 0
8  Other revenue (describe in Schedule O) . . ; 8 0
9 Total revenue. Add lines 1, 2, 3, 4, 5¢, 6d, 7c, and 8 > 9 17,205
10  Grants and similar amounts paid (list in Schedule O) 10 0
11 Benefits paid to or for members 11 0
$ |12  Salaries, other compensation, and employee beneflts ’ 12 0
2 |13  Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors . 13 0
al1a Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance 14 0
i 15  Printing, publications, postage, and shipping . 15 0
16  Other expenses (describe in Schedule O) P 16 0
17 Total expenses. Add lines 10 through 16 . |17 0
o | 18  Excess or (deficit) for the year (Subtract line 17 from hne 9) .o e s owmow o5 o« o= | 18 17,205
'g 19  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 27, column (A)) (must agree with
g:’ end-of-year figure reported on prior year’s return) e 19 11,618
@ |20 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) . 120 0
Z |21 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 18 through 20 .21 28,823

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

34

Cat. No. 10642I

Form 990-EZ (2018)



Form 990-EZ (2018)

Page 2

3CIdlll Balance Sheets (see the instructions for Part II)

Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part Il . T
(A) Beginning of year (B) End of year
22  Cash, savings, and investments 11,618(22 28,823
23 Land and buildings . 0|23 0
24  Other assets (describe in Schedule O) 0/24 0
25 Total assets . 11,618|25 28,823
26 Total liabilities (descnbe in Schedule O) : 0(26 0
Net assets or fund balances (line 27 of column (B) must agree W|th hne 21) 11,618|27 28,823
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (see the instructions for Part |ll)
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part IlI ] Expenses

What is the organization’s primary exempt purpose?

See Schedule O, Statement 1

Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services,

(Required for section
501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4)
organizations; optional for

as measured by expenses. In a clear and concise manner, describe the services provided, the number of | others)
persons benefited, and other relevant information for each program title.
28 Jack London Elemenatry has a popoluation of 300 students. The Jack London Families group provides
access to field trips, assembilies and other material to enhance the educational curriculum. The Familes
(Continued on Schedule O, Statement 2)
(Grants $ 0) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here > [] [28a 0
29
(Grants $ )_If this amount includes foreign grants, check here » [] |29a
30
(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here » [] |30a
31 Other program services (describe in Schedule O) . %
(Grants $ 0) If this amount includes foreign g@ts check here > [] |31a
32 Total program service expenses (add lines 28a through 31a) . > | 32 0

List of Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (list each one even if not compensated see the instructions for Part IV)

Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part IV

O

(b) Average
hours per week
devoted to position

(a) Name and title

(c) Reportable
compensation
(Forms W-2/1099-MISC)
(if not paid, enter -0-)

(d) Health benefits,
contributions to employee|
benefit plans, and
deferred compensation

(e) Estimated amount of
other compensation

Colleen Verdu 5.00 0 0 0
PTO President

Allen Foster 5.00 0 0 0
PTO Vice President

Sarah Salmon 5.00 0 0 0
PTO Treasurer

Ashley Cleveland 5.00 0 0 0

PTO Secretary

35

Form 990-EZ (2018)



Form 990-EZ (2018) Page 3

Other Information (Note the Schedule A and personal benefit contract statement requirements in the
instructions for Part V.) Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this PartV. . []

Yes| No

33 Did the organization engage in any significant activity not previously reported to the IRS? If “Yes,” provide a
detailed description of each activity in Schedule© . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 v

34  Were any significant changes made to the organizing or governing documents? If “Yes,” attach a conformed
copy of the amended documents if they reflect a change to the organization's name. Otherwise, explain the

change on Schedule O. See instructions . . . . s s 34 v
35a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1 000 or more dunng the year from busnness
activities (such as those reported on lines 2, 6a, and 7a, among others)? . . . . . . . . . . . . 35a v

b If “Yes” to line 353, has the organization filed a Form 990-T for the year? If “No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O | 35b

¢ Was the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization subject to section 6033(e) notice,

reporting, and proxy tax requirements during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il . . . . 35¢

36 Did the organization undergo a liquidation, dissolution, termination, or SIgnlflcant dlsposmon of net assets

during the year? If “Yes,” complete applicable parts of Schedule N . . . . e 36

37a Enter amount of political expenditures, direct or indirect, as described in the instructions b l 37a | 0

b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? . . . 37b

38a Did the organization borrow from, or make any loans to, any offlcer dlrector trustee or key emp!oyee or were

any such loans made in a prior year and still outstanding at the end of the tax year covered by this return? . 38a

b If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il and enter the total amount involved . . . . 38b

39  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

a Initiation fees and capital contributions includedon line® . . . . . . . . . . 39a

b Gross receipts, included on line 9, for public use of club facilites . . . 39b
40a Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed on the organlzatlon durlng the year under:

section 4911 b 0 ; section 4912 » 0 ; section 4955 b 0

b Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in any section 4958

excess benefit transaction during the year, or did it engage in an excess benefit transaction in a prior year

that has not been reported on any of its prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | 40b v

¢ Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed

on organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under sections 4912,

AN U N A

4955,and4958 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..k 0
d Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Enter amount of tax on line
40c reimbursed by the organization . . . A 0
e All organizations. At any time during the tax year, was the organlzatlon a party to a prohibited tax shelter
transaction? If “Yes,” complete Form 8886-T . . . . R T T S, 40e v
41  List the states with which a copy of this return is filed » ca
42a The organization’s books are in care of > Sarah Salmon Telephone no. » 707-548-7885
Located at B 2340 Brompton Ave, Santa Rosa, CA 95430 ZIP +4 > 95430
b At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in or a signature or other authority over Yes| No
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 42b v

If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country b
See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and
Financial Accounts (FBAR).

¢ At any time during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside the United States? . 42c v
If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country »
43  Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts filing Form 990-EZ in lieu of Form 1041—Checkhere . . . . . . » []
and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the taxyear . . . . . » I 43 [
Yes| No
44a Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds during the year? If “Yes,” Form 990 must be
completed instead of Form990-EZ . . . . : 44a v
b Did the organization operate one or more hospltal facmtxes durlng the year’? If “Yes ” Form 990 must be
completed instead of Form990-E2 . . . . . . . . . . . Ce e e e 44b v
¢ Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services durlng the year'7 s s om 44c v
d If “Yes” to line 44c, has the organization filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No,” prowde an
explanation in Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . L L L L oL 44d
45a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . . . . . 45a v
b Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity W|thm the
meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” Form 990 and Schedule R may need to be completed instead of
Form 990-EZ. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . L. L L. L 45b v

36 Form 990-EZ (2018)



Form 990-EZ (2018)

Page 4

46 Did the organization engage, directly or indirectly, in political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition

to candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part |

Yes| No

46 v

Section 501(c)(3) Organizations Only

All section 501(c)(3) organizations must answer questions 47-49b and 52, and complete the tables for lines

50 and 51.

Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any questioninthisPartVI . . . . . . . . . [
Yes| No

47 Did the organization engage in lobbying activities or have a section 501(h) election in effect during the tax
year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il i OB OE G E 8 m o w om e o o e o w w 47 v
48 s the organization a school as described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E . . . . 48 v
49a Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization? . . . . . . 49a v

b If “Yes,” was the related organization a section 527 organization? . . . 49b

50 Complete this table for the organization’s five highest compensated emplo

yees (other than officers, directors, trustees, and key

employees) who each received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization. If there is none, enter “None.”

(b) Average
(a) Name and title of each employee hours per week
devoted to position

(c) Reportable
compensation

(Forms W-2/1099-MISC)

(d) Health benefits,

contributions to employee | (e) Estimated amount of
benefit plans, and deferred other compensation

compensation

None

f Total number of other employees paid over $100,000

. >

51  Complete this table for the organization’s five highest compensated independent contractors who each received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization. If there is none, enter “None.”

(a) Name and business address of each independent contractor

(b) Type of service (c) Compensation

None

d Total number of other independent contractors each receiving over $100,000

52 Did the organization complete Schedule A? Note: All section 501(c)@3) organizations must attach a

completed Schedule A

>

>[I Yes []No

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here Allen Foster, PTO Treasurer
Type or print name and title
Paid Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check D if PTIN
Preparer self-employed
Use Only | Firm'sname > Firm's EIN >
Firm's address » Phone no.

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions

P> [JYes []No

37

Form 990-EZ (2018)



| OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Open to Public

SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support
(Form 990 or 990-E2)

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
» Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
JACK LONDON FAMILIES 33-1071375

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 [ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
2 [ A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
3 [ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii)-
4 [ A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital’s name, city, and state:

[ An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)

6 [ A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

8 [ A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

9 [an agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 [ An organization that normaliy receives: (1) more than 3373% of its support from confribufions, méembership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions —subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33'3% of its

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part lil.)

11 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes
of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a [ Typel.A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [ Typell.A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

¢ [ Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d [ Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type I, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

(3]

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . . . . . : ‘:l
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organization (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization | (iv) Is the organization | (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 | listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)

Yes No
(A)
(B)
(©)
(D)
(E)
Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 8&90-EZ. Cat. No. 11285F Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

Page 2

CAIN  Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under

Part Ill. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part ll.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”) . . . 38,701 39,661 39,000 37,777 42,612 197,751
2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf . . . 0 0 0 0 0
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge . . . . 0 ) 0 0 0
4 Total. Add lines 1 through3. . . . 38,701 39,661 39,000 37,777 42,612 197,751
5 The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) .
6  Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 197,751
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
7 Amounts from line4 . . . . . . 38,701 39,661 39,000 37,777 42,612 197,751
8 Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similarsources . . . . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carredon . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPartVL) . . . . . . 0 0 0 0 0
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 197,751
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . . . 12 |
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second thlrd fourth or flf’th tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . N T e
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . . 14 100 %
15  Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part Il, line14 . . . . 15 100 %
16a 33'3% support test—2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 13 and llne 14 is 33'3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . A
b 33'3% support test—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and Ilne 15 is 331/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . b O
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization....................................>[:|
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization . . . : T N
18  Private foundation. If the orgamzatlon dld not check a box on Ilne 13 16a 16b 17a or 17b check thls box and see
instructions . . . . . . .. L o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e o P

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

39



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

Page 3

Gl Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part IL.

If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 (b) 2015

(c) 2016

(d) 2017

(e) 2018

(f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”)

2 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose .

3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 .

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

¢ Add lines 7a and 7b

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
line 6.) . e e

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2014 (b) 2015

(c) 2016

(d) 2017

(e) 2018

(f) Total

9  Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources .

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 .

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated busmess
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on

12  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VI.) .

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c 11,
and 12.) ..

14  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here . > ]
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f) 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 15 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2018 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f) . 17 %
18  Investment income percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part Il line 17 . 18 %

19a 33'3% support tests—2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and Ilne 15 is more than 33'3%, and line

17 is not more than 331/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

> O

b 33'3% support tests—2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33'3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33'/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization B O

20 _ Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions » [

40

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
i1l  Supporting Organizations

Page 4

(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A

and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12¢ of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1

3a

4a

b5a

9a

10a

Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If “Yes,” answer
(b) and (c) below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization™)? If
“Yes,” and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document?

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ji) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes

No

3a

3b

3c

4a

4b

4c

5a

Sb

5¢

9a

9%

9c

10a

10b

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

41



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
eI\ Supporting Organizations (continued)

11
a

b
c

Page 5

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization?

A family member of a person described in (a) above?

A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If “Yes” to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI.

Yes

No

11a

11b

11c

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1

Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Yes

No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

1

Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Yes

No

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

1

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (jii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard.

Yes

No

3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1
a
b
c

2
a

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

[J The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
[ The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

[] The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below.

Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more
of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization’s involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI.

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes

No

2a

2b

3a

3b

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

42



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 6
Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 [ Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Section A—Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year

1 Net short-term capital gain

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions

3 Other gross income (see instructions)

4 Add lines 1 through 3.

5 Depreciation and depletion

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)
7 Other expenses (see instructions)

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8

G|H[WIN|=

(]

~

(B) Current Year

Section B—Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ;
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

a Average monthly value of securities 1a
b Average monthly cash balances 1b
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c¢) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,

see instructions).

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

6 Multiply line 5 by .035.

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

N

(4]

(N |0

Section C—Distributable Amount Current Year

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A)

2 Enter 85% of line 1.

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

5 Income tax imposed in prior year

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6

GQ|H|W|IN|=

7 [ Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Il supporting organization (see
instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

43



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 7
Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D—Distributions Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

N

(N[O A W

©

(ii) (iii)
Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2018 Amount for 2018

(M

Section E—Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distibutions

1 Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018

From 2013

From 2014

From 2015

From 2016

From2017 . . . . .

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Carryover from 2013 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

Distributions for 2018 from

Section D, line 7: $

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2019. Add lines 3;j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2014 .

Excess from 2015 .

Excess from 2016 .

Excess from 2017 .

Excess from 2018 .

W

JKQ|=|o(alo|T|w

s | e

H

=3

Q0|0

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

44



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 8

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b: Part
Ill, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V/, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

Schedule A, Part ll, Line 10 - Other Income comes from SCRIP Sales

45 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities | omsNo. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or QQO-EZ) Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the

organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. 2 @ 1 8
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
JACK LONDON FAMILIES 33-1071375

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

a [] Mail solicitations e [0 Solicitation of non-government grants
b [ Internet and email solicitations f [ Solicitation of government grants

¢ [ Phone solicitations g [ Special fundraising events

d [ In-person solicitations

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees,
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part Vi) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? []Yes [ No
b If “Yes,” list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

(v) Amount paid to
(iv) Gross receipts (or retained by)

from activity fundraiser listed in
col. (i)

(vi) Amount paid to
(or retained by)
organization

(iii) Did fundraiser have
custody or control of
contributions?

(i) Name and address of individual - ..
or entity (fundraiser) (i) Activity

Yes No

10

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... .»

3  List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from
registration or licensing.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 50083H Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

46



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

Part Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more
than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with

Page 2

gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
Cookie Dough Charleston Wrap 2 (add col. (Ia) through
(event type) (event type) (total number) col. )
()]
2
2| 1 Grossreceipts . . . . 5,140 5,948 23,807 34,895
i
2 Less: Contributions . . 0 0 0 0
3 Grossincome (line 1 minus
line2) . . . . . . . 5,140 5,948 23,807 34,895
4 Cashprizes . . . . . 0 0 0 0
5 Noncash prizes . . . 0 0 0 0
w e
S| 6 Rent/facility costs . . . 0 0 0 0
3
% | 7 Foodand beverages . . 0 0 0 0
5
5 8 Entertainment . . . . 0 0 0 0
9  Other direct expenses . 3,084 2,299 16,301 21,684
10  Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9incolumn(d) . . . . . . . . . . » 21,684
11 Netincome summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) . . . . ; . b 13,211

eIl Gaming. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 19,

$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

or reported more than

o) . b) Pull tabs/instant ; d) Total gaming (add
g (a) Bingo biégg/pgog?essscg ginngo (c) Other gaming c(o]? (ac; ?hr%irgéngcfﬁ (c)
g
Q
T | 1  Grossrevenue .
®| 2 Cashprizes .
S| 8 Noncash prizes
L
®| 4 Rent/facility costs .
=
5  Other direct expenses
L] Yes %| ] Yes %] Yes %
6 Volunteerlabor. . . . |[] No [] No [] No
7  Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5incolumn(d) . . . . . . . . . . »
8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, columnd) . . . . . . . . »
9  Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:
a s the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? Yes [JNo
b If “No,” explain:
10a Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year? . dYes [No

If “Yes,” explain:

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

47



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 3

11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? . . . . : 5om @ 8 s (dYes []No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnershlp or other entity
formed to administer charitable gaming? . . . e e e e e e . . . . . . . . . . . OYes ONo
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a Theorganization’sfacility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |13a %
b Anoutside facility . . . . . . . . .« .« . . . [13b %
14  Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization’s gammg/spemal events books and
records:
Name b
Address b
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming
revenue? . . . . .« « « « . . . . [OYes [No
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of gaming revenue recelved by the organlzatlon > s and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party®» $
¢ If “Yes,” enter name and address of the third party:
Name b
Address b
16  Gaming manager information:
Name b
Gaming manager compensation b $
Description of services provided »
[IDirector/officer [JEmployee [JIndependent contractor
17  Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? . . . . . . . . [OYes [No
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state Iaw to be dlstnbuted to other exempt organizations or

spent in the organization’s own exempt activities during the tax year »  $

IVl  Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (i) and (v); and

Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information.
See instructions.

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018

48



Schedule O, Statement 1 JACK LONDON FAMILIES
Form: Form 990-EZ (2018) EIN: 33-1071375

Page: 2 Part lil
Primary Exempt Purpose

Primary Exempt Purpose

Jack London Families exists to support and enhance the educational programs of Jack London Elementary School, which is part of the Pinvr-Olivet
Union School District.

Page: 1

49



Schedule O, Statement 2 JACK LONDON FAMILIES
Form: Form 990-EZ (2018) EIN: 33-1071375

Page: 2 Part Ill, Line 28
First Program Service Accomplishments Description

Description

Group organizes and funds different social events for the community building and giving sutudents an outlet for their talent and knowledge.

Page: 2

50



ATTACHMENT #8




Income Statement
Jack London PTO

YTD June 30th 2020
2019-2020

Financial Statements in U.S. Dollars
Revehu

AmazonSmile Foundation $ 73.09 $ 73.09
Truist Deposit $ 165.00 $ 165.00
Box Tops $ 33.40 $ 33.40
Donations $ 70.00 $ 70.00
6th Grade Funds $ 1,058.51 $ 1,058.51
Script $ 129.43 | § 400.00 | § (270.57)
Book Fair $ 2,903.23 | § 290323 | § -
Book Lover's Ball 424.00 | $ 195.29 228.71
Charleston Wrap 4,849.01 [ $ 3,258.12 | § 1,590.89
Cookie Dough 6,540.00 | $ 3,924.00 2,616.00
Crab Feed $ 15,692.68 | $ 12,911.14 | § 2,781.54
End of Year BBQ $ -
Snack Sales at events $ 289.00 $ 289.00
Movie Night $ 363.00 | $ 11754 1 $ 245.46
Spirit Wear $ 2,059.21 | $ 1,259.02 | $ 800.19
Year book $ 7500 | % 1,520.72 1 $ (1,445.72)
Less: Sales Returns and Allowances -
Net Revenue $ 3472456 [§ 26,489.06 8,235.50
pera () pe PS
Attorney General Registry of Charitable Trusts
Lawrence Hall of Science $ 1,290.00
Child Care for JLF Meetings $ 180.00
Dads & Donuts $ 385.00
Bingo Night $ 267.57
Ice Cream Social $ 500.08
Insurance Renewal $ 305.00
Paws Store $ 452.23
Square Readers 17.42
2018-2019 Reimbursments 415.43
Monster Mash 276.36
Winter Wonderland $ 26B.65
Mr Brown $ 322.94
Water Bottle Filling Station $ 966.99
6th Grade Gradualion T-Shirts $ 492.35
Supplies $ 3.00
Square Fees $ 16.29
Total Operating Expenses $ 6,159.31
Total Cost + Operating Expenses 5 3264837
Net Operating Income $ 2,076197
Aci nformation
Beginning Bank Balance as of 05/31/20 $31,805.23
Bank fees and returned Checks $0.00
Deposits $0.00
Other Credits $0.00
Other Debits (492.35)
Cleared Checks -
*Minus outstanding checks
$0.00
Ending Bank Balance 06/30/20/20 $31,312.88 -
*Minus 6th Grade Funds $14,915.60
*Minus outstanding checks
*Deposits in Transit Transfer from Scrip Account
$0.00
*Plus Petty Cash On Hand $214.00
*Plus Outstanding Deposits
Year Book 2018/2019 $0.00
Available Funds $16,611.28

52



Abah

Exchange
Bank

PO Box 3788, Santa Rosa, CA 95402-3788

JACK LONDON FAMILIES
2707 FRANCISCO AVE
SANTA ROSA CA 95403

Eree yourself from ATM fees,
We are part of the Allpoint network.

That means our cardholders
have access to 55,000 surcharge
free ATMs. ATMs at retailers
like Target, CVS pharmacy

and Walgreens.

STATEMENT PERIOD

06/01/2020 - 06/30/2020

No surcharge fees assessed by
AllPoint to Exchange Bank Debit
Mastercard holders. Foreign usage
currency conversion fees may apply.

Learn more.

‘59 Exchange Bank 5. &

R

“e Invested in you. NAALS

| STATEMENT SUMMARY ;

ACCOUNT INFORMATION -

Type Description Account # Balance
Checking Non-Profit Business Checking 0102035318 $31,312.88
ACCOUNT SUMMARY-Checking 0102035318

Beginning Balance as of 05-31-20 $31,805.23
0 Deposit(s) $0.00
0 Other Credit(s) 50.00
1 Check(s) $492.35
0 Other Debit(s) $0.00
Ending Balance 06-30-20 $31,312.88
CHECKS

Number Date Amount Date Amount
2412 06-09 $492.35

53 Page 1 of 3

reou F-17



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda ltem Summary

Action Item: 16.2 Approval of 2019-2020 Unaudited Actuals for
the Piner-Olivet Union School District Including Olivet Charter
School, Schaefer Charter School, Piner-Olivet Charter School
and Northwest Prep Charter School

Special Meeting of: September 9, 2020  Action Item Report Format:Oral

Attachment: Staff Report

Presented by: Felicia Koha, CBO

Background
Districts and charter schools must present information showing actual revenues and expenditures

after the close of each fiscal year. This information is called the “Unaudited Actuals” because
they have not yet been audited by our outside auditing firm.

Issue(s)

Plan/Discussion/Detail
There is a narrative accompanying the Unaudited Actuals which summarizes the information
contained in the different reports.

Fiscal Impact
None

Options

Recommendation
Approve as presented

Motion:

Moved by: Second:

Vote: Aye: No: Abstention; Absent:
FRANICEVIC HINTON MOHR PRYOR Way

54



UNION SCHOOL
DISTRICT

2019-2020
Unaudited Actual Report

September 9, 2020

Felicia Koha
Chief Business Official

Drt. Steve Charbonneau
Superintendent

55



Unaudited Actuals
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary FINANCIAL REPORTS
Sonoma County 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
School District Certification

49 70870 0000000
Form CA

UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT:
To the County Superintendent of Schools:

2019-20 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report was prepared in accordance
with Education Code Section 41010 and is hereby approved and filed by the governing board of
the school district pursuant to Education Code Section 42100.

Signed: Date of Meeting: Sept.9, 2020
Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board

(Original signature required)
To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:

2019-20 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report has been verified for accuracy
by the County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100.

Signed: Date:
County Superintendent/Designee

(Original signature required)

For additional information on the unaudited actual reports, please contact:

For County Office of Education: For School District;
Shelley Stiles Felicia Koha

Name Name

Director External Fiscal Services CBO

Title Title

(707) 524-2635 (707) 522-3008
Telephone Telephone
sstiles@scoe.org fkoha@pousd.org
E-mail Address E-mail Address

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 56

File: ca (Rev 05/30/2017) Page 1 Printed: 9/8/2020 10:06 AM



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary FINANCIAL REPORTS
Sonoma County 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

Summary of Unaudited Actual Data Submission

49 70870 0000000
Form CA

Following is a summary of the critical data elements contained in your unaudited actual data. Since these data may have
fiscal implications for your agency, please verify their accuracy before filing your unaudited actual financial reports.

Form Description Value

CEA Percent of Current Cost of Education Expended for Classroom Compensation 57.22%
Must equal or exceed 60% for elementary, 55% for unified, and 50% for high school
districts or future apportionments may be affected. (EC 41372)
CEA Deficiency Amount $319,559.83
Applicable to districts not exempt from the requirement and not meeting the minimum classroom
compensation percentage - see Form CEA for further details.

ESMOE| Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Determination MOE Met
If MOE Not Met, the 2021-22 apportionment may be reduced by the lesser of the following two percentages:
MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Total Expenditures
MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Expenditures Per ADA
GANN Adjustments to Appropriations Limit Per Government Code Section 7902.1 $0.00

If this amount is not zero, it represents an increase to your Appropriations Limit. The Department of
Finance must be notified of increases within 45 days of budget adoption.
Adjusted Appropriations Limit $7,315,498.73
Appropriations Subject to Limit $7,315,498.73
These amounts represent the board approved Appropriations Limit and Appropriations Subject to
Limit pursuant to Government Code Section 7906 and EC 42132.

ICR Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 6.07%
Fixed-with-carry-forward indirect cost rate for use in 2021-22, subject to CDE approval.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ca (Rev 03/06/2018) Pase71

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:06 AM



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

To: The Governing Board

From: Dr. Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent
Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official

Subject: The 2019-2020 Unaudited Actuals

Unaudited Actuals are a series of reports that reflect the actual revenues and expenditures made in each of the
District’s funds. They are called Unaudited Actuals because the District’s outside auditor has not yet reviewed
them. This narrative is a summarization of the information contained within the Unaudited Actual reports.

General Fund (pistrict 43) (Funds 01, 04 and 05)

Schaefer and Olivet Charters are maintained as separate and self-balancing funds during the year. Only in the year
end closing are they combined for reporting purposes into the General Fund, Fund 01. During the year Fund 01
includes only district wide services (district administration, maintenance and special education) and Jack London
School

Fund Balance — The final fund balance for the District’s General Fund is $4,877,109. The breakdown of Fund
Balance is as follows:

Revolving Cash $ 3,000
Lottery/Restricted $ 155,526
Designated for Curriculum Adoption $ 350,000
Designated for Facilities Improvements $ 995,074
Designated for Technology & Special Education $1,250,000
Designated for Economic Uncertainties (4.00%) $ 587,529
Designated for Cash Flow (11.00%) $1,535,980
Unassigned, Unrestricted $ 0

Revenue Limit

Revenue limit funds received were higher than budgeted for as were funds for Basic Aid Supplemental for a
combined increase of about $1,179,378. There were several changes in State revenue for many programs resulting
in a net increase of $162,954. The largest change in this category is related to the GASB requirement for districts to
show the amount being paid by the State on Behalf of districts for CalSTRS. There is a corresponding expenditure
in the benefit section in the exact same amount. Other Local Revenue experienced a net increase of $391,482.
Significant changes in this category included increases in Interagency, Rentals and Leases, and Miscellaneous
revenues.

Other Revenues
Federal revenues were higher than projected due to an increase in entitlements of $187,387.

Expenditures

Expenditures for employees’ salaries and benefits were approximately $460,000 more than projected. Most of this
was related to the salary increase that was approved in April 8, 2020. Expenditures for supplies were approximately
$616,316 more than budgeted. Much of this amount is restricted or designated for specific purposes in the fund
balance such as purchasing new curriculum. Expenditures for contracted services was $599,705 more than
budgeted; the majority of this was related to the special education program. Capital Outlay expenditures were
$692,646 less than budgeted for due to the utilization of Fund 25 for modernization of facilities.

Encroachments
The Special Education encroachment was $2,003,927 compared to the 2018-2019 encroachment of $1,902,009.

58



Piner-Olivet Charter School Fund (District 44) (Fund 03)

The Piner-Olivet Charter School ended the year with a fund balance of $445,195. This is $153,615 more than the
projected fund balance of $291,580. Approximately $110,000 of original budgeted restricted resources was not
spent during 2019-20. Additionally, the COVID-19 pandemic impact to the school resulted in a decrease in payroll,
utility, and other expenditures.

Northwest Prep Charter School Fund (District 43) (Fund 09)

Northwest Prep at Piner-Olivet ended the year with a fund balance of $347,269. This is $5,825 less than the
projected fund balance of $353,094. The District transferred $200,000 into the NWP fund in 2014-2015 in order for
that fund to have a positive ending balance; this transfer is being repaid at $10,000 per year.

Cafeteria Fund (Fund 13)

The Cafeteria Fund is utilized for depositing and expending funds related to the Food Service Program. During
2019-20, the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a shut-down of the sites and a move to distance learning. During this
time, the District’s food vendor assisted with providing meals to all students. The impact to the Cafeteria Fund was
a loss of revenue necessitating an increase to the contribution from the General Fund totaling $106,830. The
Cafeteria Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $2,590.

Deferred Maintenance Fund (Fund 14)
The Deferred Maintenance Fund is used for maintenance or upgrades in facilities over 20 years old. During 2013-
2014, the Board took action to transfer $100,000 from the District’s General Fund to the Deferred Maintenance
Fund, and that practice has been continued up through 2018-19. During the 2019-20 year, the Board took action to
pause the $100,000 transfer to this fund until the District realizes fiscal improvement. The Deferred Maintenance
Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $327,600.

Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17)

The Special Reserve Fund was initiated in 2009-2010. $300,000 was transferred into this fund from the Deferred
Maintenance Fund. Along with transferring these funds, the Board took action to designate these funds to be spent
only on deferred maintenance items and only if necessary. The Special Reserve Fund ended the year with a fund
balance of $9,821.

Special Reserve Fund (OPEB) (Fund 20)

The Special Reserve Fund for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB), was created in 2014-2015. $600,000 was
transferred into the fund from the General Fund’s unassigned reserve to begin to fund the District’s approximate
$1.1 million unfunded OPEB liability. Fund 20, Special Reserve Fund ended the year with a fund balance of
$645,902.

Bond Fund (Fund 21)

The Bond Fund was re-established in 2010-2011. $8,033,000 was initially deposited into this fund from the sale of
general obligation bonds. Bond funds may only be spent on items included in the Measure L language. During
2019-20, the only activity occurring was the generation of interest income. The Bond Fund ended the year with a
fund balance of $933.

Capital Facilities Account Fund (Fund 25)
The Capital Facilities Account Fund is utilized for depositing and expending developer fees. The Capital Facilities
Account Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $768,256.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund (Fund 51)

This fund is maintained at the County Treasury and is not on the district’s books. However, it is included in the
unaudited actuals and in the audit. The data is transferred from the County. In 2019-20 $2,764,705 of revenue was
received from property taxes, from state funds for homeowners’ exemptions and from interest revenue. Bond
principal and interest of $2,375,375 was paid.

59



0000000 0480Z 6t

pund [eiausg

S|enjoy pajipneun

WV L0l 0202/8/6 :pajulld | abed (0202/01/€0 AoY) E-puny :3)i4
0°2°020¢ - a1emyos Buioday [eloueuly SOYS
uolneanp3 jo ydaq eiuloje)
%S 6E- (00°299'%9) 00°9vE ver'e (00°€10'68%'2) (G¥'0€8'901) ¥6'€LS VY (6€¥0¥'1.65'2) S3ISN/S3IOHNOS ONIONVYNI4 §3HLO TVLOL (¢
%0°0 000 00'€l0'68¥'C (00°€L068Y'2) 000 6€¥0¥' LGS (6€¥0Y'1L.652) 6668-0868 suonnguuo (g
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 669.2-0€9L sasn (q
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 6.68-0£68 $82In0S (e
$98M/s921n0S JBY10 (g
%08 00°299'6€L 00°299'¥9 00'000°G.9 ¥2°098'v89 G$'0€8°901 6270085 629.2-009L IO sugysuel] (q
%891 00°000'G29 000 00°000'G.9 62°0£0'8.S 000 62°0£0'8.S 6268-0068 u| sigysuel] (e
slajsuel] punpajul (|
SIASN/SIDUNOS ONIONVNIH ¥3IHLO °d
%€602- [(00°90%'195) (00°'8€9'€6¥'2) 00'2€2'2E6'L 80°Lb¥'ELS (29°2€8'L29'2) 0L'¥82'LYl'E (68 - Sv) S3SN ANV S3D¥NOS ONIDONVNIA
U3IH10 IH0439 STUNLIANIIXT ¥INO
S3INNIAIY 40 (ADN3IDI43a) $S30X3 "D
%0°L- 00'966'G¢0'€l 00'LSY'EV0'Y 00'6¥5'286'8 ¥1'65€°€00' V1 9E'€9L' VeV Y 8.°G65'895'6 S3YNLIANIdX3T TVLOL (6
%0°0 000 00°06£'261 (00°06€°261) 000 00°€zL'eS) (00°czL'eSH) 66€.-00€L SIS0 1031ipu Jo sugysuel] - obINQ JaYio (8
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 66¥.-001.L (s1s0D
662.-001L 1031ipu Jo sugysuel] Buipnjoxa) 0BINQ Jayio (2
%0001~ 000 000 000 1£°006'6€ 000 1£°006'6€ 6669-0009 Aeino _E_amu@
%99~ 00'266°L26°C 002l0've6'L 00'086°.66 96'206'921'¢ T1'G51'680°C ¥8°LYL LED’L 6665-000S sainjipuadx3 BunesadQ JOYIO pue sadinss (G
%6°09- 00°€EV'G8E 00'v06'61 1 00'625'69¢ 02°9¥9'v86 29°€88'Zve 86°29L'Lv9 6661-000% saliddng pue sxoog (¥
%0°G- 00°'L€1'606'C 00'891°L28 00°€96'180°C 61°L6G'€90°C 28'vLL'ee6 LE728Y'0VL'C 666€-000€ slyjauag @akojdw3 (g
%¢'8- 00°CLL'9GL'} 00'¥8€'96Y 00'82.'652'L 06'v9L°C16'L Ly’ €54'205 67 LLEOLY'L 6662-000¢ sauejes payisse| (g
%9°€ 00'82€'€S0°'S 00°€65°€8Y 00°6€L'69G Y 2G°LYS'S18'y 6€°€E8'TTY ELPLL'TSY Y 6661-0001 salejes pajedyiuad (|
S3UNLIANIdX3 ‘g
%l '¥L- 00°065 ¥9¥'ZL 00°€L8'6VS'| 00°LLLY16°0L 2T'908'91G¥L ¥.'626'908'L 8¥°088'60LCL S3INN3ATIY IVLOL (S
%Y ve- 00°EvL'e88 00°189'¢62 00'29+'685 vE'06E'9vE’L 00°0€€'c8Z $€°090'€90'L 66.8-0098 anuanay [e007 JaYI0 (¢
%8°8¢- 00°€84'2S9 00'v65°L2S 00'688'¥2Z1 9€°0€6'G90'} 09'902'G.9 9/°€2L'06€ 6658-00€8 anuanay ajels Byl (g
%9'81- 00'v€Z'ELS 00'vET'ELS 000 Ly'0v6'€0L v1°22y'0L9 £€'816'€E 6628-0018 anuansy [esapad (2
%2 6" 00°0€L°SSE0} 00'¥0€'GS 1 00'9z+'00Z°01 G0'S¥S'00¥ L1 00°296°LL) G0'8.5'22T'LL 6608-0L08 s92Inos 4407 (1
SANN3IATY V|
480 (d) () (a) (2) (a) (v) sapo) S9p0J 32.n0Say uonduasaqg
uwnjon I+ q’lod pajoulysay pajausalun g +V |02 pajalysay pajaLsalun 193lq0
#1a % pung |ejoL pun4 [ejo]
19bpng 12-0202 S[enjay pajipneun 02-6102
193[q0 Aq sainypuadxg
10 wio4 pajoulsay pue pajoujsalun

Auno) ewouos
Alejuswia|3 uoiun JonjO-18uld



WV L1:0l 0202/8/6 -pajuld

Z obed

(0202/01/£0 AeY) B-puny :aji4
0'2'0202 - a1emyos Buioday [eldueuld SOVS
uoneanp3 jo ydsQ eluloyijen

%6°€E (62°092'2) (62°092'2) 000 (29'889°1) (£9'889'1) 000 0616 Junowy psjendolddeun/paubisseun
%€'9- 00°,29'05S 000 00°,29'0SS 00'625°L8S 00°0 00'625'L8S 6816 Saljulepsoun dIWouU02] 10) anISSaY
pajeudoiddeun/paubisseun (a
%091~ 8€'¥00'081'C 000 8€'¥00'081'C 8€'€9/'965'C 000 8€'€92'965C 0816 sjuswubissy 1ayl0
paubissy (p
%L'9- 00°098°zeY't 000 00°098°zEV’L 00°086'GES’| 000 00°086°GES’L 0916 sjuswwwo) Jayio
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 0S.6 sjuswabuely uojezl|igels
papiwwo) (o
%C v- 0€°608'98 0€°608'98 000 89'GZG'GG| 89'GZG'GS1 000 0.6 pajUsay (q
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 6116 siBYio IV
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 €16 swa}| piedaid m
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 ZLL6 sal0)S
%00 00°000'¢ 000 00°000'¢ 00°000'¢ 000 00°000°¢ 1116 yseD Buinjonsy
a|qepuadsuo (e
aouejeg pun4 buipu3 jo syusuodwon
%8°¢CL- 6€°9€0°LGZ'Y 10°G¥S'¥8 8€°L6¥'991 'Y 6€601'L.8'Y L0°LEB'ES] gezLe'eTl'y (@14 +3) og unr ‘souejeg Buipuz (z
%16 6€°60L'LL8'V L0°LEQ'ESL gezLz'eeL'y 9L'26V'0LY'Y 69°00L°2€€ L0'C6E'EEL'Y (P14 +91.4) soueleg Buluuibag pajsnipy (3
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 G6.6 sjuswajejsay Jayio (p
%16 6€'601°L.8'Y L0°LEB'ES] ge'zle'eel'y 9L'26V'0LY'Y 69°001°LEE L0'26EEEL Y (aLd + eLd) paypny - | Ainr jo sy (0
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 £6.6 sjusunsnipy upny (q
%16 6E'60L°L.8'V L0°LEB'EGL geelLz'eel'y 9.'26V'0LY'Y 69°001°L€€ L0'26E'EEL'Y 1616 pajipneun - | Ainr jo sy (e
aoueleg pun4 Buuuibag (1
S3IAYISIY ‘IONVIVE ANNd 4
%0v52-  [(00°€207929) (0026269) (00°182°9G5) £€9°919'90¥ (89°€9z’e81) 1£°088'68S (¥a + O) 3ONVIVE
AaNNd NI (3SV3¥93a) ISYIUONI L3N T
420 (&) (2) (@ (2) (a) (v) Sapod S9p0J adunosay uondussaqg
uwnjon 3+Q°02 pajoLysay pajouysalun g+V 02 pajolysay pajoLsalun 193[q0
#a% pung [ejol pund [ejoL
1obpng 1z-0z02 S[enjdy paypneun 0g-6L02 -
193[qQ Aq sainjipuadxg
L0 wio4 pajouisay pue pajouisalun Auno) ewouos

0000000 0280 6+

pun4 [eiaus9

S[eNOY pajipneun

Aiejuswsa|3 uoiun JeAIO-1aulg



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 13
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 153,948.54 230,000.00 49.4%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 10,474.91 18,000.00 71.8%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 45,962.92 66,000.00 43.6%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 210,386.37 314,000.00 49.2%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certiﬁcated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 79,202.69 84,994.00 7.3%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 25,600.85 29,973.00 17.1%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 206,233.41 257,500.00 24.9%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 6,179.87 6,200.00 0.3%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 317,216.82 378,667.00 19.4%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (106,830.45) (64,667.00) -39.5%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 106,830.45 64,667.00 -39.5%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 106,830.45 64,667.00 -39.5%
62

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020)

Dann 1



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Unaudited Actuals

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

49 70870 0000000

Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 13
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.0%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 2,589.81 2,589.81 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,589.81 2,589.81 0.0%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 2,589.81 2,589.81 0.0%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,589.81 2,589.81 0.0%
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 2,000.00 0.00 -100.0%
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 589.81 2,589.81 339.1%
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
Dama 2 - P . - am

File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020}



Unaudited Actuals

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev D3/10/20201

Pasn 4

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Deferred Maintenance Fund 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 14
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 6,462.17 0.00 -100.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 6,462.17 0.00 -100.0%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 6,462.17 0.00 -100.0%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
64



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Deferred Maintenance Fund 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 14
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 6,462.17 0.00 -100.0%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 321,137.71 327,599.88 2.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 321,137.71 327,599.88 2.0%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 321,137.71 327,599.88 2.0%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 327,599.88 327,599.88 0.0%

Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 327,599.88 327,599.88 0.0%
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

65

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020} Dana 2 mtao g Amaaa s



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 17
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 193.72 0.00 -100.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 193.72 0.00 -100.0%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 193.72 0.00 -100.0%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
66

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020)

Danmn 4



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

49 70870 0000000

Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 17
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 193.72 0.00 -100.0%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 9,627.14 9,820.86 2.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 9,627.14 9,820.86 2.0%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 9,627.14 9,820.86 2.0%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 9,820.86 9,820.86 0.0%
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 9,820.86 9,820.86 0.0%
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%
67

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/202M

[ P



Unaudited Actuals

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File® fund-h (Rev N3/10/2020\

Prnna 4

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 20
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 12,740.90 0.00 -100.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 12,740.90 0.00 -100.0%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 12,740.90 0.00 -100.0%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
68



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 20
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 12,740.90 0.00 -100.0%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 633,160.63 645,901.53 2.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 633,160.63 645,901.53 2.0%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 633,160.63 645,901.53 2.0%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 645,901.53 645,901.53 0.0%
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%
¢) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 645,901.53 645,901.53 0.0%
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File* fiind-h (Rev N3/10/202M

Paca



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Unaudited Actuals
Building Fund

49 70870 0000000

Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 21
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 18.40 0.00 -100.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 18.40 0.00 -100.0%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 18.40 0.00 -100.0%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
70

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/07/2019)

Pana 4



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Building Fund 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 21
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 18.40 0.00 -100.0%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 915.01 933.41 2.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 915.01 933.41 2.0%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 915.01 933.41 2.0%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 933.41 933.41 0.0%
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 933.41 933.41 0.0%
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%
71

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File' fuind-d (Rav 02/07/201Q)

Pacan



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Unaudited Actuals
Capital Facilities Fund

49 70870 0000000

Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 25
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 71,799.90 5,000.00 -93.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 71,799.90 5,000.00 -93.0%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 1,766.00 12,658.00 616.8%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 688.00 5,039.00 632.4%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 17,899.14 0.00 -100.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,192,645.63 0.00 -100.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,212,998.77 17,697.00 -98.5%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (1,141,198.87) (12,697.00) -98.9%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%
72

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File® fuind-d (Rev 02/07/2010)

Maca 4



Unaudited Actuals .
49 70870 0000000

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Capital Facilities Fund
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 25
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (1,131,198.87) (2,697.00) -99.8%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 1,899,455.13 768,256.26 -59.6%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,899,455.13 768,256.26 -59.6%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 1,899,455.13 768,256.26 -59.6%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 768,256.26 765,559.26 -0.4%
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 768,256.26 760,559.26 -1.0%
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 5,000.00 New|
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%
73

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/07/2019)

Racan



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 51
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 20,005.10 0.00 -100.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 2,744,699.84 0.00 -100.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,764,704.94 0.00 -100.0%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 2,375,375.00 2,575,675.00 8.4%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,375,375.00 2,575,675.00 8.4%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 389,329.94 (2,575,675.00) -761.6%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%
74

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File* fuind-d (Rav N2/n7/201Q\



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 51
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 389,329.94 (2,575,675.00) -761.6%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 2,451,966.67 2,841,296.61 15.9%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,451,966.67 2,841,296.61 15.9%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 2,451,966.67 2,841,296.61 15.9%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,841,296.61 265,621.61 -90.7%
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 2,841,296.61 265,621.61 -90.7%
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%
75

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/07/2019)

Pane 2



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

4970870 0000000
Form A

Description

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

2020-21 Budget

P-2 ADA

Annual ADA

Funded ADA

Estimated P-2
ADA

Estimated
Annual ADA

Estimated
Funded ADA

A. DISTRICT

(=2

1.

Total District Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (includes Necessary Small School
ADA)

. Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered

Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)

. Total Basic Aid Open Enroliment Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)
Total, District Regular ADA

(Sum of Lines A1 through A3)

. District Funded County Program ADA

. County Community Schools

. Special Education-Special Day Class

. Special Education-NPS/LCI

. Special Education Extended Year

. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools

f. County School Tuition Fund

(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]
g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
(Sum of Lines A5a through A5f)

Q0o

. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA

(Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g)

. Adults in Correctional Facilities
. Charter School ADA

(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)

267.90

267.90

272.60

257.65

257.65

271.58

267.90

267.90

272.60

257.65

257.65

271.58

5.13

5.13

5.13

0.32

0.32

0.32

5.45

5.45

5.45

0.00

0.00

273.35

273.35

278.05

257.65

257.65

271.58

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018)

Page71Qf 1

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:05 AM



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

49 70870 0000000

Form A

Description

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

2020-21 Budget

P-2 ADA

Annual ADA

Funded ADA

Estimated P-2
ADA

Estimated
Annual ADA

Estimated
Funded ADA

C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

FUND 01: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.

1. Total Charter School Regular ADA

2. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C2a through C2c)
3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C3a through C3e)
4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f)

642.67 |

642.67 I

643.49

644.00J

644.0(LL

644.00

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

642.67

642.67

643.49

644.00

644.00

644.00

FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresponding

to SACS financial data reported in Fund 09 or Fund 62.

5. Total Charter School Regular ADA

6. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C6a through Cé6c¢)
7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C7a through C7e)
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f)

102.79 |

102.79 |

102.79 ﬂ

102.00

102.00

102.00

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

102.79

102.79

102.79

102.00

102.00

102.00

9. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
(Sum of Lines C4 and C8)

745.46

745.46

746.28

746.00

746.00

746.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018)

PageZZf 1

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:05 AM



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

GENERAL FUND

Current Expense Formula/Minimum Classroom Compensation

49 70870 0000000
Form CEA

Current Expense Reductions Reductions Current Expense-
PART1 - CURRENT Total Expense Reductions of Education (Extracted) (Overrides)* Part Il
EXPENSE FORMULA for Year EDP| (SeeNote1) |EDP| (Col1-Col2) |EDP| (See Note 2) (See Note2)  |EDP| (Col3-Col4) |EDP
(1) No. (2) No. (3) No. (4a) (4b) No. (5) No.
1000 - Certificated
Salaries 4,875,547.52 | 301 0.00 | 303 4,875,547.52 | 305 12,575.00 12,575.00 | 307 4,862,972.52 | 309
2000 - Classified Salaries 1,912,764.90 | 311 0.00 | 313 1,.912,764.90 | 315 102,576.25 102,576.25 | 317 1,810,188.65 | 319
3000 - Employee Benefits 3,063,597.19 | 321 48,943.42 | 323 3,014,653.77 | 325 44,301.25 44,301.25 | 327 2,970,352.52 | 329
4000 - Books, Supplies
Equip Replace. (6500) 984,646.20 | 331 0.00 | 333 984,646.20 | 335 190,026.17 190,026.17 | 337 794,620.03 | 339
5000 - Services. . . &
7300 - Indirect Costs 3,126,902.96 | 341 0.00 | 343 3,126,902.96 | 345 605,570.37 2,070,078.83 | 347 1,056,824.13 | 349
TOTAL 13,914,515.35 | 365 TOTAL 11,494 957.85 | 369
Note 1 - In Column 2, report expenditures for the following programs: Nonagency (Goals 7100-7199), Community Services (Goal 8100), Food Services
(Function 3700), Fringe Benefits for Retired Persons (Objects 3701-3702), and Facilities Acquisition & Construction (Function 8500).
Note 2 - In Column 4, report expenditures for: Transportation (Function 3600), Lottery Expenditures (Resource 1100), Special Education Students in
Nonpublic Schools (Function 1180), and other federal or state categorical aid in which funds were granted for expenditures in a program not
incurring any teacher salary expenditures or requiring disbursement of the funds without regard to the requirements of EC Section 41372.
* If an amount (even zero) is entered in any row of Column 4b or in Line 13b, the form uses only the values in Column 4b and Line 13b rather than the
values in Column 4a and Line 13a.
EDP
PART Il: MINIMUM CLASSROOM COMPENSATION (Instruction, Functions 1000-1999) Object No.
1. Teacher Salaries as Per EC 41011, . .. .. .. oo 1100 3.924,570.57 | 375
2. Salaries of Instructional Aides Per EC 41011 ... . ... ... . i 2100 567,218.85 | 380
Bi STRS. « i st rrs s o 50857555 5 mmn st o mmimminn ma n e i o a6 6 n e B B RS B e 5 S S S e s h oo o] 3101 & 3102 1,135,915.58 | 382
A PERS. 3201 & 3202 119,930.06 | 383
5. OASDI - Regular, Medicare and ARErNative. . . ... ......... oo 3301 & 3302 105,935.57 | 384
6. Health & Welfare Benefits (EC 41372)
(Include Health, Dental, Vision, Pharmaceutical, and
ANNUItY PIaNS). . ..o 3401 & 3402 628,845.43 | 385
7. Unemployment INSUFANCE. . . ... ..o oue ittt 3501 & 3502 2,266.59 | 390
8. Workers' Compensation INSUMANCE. . . ... ... ..ottt 3601 & 3602 63,233.32 | 392
9. OPEB, Active Employees (EC 41372). ... ... ... it 3751 & 3752 0.00
10. Other Benefits (EC 22310). . .. ...ttt 3901 & 3902 30,000.00 | 393
11. SUBTOTAL Salaries and Benefits (SUM LINES 1-10). . ..ot T 6,577,915.97 | 395
12. Less: Teacher and Instructional Aide Salaries and
Benefits deducted in COIUMN 2. .. ... ... 0.00
13a. Less: Teacher and Instructional Aide Salaries and
Benefits (other than Lottery) deducted in Column da (Extracted). . . ... ............ . oo 275.29 | 396
b. Less: Teacher and Instructional Aide Salaries and
Benefits (other than Lottery) deducted in Column 4b (OVErrides) . . . . ... ... ... . i 0.00 | 396
14. TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEFITS. .. . . 0.ttt et et e e 6,677,915.97 | 397
15.  Percent of Current Cost of Education Expended for Classroom
Compensation (EDP 397 divided by EDP 369) Line 15 must
equal or exceed 60% for elementary, 55% for unified and 50%
for high school districts to avoid penalty under provisions of EC 41372, ... ... ... .. ..o 57.22%

16. District is exempt from EC 41372 because it meets the provisions

of EC 41374. (If exempt, enter'X') . . . .. .. .ttt

PART lll: DEFICIENCY AMOUNT

provisions of EC 41374.

A deficiency amount (Line 5) is only applicable to districts not meeting the minimum classroom compensation percentage required under EC 41372 and not exempt under the

1. Minimum percentage required (60% elementary, 55% unified, 50% high) . . ... .. .........ooooroor 60.00%
2 Percentage spent by this district (Part Il, Line 15) . ... ...t 57.22%
3 Percentage below the minimum (Part lll, Line 1 minus LiN@ 2) . . . ... ..o oo 2.78%
4 District's Current Expense of Education after reductions in columns 4a or 4b (Part I, EDP LS T LT L T T 11,494,957.85
5 Deficiency Amount (Part I, Line 3MeS LIN@ 4) . . ... ... ..ottt 319,559.83

PART IV: Explanation for adjustments entered in Part I, Column 4b (required)

Costs to County Office of Ed and Rincon Valley Partners for education of special ed students.

78

Pana 1 Af2

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: cea (Rev 03/24/2020)



Unaudited Actuals
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County GENERAL FUND Form CEA
Current Expense Formula/Minimum Classroom Compensation

California Dept of Education 79
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: cea (Rev 03/24/2020) Paae 2 of 2

Drintad: Q/Q1ANAN 4N-N7 ARA



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Unaudited Actuals
2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

49 70870 0000000

Sonoma County LOTTERY REPORT Form L
Revenues, Expenditures and
Ending Balances - All Funds
Lottery:
Lottery: Transferred to Instructional
Unrestricted Other Resources Materials
Description Object Codes (Resource 1100) | for Expenditure | (Resource 6300)* Totals
A. AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR
1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 34,371.73 135,995.27 170,367.00
2. State Lottery Revenue 8560 159,618.45 58,301.73 217,920.18
3. Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. Transfers from Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. Contributions from Unrestricted
Resources (Total must be zero) 8980 0.00 0.00
6. Total Available ]
(Sum Lines A1 through A5) 193,990.18 0.00 194,297.00 388,287.18
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00
2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 99,413.85 99,413.85
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 39,731.56 39,731.56
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 17,275.88 180,855.81 198,131.69
5. a. Services and Other Operating
Expenditures (Resource 1100) 5000-5999 4,254.49 4,254.49
b. Services and Other Operating 5000-5999, except
Expenditures (Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800
c. Duplicating Costs for
Instructional Materials
(Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800
6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00
7. Tuition 7100-7199 0.00 0.00
8. Interagency Transfers Out
a. To Other Districts, Count
Offices, and Charter Schgols —;22;12772218217722%; 0.00 0.00
b. To JPAs and All Others 7213,7223,
7283,7299 0.00 0.00
9. Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399
10. Debt Service 7400-7499 0.00 0.00
11. All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00
12. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Sum Lines B1 through B11 ) 160,675.78 0.00 180,855.81 341,531.59
C. ENDING BALANCE
(Must equal Line A6 minus Line B12) 979Z 33,314.40 0.00 13,441.19 46,755.59
D. COMMENTS:

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legislature as required by Control Section 24.60 of the Budget Act.

*Pursuant to Government Code Section 8880.4(a)(2)(B) and the definition in Education Code Section 60010(h), Resource 6300 funds are to be used for the
purchase of instructional materials only. Any amounts in the shaded cells of this column should pe reviewed for appropriateness.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: lot (Rev 02/24/2016)

80

Paae 1 of 1

Printad- Q/2/902N0 10-N7 AN



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 4970870 0000000
Sonoma County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
Funds 01, 09, and 62 2019-20
Section | - Expenditures Goals Functions | Objects Expenditures
A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 15,893,457.17

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 815,432.91

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)

1. Community Services All 5000-5999 | 1000-7999 0.00
. All except All except
2. Capital Outlay 7100-7199 | 5000-5999 | 6000-6999 111,612.37
5400-5450,
] 5800, 7430-
3. Debt Service All 9100 7439 0.00
4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 0.00
5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 588,030.29
9100 7699
6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00
All except
5000-5999, v
7. Nonagency 7100-7199 | 9000-9999 | 1000-7999 0.00

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 0.00
9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Manually entered. Must not include
Presidentially declared disaster expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or
D2. 8,639.97
10. Total state and local expenditures not
allowed for MOE calculation
(Sum lines C1 through C9) 708,282.63
1000-7143,
D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439
1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services minus
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) Al All 8000-8699 106,830.45

. . . Manually entered. Must not include
2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities expenditures in lines A or D1. 0.00

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 14,476,572.08

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page1T Printed: 9/8/2020 10:08 AM



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 0000000

Sonoma County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
2019-20
Annual ADA/

Section Il - Expenditures Per ADA Exps. Per ADA
A. Average Daily Attendance

(Form A, Annual ADA column, sum of lines A6 and C9)

1,018.81

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 14,209.30
Section Il - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA
A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official CDE

MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, CDE has

adjusted the prior year base to 90 percent of the preceding prior year

amount rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.)

14,648,547.42 14,429.79
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for
LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section 1V) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1) 14,648,547.42 14,429.79
B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 13,183,692.68 12,986.81
C. Current year expenditures (Line |.E and Line I1.B) 14,476,572.08 14,209.30
D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)

(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00
E. MOE determination

(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met

is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If

either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is

incomplete.)
F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero

(Line D divided by Line B)

(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2021-22 may

be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Pag?

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:08 AM




Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section lll, Line A.1)
Total Expenditures
Description of Adjustments Expenditures Per ADA
Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: esmoe (Rev 03/01/2018) Page33 Printed: 9/8/2020 10:08 AM



Unaudited Actuals
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR

Part | - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs

California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services
costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The
calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated

using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage

occupied by general administration.

A. Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
(Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 530,567.69
2. Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll
a. Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a

contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800.
b. If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general
administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

B. Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
(Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 10,112,273.74

C. Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration
(Line A1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative) (See Part Ill, Lines A5 and AB) 5.25%

Part Il - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs

When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition
to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal" or "abnormal
or mass" separation costs.

Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board
policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs
may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation
costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter
these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool.

Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their
employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden
Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general
administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool.

A. Normal Separation Costs (optional)
Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that
were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400
rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part Il from base costs to the indirect cost pool.
Retain supporting documentation.

B. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)
Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to
unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be
moved in Part Il from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero. 0.00

California Dept of Education 84
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 9/8/2020 10:08 AM



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR
Part lll - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise)
A. Indirect Costs
1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
(Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9) 723,814.61
2. Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
(Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10) 4,715.00
3. External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999) 21,041.35
4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 65,274.71
6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
(Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 0.00
7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Plus: Normal Separation Costs (Part ll, Line A) 0.00
b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part Il, Line B) 0.00
8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b) 814,845.67
9. Carry-Forward Adjustment (Part IV, Line F) 31,472.32
10. Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line A8 plus Line A9) 846,317.99
B. Base Costs
1. Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 9,875,905.91
2. Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 1,506,028.80
3. Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 970,489.44
4. Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
5. Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 0.00
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999,
minus Part lll, Line A4) 204,573.18
8. External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
objects 5000-5999, minus Part lIl, Line A3) 0.00
9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)
(Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,
resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 1,781.66
10.  Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)
(Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals
except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
11. Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)
(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part IIl, Line Ab) 1,178,053.11
12.  Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)
(Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part lIl, Line A6) 0.00
13.  Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Less: Normal Separation Costs (Part Il, Line A) 0.00
b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part Il, Line B) 0.00
14.  Student Activity (Fund 08, functions 4000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
15, Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
16.  Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00
17.  Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 112,997.39
18.  Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00
19. Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B18, minus Line B13a) 13,939,829.49
C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment
(For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)
(Line A8 divided by Line B19) 5.85%
D. Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate
(For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2021-22 see www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aclic)
(Line A10 divided by Line B19) 6.07%
California Dept of Education 85

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 2 of 3 Printed: 9/8/2020 10:08 AM



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR
Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment
The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates
the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the
approved rate was based.
Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for
use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs,
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than
the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A.
A. Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part lll, Line A8) 814,845.67
B. Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s)
1. Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year (5,530.86)
2. Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any 0.00
C. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year
1. Under-recovery: Part Ill, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect
cost rate (5.58%) times Part IIl, Line B19); zero if negative 31,472.32
2. Over-recovery: Part lll, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of
(approved indirect cost rate (5.58%) times Part lll, Line B19) or (the highest rate used to
recover costs from any program (5.58%) times Part 11, Line B19); zero if positive 0.00
D. Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2) 31,472.32
E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year
Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which
the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that
the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.
Option 1. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part Ill, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: not applicable
Option 2. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part IIl, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years: not applicable
Option 3. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part IlI, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years: not applicable
LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3
1
F. Carry-forward adjustment used in Part lll, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if
Option 2 or Option 3 is selected) 31,472.32
California Dept of Education 86

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 3 of 3

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:08 AM



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2019-20 Unaudited Act

uals 49 70870 0000000

Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs Form ICR

Eligible Expenditures
(Objects 1000-5999

Approved indirect cost rate: 5.58%
Highest rate used in any program: 5.58%

Indirect Costs Charged Rate

Fund Resource except Object 5100) (Objects 7310 and 7350) Used
01 3010 241,207.00 11,415.00 4.73%
01 3310 174,251.00 8,707.00 5.00%
01 4035 68,257.07 2,267.00 3.32%
01 4127 28,414.00 1,586.00 5.58%
01 4203 32,463.00 649.00 2.00%
01 6500 1,908,367.05 106,487.00 5.58%
01 8150 405,238.32 22,612.00 5.58%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: icr (Rev 02/10/2020)

PagegT)f 1

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:08 AM



WV 80:01 020¢/8/6 -pajuld

| abed

(9102/50/50 Aay) 1od :a)i4

0'2'0202 - @1emyog buipoday

[eldUeUl] SOVS

uoieanpd jo ydaq eiuloyien)

LILSY'€68°S1 11°€Lb°908 08°ST6'SPO°T 97850 1¥0° V1 11°965°92LT SITOVPICTL saInjipuadxy spuny S[00YydS
19)1eyD pue puny [BIUIS) [BIO],
00°0 000 (0s€L 1910
‘01TL uonounyg ‘z9 ‘60 ‘10 Spun4 Jo 19N)
spun, J19y3Q 03 sI3Jsuel], 1500 102.11py][
09°L01°€T 09°L01°€T 000 000 (& 2ur “JvD sawn [0 2ul] DVD
+ € uwnjo)]) uonepuno, ‘erdye) spuny
quawidoaaa pIyD ‘uoneonpy 3npy Reliile}
¥L'098°769 ¥L'09869 08InQ 1BYI0
LETIOILI LETIOTII uonon1suo) 79 uonisinboy sanijoe]
000 000 asdidjug
000 000 S9IIAIDS POO,]
§150D Y10
000 000 000 00°0 000 S901A19S JUAWAO[2AS(] PUB 218D P[IYD 00S8
000 000 000 000 000 $30IAIOS Ajunwiio) 0018
00°0 000 000 000 000 12110 - AouageuoN 0S1L
000 000 000 000 000 [euonjeonpy - £ousBeuoN 011L
s[e0D 1Y
000 000 000 000 000 (d/D0¥) 81d/11D [euonednao( [euorday 0009
TCEIVI61°E ¥6'T69°91¢ 8€°0TLVL6T 17°S8P €81 LU'SETI6LT uoneonpy [eroadS| 666S-000S
000 000 00°0 000 000 uoneonpy JUBISIA 0S8t
¥¥°760°S01 Y9 SETL 08°9S6°L6 000 08°9S6°L6 Jendul[ig 09LY
000 000 000 000 000 uoneonpy [edIUYIJ L, J93IBD NPy 0£9100
000 000 000 000 000 UoljedNpy [BUONIALIOD NPV 029¥
000 000 000 000 000 s10jua) Apmi§ juspuadapuy Jnpy 019t
000 000 000 000 000 NPV ‘uoneonpy Je[n3oy] 011¥
000 000 000 000 000 uonedNnpy [ed1UY |, 1931eD) 008¢€
000 000 000 000 000 sweigold A1epuodag pazijeroads 00LE
000 000 000 000 000 sjooyos Ae Aunwuwio) 0SS¢
000 000 000 000 000 sjooyos AjuniioddQ 00v€
L9°60¥°STE 16 ¥60°CT 9L PIEC0E 10°66Z°19 SL'S10°6€T s193ua) ApniS judpuadapu] 00¢€€
000 00°0 000 000 000 S|OOYDS uorEnuUIuo) 00T¢
000 000 000 000 00°0 S]O0YDS dAIBUIAIY 001¢
€0 196 THH 11 1L ¥68°9LL 7£°990°599°01 63 118°8LYT €PPST981°8 T1-3] ‘uoneonpy te[n3ay 0111
000 000 000 000 000 U9)IBBISPUIY-3l] 1000
S[eon
Jeuondnaysuy
9 uwnjo) S uwnjo) + uwnjo) € uwnjo) 7 uwnjo) [ uwnjo) K1AnO YV /weidol g [e0D
(S+t+¢€109) (DO ampayog) (g 9ul] HVD YOS X € [09) (T+17109) (OV a1npsyag) (D0a arnpayog)
weidol $1S0D) J2Y10 $180D) [e101qng pajeso||y pagiey) 10a11Qg
£q 350D [B10], Ulwpy [enua) $150D 10211

Hoday 3509 welboid

H40d wio4
0000000 04804 6%

Spun4 s|0oy9S JaUeyD pue pun4 |eiauss)
0¢-610¢
S[enjoy psjipneun

Auno) ewouos
Aejuswa|g uolun 1oA10-Jsuld



WV 80:0L 0202/8/6 :pajulid

00S8 PUT 008 5]L03 10J 661£-001L Suonouny ,

| abed

(9102/50/50 ney) J1od :a)1g

020202 - auemyos Buipoday |eloueuly SOVS

uoneonp3 Jo idaQ elusojiien

[srzovyictn 000 000 000 000 000 £8'96L'881 L1°960°58¢ 01526 ['90°ZL0"T01 6L'656'80¢€ 0TTIZ1ZE01 §150D pagiey) 132.11q [EI0L
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 CEEINE 0058
juswdoaaaq pue 218D pliy)
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S9OIAISS Ajjunwwio)) 0018
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 19Y10 - KouaGeuoN 0S1L
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 [euonieanpy - KouafeuoN or1L
Sjgon ELl o)
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 4004 0009
LUSETT6LT 000 000 000 €8'96L'881 6€'919'66T 000 000 18°9€8°791 Y1'586'6€1'T uonednpy [eads|  6665-0005
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uoneanpy WeISIN 058t
08'956'L6 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 08'956'L6 [enSung 09LY
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uoneonpyg 0€9Y
[E21UYI3 [ J92IRD) INPY
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 UoLEdNpH [EUOND31I0D) 1NPY 0T9¢
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sIIW) o_mwu
Aprug uapuadapuy inpy 2
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 NPy ‘uonesnpg Jejnday [z
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uoneanpy [edMYo3 ], Jaa1e) 008€
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sweidoig 00L€
K1epuodag pazijeadg
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sjooyag Aeq Anunwiwo) 0SS¢
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sjooyag Anunuoddg 00v€
SL'SI0%6ET 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 SL'SI0%6ET sIowa)) Apmg Juapuadapu] 00€£€
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S[00y2§ UonEnUNUO) 00z¢
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 $|00y0S 2ANEUIIY 001€
EFPST'981'8 000 000 000 000 8L'6LY'S8 01’576 90TL0'T01 86°TC19b1 ISPSTYh8'L T1-3 ‘oneanpg enioy oIl
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 u3ESIapUIy-a1d 1000
sjeon
_—:.—e_«u_r:m:—
[eoL (008 uonoun,) (oovs «(012£ 1d20x3 “666. (6665 (6661 (009¢ uonoung) | (006€ PUE 09TE | (00L UoONSUNL) (s6bz (oozz (6661 weigosd Jo adAL [e0D
-0018 suonouny) | -ooL Suonaunyg) | -00s SuOHdUNg) | -0oOY SuoKOuN.y) -01 [ € suonoun,j) -0Tkg suonouny) | -go[g suonouny) | -o0o| Suonouny)
sasea] suoneladQ pue UOHENSIUIWPY  [S30IAIRS ANunwwo))| sadiAsag Argjjiouy  |uonenodsues], idng §901A198 uonensunwpy $921n0SaY uonenswpy uondnsup
PUE S1U3Y] SAN[I9E,] | SOUBUSIUIBIA] JUE[] [eJauan woddng jidng [ooyog [euononuisuf Jay1Q | pue uoisiazadng
pue ASojouyoa ], [euononsuf
‘eipoy ‘Kreaqry
(00Q) s1s09 pabiey) 1081 Jo |Npayds
uoday 3509 welbolid
HDd wio4 Spun s|ooyds Jeuey) pue pun4 [elouss Auno9 ewouosg
0000000 0480/ 61 026102 Kieyuswa|3 uojun 18AI0-18UId

slenjoy payipneun




WY 80:01L 020¢/8/6 :p8juld | abed (91.02/50/50 Aoy) 4od :aji4
0°2°0202 - a1emyog Buipoday |eoueuld SOYS
uoljeonp3 Jo jdaq eluloyjen

[1°965°9TL°C vy TTIiI61 T8LTEEYT'T S8'SY1T6T 1 §150D 310ddng pajed0[[y [€10],
000 000 (19 pue ¢[ spuny) eusieje) -
000 000 000 000 (Z1 puny) yuawdo[aasq pIiyd eE
000 000 (11 puny) uoneanpg }npy ~x
spuny 13y}
000 000 000 000 "SOAS 1uswdo[eAR pue d1B) Py 0058
000 000 000 000 $901A19S AjlUnwiio) 0018
000 000 000 000 10 - KousGeuoN 0SIL
000 000 000 000 [euonesnpy - AousgeuoN OLIL
S[e0D) 1310
000 000 000 000 d/00d 0009
1T°S8¥°€81 000 [¥'L10°99 08°LOV'LII (100§ 01 payedo[[e) uonesnpy [eroadg 6665-000S
000 000 000 000 uoneonpy JueIsIN 0581
000 000 000 000 [enduifig 09LY
000 000 000 000 uonesnpy [ed1uyds ], I8ale) 3npy 0€9v
00°0 000 000 000 uoneonpy.[euo}daLo) 1npy 029t
000 000 000 000 s1a1ua) Apnig juspuadapuy J[npy 019¥
000 000 000 000 Hnpy ‘uoneonpy Je[ngaoy Orly
000 000 000 000 uonednpy [edIUYI9 |, IoaIe) 008¢
000 000 000 000 swer3old A1epuodsg paziferoadg 00LE
000 000 000 000 sjooyog Ae Lrunwuio) 08S¢
000 000 000 000 s[ooydg Aytunpoddo 00¥¢
10°66T19 000 0I'160°C1 16°'L0T°CS s1a1ua) Apnjg juspuadapu] 00¢€¢€
000 000 000 000 S[OOYJ§ uonenunuoy) 00¢C¢
000 000 000 000 S[OOYDS sAljRWIA Y 001¢
68 118°8LY°T Yy TTIC161 1€61T691°T vLIOLYTTIT T1—>] ‘uoneonpy Je[nsay OITI
000 000 000 000 uaMe3Iopury-aid 1000
S[e0n) [euOnINIISUT
[e10], pauodsuer], sprdng S]IU[) WOOISSB[) sjus[eAINbg owir [0, weisoad Jo odK], [e0D)
(4v°dDd wio ] uo ndur sioyoej uo paseq) s1s0) 1oddng pajesoy

(OV) sis09 poddng pajeoojly Jo ajnpayos
Hoday 3s0) weiboig
¥Od wio4 Spun4 sjooyss Japey) pue pun4 |eisuas) Auno) ewouog
0000000 02807 6¥ 0z-6102 Areyuswas|3 uoun JenijO-1suld
slenjoy paypneun

90



NV 60:0L 020Z/8/6 :psjulld | ebed (1102/¥2/S0 Aay) Jod :a)14
0'2°020z - 1iemyos Buniodsy [eoueul4 SOVS

uonesnp3 jo ydag elusoyen

91

%8T L (@/SV) $150D P3JeIO[[V puE pasiey)) JI3L( 03 $150)) UOPEHSIUIMIPY [EHUS.) JO ONEY
80°SLT8SEVI (SO + €9) §150D pajedo[[V pue pasiey) Jooaiq [BI0L, A
T8°9ICLIE Spun, I9Y1Q Ul s3s0) pasiey) 19aII(] [I0], 6
00°0 (0016 1d99X2 “6665-0001 S1991Q0 S 2 61 Spun,) uonepunoy ¥
T8°9ITLIE (0016 1d29X2 “6665-0001 S199IQ0 ‘19 2 £ Spuny) eualfe) ¢
00'0 (0016 1do9Xd “6665-0001 S1991Q0 ¢ T pun,) Juawdoerd(q Pl <
00°0 (0016 1d99X2 “6665-0001 S199IQ0 1] puny) uoneonpy npy |

spuny JI3y3Q ul §)§0) pagaey) 12Iq D
9T'8S0°TH0 V1 Spun S[00Y§ IoMeyD) pue pun, [eISUSD) UI §)S00) PAJeoO[[y pue pagiey)) 109IL(] [B10] €
11°965°92L°C (Ter0, “Z uumjo) YDJ WI0,] WOIJ) S)S0)) pajedo[V [B10], ¢
ST TP VICTT (10, °T uumjo) YDJ WHO,J WOIJ) §)S0)) pasiey)) 1091i(] [B10], 1

Spuny S[ooysg§ J1d31ey) pue puny [BIUIL Ul §)S07) PajEdIO[[V pue pagiey) 11 g
08°ST6°SH0°1 Spun, S[00Yd§ Io)rey ) pue pun, [eIoUSD) UI $1SO)) UOLRISIUIWIPY [BUS)) [B10] S
00 SILY (666L V
-0001 $3199[90 0000 180D “00LL wOBOUN 79 PUE ‘6() [ SPUN]) SUISSI00I] BJR(] POZI[ENUS))
LT965°STL (666L-0001 $193[Q0 0000 ¢
180D “01zL 3d99%3 009.-00TL SUOHOUN] 79 PUE ‘6 ‘[ () SPUN,]) UOBRNSIUIWPY [EIoUaD) 18I0
SEIY01IT (666L-0001 $192[90 ‘0006 ¢
PU® 6669-0000 S[BOD “T61L-061L SUONOUN] ‘79 PUB ‘() ‘() SPUN,]) SHPNY [BIOUBUL] [BUIOIXE]
81°€LS V6T (666L-0001 $192[90 ‘0006 |
PU® 6669-0000 S[EOD “081,-001L Suonoun ‘z9 pue ‘6( ‘10 spun,j) juspusiuniadng pue preog
Spuny S[ooyag I33aey) pue puny [eI3UdL) Ul §1S0)) UORIISIUTWPY [eUW) VY
(Ov9) s1s0) uonelsiulwpy [eqjuad Jo a|npsyoss
¥Od wlio4 uoday 1509 welboid funo) ewouog
0000000 0480/ 6% 0Z-610¢ Aeyuswia|g uolun 38AI0-Jauld

s[enjoy pajipneun



WY 60:0L 020Z/8/6 :Palulid | obed (1102/t72/S0 AeY) Jod 814
0'2°020¢ - 2iemyog Buiodsy [eoueuld SOVS
uoleonp3 jo ideQ elulojije)
[1°€L7908 ¥ 098469 LETIOTII 000 000 §150D) 1PYIQ [¥I0],
¥L°09869 ¥L 09869 (666L-0001 $199190)
[sliTe R eliile)
LETIOTIL LETIIIL (0059-0001 $199[Q0)
uoiodNIISu0Y) 29 UoNISINboy sani[Ioe,]
000 000 (0059 PUE 00+9 ‘6665-0001 S193[qQ)
asudiojuyg
000 000 (00S9 PUE 0019 ‘6665-0001 S193[q0)
SDIAISG POOY
[eloL (6666-0006 SuonduN,) (0058 uonoun,y) (0009 uonoun,) (00L¢ uonoun,]) Aanoy jo odKL,
o3inQ Iay10 uonoNIsSuU0) asudiouyg S30IAISG P00,
2 uonIsinbay sani[Ior,]
(D0) 81809 1810 Jo 3Npayos
Hodeay 3500 weiboly
¥Od wio4 Spun4 sjooyog Jauey) pue pun4 [elausac) Ajuno) ewouog

0000000 0/80% 6%

S[ENY pajipneun

0¢-610¢C

Kiejuswa|g uolun 18Al0-Iauld

92



NV 60:0L 020Z/8/6 :Pajuld 1 jo | abed (9L02/50/50 AaY) Jesad :3j14
02°0202 - aiemyos Buipoday [eoueuly SOVS

uoneonp3 Jo jdaq elusoyed

00°001 000 £8°701 0S°6¥ 0S'6t 000 0S°6% $10398,] UOLEBIO[Y [BI0OL D
(19 % €1 spuny) euaiRze) --
| - i ) ) (21 puny) yuauidoparsd ppyd e .
(11 puny) uoneonpg Jnpy =
uondisaq spuny 1yjQ
§391A19G Juawdo[aAd( PUE 2180 PIYD) 0058
5901198 Ajlunuiuio)) 0018
1910 - AouaFeuoN 0SIL
[euonesnpy - Aouadeuon 0l1L
uoydisaq S[gon 1310
d/00d 0009
'S oSt oSy 0S¥ (T00g 03 paresoyje) uonesnpy [e1oads 6665-000S
uoneanpy JueIIN 058Y
lendurig 09LY
uonedNpH [B2IUYD3 | 12318)) JNpY 0£9%
uonEdNpy [BUOIDALIOY) J NPy 079t
s191ua) Apmig Juspuadapuy Jnpy 019%
JINpY ‘uoneonpg Ienday (U884
uonEoNpy [ESIUYD3 | JaoIe) 008¢€ %
sweidol Aiepuodag pazijeroads 00LE
s[ooyag Aeqq Kjunurwio)) 05S¢
sjooyog Anunioddp 00bE
00°I 00'C 00T 00T s121ua)) Apmig juspuadapuy 00ee
S[00YDS UonENURUO)) 00Z€
S|00YdS dAnEWANY 0o1€
00°001 LE96 00°EP 00°Ey 00ty 71— ‘uoneonpy Jendoy orIt
uauedIopury-a1g 1000
uonydrIdsaq sjeos [BuoyINIISU]
(v aulf ut sarnyipuadxa paynquustpun aie 1oy
J1 uwin[od e 10§ papasu A[UO Ik S10)98f UONEIO[]Y :9ION)
(s)101084 1d (s)1o1084 NO (s)o0eg ND (s)10104 14 (s)101084 T 14 (s)101084 F L4 (s)r01084 F L4 11809 4q (s)10308,] woyEIOY 14Uy ‘g
PrTTII61 000 T8LTEEYT'T 00'¥Lb'S0T TL98L'OVO'I 000 €1'688'6€ (ndur s1030u3 uo paseq pazedojie aq [[148) 000G PUE 0000 SIEOD
‘79 PUE ‘60 ‘10 Spuny ‘soanyipuadxy pajnqrysipun) o junowry -y
(006
(009€ uonoun,) (008 uonouny) (00v8-0018 suonouny) | 661¢-001€ Suonoun,y) (00Lt uonouny) (s6¥T-0cpc suonsuny) | (00ZZ-001¢ suonoun,)
uoneodsue] idng sas897] suonerado §991A135 Hoddng 1dng | uonensiuwpy [00YdS | $90IN0S9Y [EUOHONNSU] uonENsIUIWPY pue
PUE S)UDY SapI[Ioe,] PUE S0UBUSJUIRIN JUE] JayiQ pue AGojouyoa], |uoisiazadng [euononusuy
‘BIpIN ‘Aueiqry
fgm:w...h spidng == ===---§)u[] WwooIssB|) --~------ mmme-— i o emi === --sjudjeAnby awry-[ng soydway - - --------- [

1509 Hoddng 10 (4y) slojoe uoneoo|ly Jo a|npayss
Hoday }s0) weiboid
Spun4 sjooyss Japeyd pue pun4 [eisuas)
0c-6102
s[enjoy pajipneun

4vy0d wio4

Ajuno) ewouog
0000000 0480Z 6%

Kieyuswa|g uolun 1eAlQ-1aulg



NV 60:0L 0202/8/6 :Pajuld | jo | abey (6002/22/10 AY) Josse :9)I4
0'2°020¢ - alemyos Buipodey |eueuld SOVS
uoljeonp3 jo jdaq elusoyen
000 000 000 000 000 000 18U 'sjasse |ejlded Ajialloe adA)-ssauisng
000 000 000 000 000 000 18U ‘pajerdaidap Buieq syasse [eydeo [ejo |
000 000 000 000 000 000 uojeoaidap pajenwnode [ejo |
000 000 uswdinb3
000 000 sbuipiing
000 000 sjuswanoidw| pue
o]} co_:m_om.amﬁ_ paje|nwinddy
000 000 000 000 000 000 pajedaidap buiaq sjesse |ejdes [ejo |
000 000 juawdinby
000 000 sbuipiing
000 000 mEme>OEE_ pue’
:pejelnaidap buiaq sjesse |eyden
000 000 000 000 000 000 pajeidaidap Buieq jou sjasse [ejded [ejo
000 000 mwmhmogn_ ul JOAM
000 000 pueT
:pajernaidap bBuiaq jou sjesse [ende)
:sal)IAoY adA|-ssauisng
95°€€.'012'82 00°000'¥L2°L €¥°886'0¥€°} €1'S7.'€80'8¢2 00'606'62 €1'9€8'€50'82 19U ‘sjasse [eyided AJiAI0. |BJUSWUISA0D
61°G5¥6'015°G2 00°000'%12°) €¥'886'0¥E' | 9/'956'€8€'GZ 00'l2€'ze 9.'6€919¢°Ge Jau ‘pajerdaldap buleq sjasse |ended [ejo]
(ov'zLz'02€781) 000007121 000 (ov'zLz'9G1'L1) 00'6S¥'€E (ov'1e2'681°21) uoljeloaidap paje|nwnooe |ejo | %
(00°'%58°1L29) 00°000°29 (00'¥58'%09) 00'65¥'€E (00°cLE"8E9) juswdinb3
(826.¥'296'%1) 00°000°0€6 (82'6.¥°2E0'%1) (82'6.¥'2€0'71) sbuipiing
(89'8€6°6€2'2) 00000212 (89°'8£6'8152) (89'8€6'815°2) sjuswanoidwy pue]
o]} :o_«m_uwamo paje|nwnady
G9'L1Z'L88'EY 000 €1'886'0¥E'L 2T'622'0¥S'TY (00°8€L"L1) 2T’ L92'16S'Zy pajeioaidap Bulaq sjesse |ejdeo ejo |
€V’ L¥E'G86 €¥°0€L°9¢ 00°119'8¥6 (00'8eL’L1) 00'6¥.'656 juswdinb3
06'¥65'2E1'9E 00'852%0€'L 06'9E€'€E8'VE 06'9EECE]VE
Z€'182'862'9 2€°182'862°9 2€'182'8G.'9 sjuawanoldu| pue
:pajeroaidap bBulaq sjesse [eyden
1£'88.'669'C 000 000 1£'88.'669'C 00'885°Z 1£002269°C pajeioaldap bulaq jou sjesse [eydeo [ejo |
00885°Z 00'885°. 008852 ssaiboid ul yJop
1£°002°269°C 1€002'269' 1€002'269' pue
‘pajeroaidap Buieq jou sjesse eyde)
1SOlJIAIY jejuswiulanos)
0¢ aunp sasealda( sasealou| | Ainp sjuswaje}say L Ainp
adouejeg Buipug aouejeg [syuswisnipy aouejeg
pajpny npny pajipneun

13SSYV wlo4
0000000 0.80Z 6%

sjessy [eyde) Jo ajnpayssg
S|eENOY pajipneun 02-6102
S|enjoy psjipneun

Auno) ewouog
Aieyuswa|3 uojun 18AlO-1aUId



WV 60:01L 0202Z/8/6 :patuld } Jo | ebeg (8102/22/20 AoY) 199p 39|

02020z - a1emyog Buroday |eldueul4 SOy
uoneonpd jo jdaq eluloye

000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sajljiqel| wis)-buoj saninloe adAl-ssauisng
000 000 8|qehed seoussqy pajesuaduwion
000 000 Auger1 9340 1eN/eloL
000 000 Aiger uoisuad 1eN
000 000 1geq wia] -buo |etsuas 18Y10
000 000 8|qeAed spuog anuanay asea
000 000 s|qeAed sesea |eyde)
000 000 slqeded uonediolied jo sejeolINa)
000 000 8|qefed sueoq Buipjing |ooyos ajels
000 000 8|qehed spuog uonebijqQ |essuas)
Te)
:sa1}IAIY adAL-ssauBng
000 00'/2.'z8v'6C 00°G¥G'¥S8'L 000 o0'ziz'lee'Le 00°9€Z°009 00'9€0°2€.'0¢€ saijljiqel| wis)-buo| saniARoe [ejusuIsn0s)
000 00°G¥0'8l 00°5¥0'8l 00°Sv0'8lL s|qefed saouasqy pajesuadwo)
00'299'G60°L 00°299'G60°L (00°€92728) 00°0€6'LLL'L Aunger1 g340 1eN/eloL
00'/86'¥0Z'¥1 00'/86'v0C V) 00'8Sv'¢yl 00'625°290'v| Ajger uoisuad jeN
006€0°ZL1) 00°005°9¢ 00'6ES'€S| 00°6€G'€S| Jgeq wis]-buo |elsusn 18Y10
000 000 8|qeAed spuog anuanay asesT
000 000 8|qeAed sasea |eyde)
000 000 s|qeded uonedionied jo sajeoyiua)
000 000 s|qeAed sueo7 Buipjing |ooyog sjeis
00'¥€0°590' V| 00°000°008°L 00'¥€0°698'GL 00'966°12S 00°8€0'EYE'SL s|qefed spuog uonebiiqo |essusD
SB1JIAIJOY |BEJUBWIUIBA0D)
Jea) auQ 0¢ aunp sasealdag sasealou| L Ainp Sjusawaje}say L Ainp
UIYlIM ang sjunowy | aosuejeg Buipug aouejeg /siuawsnipy aouejeqg
pajipny Hpny pajipneun

193Q wio4
0000000 0280 6%

senlliqer] uua]-6uo Jo anpayog
S[enjoy pajipneun 0z-6102
senjoy pajipneun

Runo9 ewouos
Aejusws|3 uolun JoAlO-I8ul



Page 1

SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
9/8/2020 10:27:01 AM 49-70870-0000000
Unaudited Actuals
2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
Technical Review Checks
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Sonoma County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
0 - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

EFB-POSITIVE - (W) - Ending balance (Object 979Z) is negative for the
following resources. Please explain the cause of the negative balances and

your plan to resolve them. EXCEPTION
FUND RE SOURCE NEG. EFB
01 3220 -1,688.67

Explanation:Per CDE guidance, Resource 3220 can have a negative balance for
2019-20.

Total of negative resource balances for Fund 01 -1,688.67
OBJ-POSITIVE - (W) - The following objects have a negative balance by resource,
by fund: EXCEPTION
FUND RE SOURCE OBJECT VALUE

01 3220 9790 -1,688.67

Explanation:Per CDE guidance, Resource 3220 can have a negative balance for
2019-20.

13 5310 8660 -1,039.27
Explanation:The Cafeteria Fund generated negtative interest.

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

CURRENT-CALC-EXP - (O) - The Percent of Current Cost of Education Expended for
Classroom Compensation (Line 15 in Form CEA) is less than the allowable

percentage. EXCEPTION
Percent of Current Cost of Education

Expended for Classroom Compensation (Line 15 in Form CEA) 57.22%

Allowable percentage for Elementary 60.00%

District is exempt from EC Section 41372 as

96



Page 2
SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

49-70870-0000000-Piner-Olivet Union Elementary-Unaudited Actuals 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
9/8/2020 10:27:01 AM

reported in Current Expense (Line 16 in Form CEA). No

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

97



Unaudited Actuals
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary TABLE OF CONTENTS 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Form TC

G = General Ledger Data; S = Supplemental Data

Data Supplied For:
Form Description 2019-20 2020-21
Unaudited Budget
Actuals
01 General Fund/County School Service Fund GS GS
08 Student Activity Special Revenue Fund
09 Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund G G
10 Special Education Pass-Through Fund
11 Adult Education Fund
12 Child Development Fund
13 Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund G G
14 Deferred Maintenance Fund G G
15 Pupil Transportation Equipment Fund
17 Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay PrOJects G G
18 School Bus Emissions Reduction Fund
19 Foundation Special Revenue Fund
20 Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits G G
21 Building Fund G G
25 Capital Facilities Fund G G
30 State School Building Lease-Purchase Fund
35 County School Facilities Fund
40 Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects
49 Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units
51 Bond Interest and Redemption Fund G G
52 Debt Service Fund for Blended Component Units
53 Tax Override Fund
56 Debt Service Fund
57 Foundation Permanent Fund
61 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund
62 Charter Schools Enterprise Fund
63 Other Enterprise Fund
66 Warehouse Revolving Fund
67 Self-Insurance Fund
71 Retiree Benefit Fund
73 Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund
76 Warrant/Pass-Through Fund
95 Student Body Fund
A Average Daily Attendance S S
ASSET  Schedule of Capital Assets S
CA Unaudited Actuals Certification S
CAT Schedule for Categoricals
CEA Current Expense Formula/Minimum Classroom Comp. - Actuals GS
CHG Change Order Form
DEBT Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities S
ESMOE Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort GS
GANN Appropriations Limit Calculations GS GS
ICR Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet GS
L Lottery Report GS
PCRAF _ Program Cost Report Schedule of Allocation Factors GS
PCR Program Cost Report GS
California Dept of Education 08

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: tc (Rev 03/18/2020) Page 1 of 2 Printed: 9/8/2020 10:20 AM



Unaudited Actuals
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary TABLE OF CONTENTS 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Form TC

G = General Ledger Data: S = Supplemental Data

Data Supplied For:

Form Description 2019-20 2020-21

Unaudited Budget

Actuals

SEA Special Education Revenue Allocations

SEAS Special Education Revenue Allocations Setup (SELPA Selection)

SIAA Summary of Interfund Activities - Actuals G

California Dept of Education

" 99

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: tc (Rev 03/18/2020) Page 2 of 2 Printed: 9/8/2020 10:20 AM



Northwest Prep
Charter School

2019-2020
Unaudited Actuals

September 9, 2020



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Unaudited Actuals
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

49 70870 0000000

Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 09
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 1,011,262.00 931,388.00 -7.9%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 36,491.65 33,498.00 -8.2%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 87,302.94 49,625.00 -43.2%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 8,567.91 8,500.00 -0.8%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,143,624.50 1,023,011.00 -10.5%
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 475,884.48 482,497.00 1.4%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 96,512.58 94,906.00 -1.7%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 267,478.18 247,000.00 -1.7%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 26,484.06 40,879.00 54.4%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 257,165.99 232,018.00 -9.8%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 71,712.00 0.00 -100.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,195,237.29 1,097,300.00 -8.2%
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (51,612.79) (74,289.00) 43.9%
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (10,000.00) (10,000.00) 0.0%
101

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020\

Dann~ 4



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County Expenditures by Object Form 09
2019-20 2020-21 Percent
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| Unaudited Actuals Budget Difference
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (61,612.79) (84,289.00) 36.8%
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 408,882.13 347,269.34 -15.1%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 408,882.13 347,269.34 -15.1%
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 408,882.13 347,269.34 -15.1%
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 347,269.34 262,980.34 -24.3%
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 2,469.20 3,000.00 21.5%
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Restricted 9740 84,620.46 56,995.81 -32.6%
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 260,179.68 203,206.88 -21.9%
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 (222.35) New,|

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 03/10/2020) Anenn



Piner-Olivet Charter
School

20192020
Unaudited Actuals

September 9, 2020



Piner-Olivet Charter Unaudited Actual 49 70870 6113492
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary FINANCIAL REPORT Form CA
Sonoma County 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

Charter School Certification

Charter Number: 98

To the entity that approved the charter school:

2019-20 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: This report is hereby approved
and filed by the charter school pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(b).

Signed: Date:
Charter School Official

(Original signature required)

Printed
Name: Kirsten Sanft Title: Principal

To the County Superintendent of Schools:

2019-20 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: This report has been reviewed
and is hereby filed with the County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100(a).

~ ) -

2 N Date:(\. S 3 ;: <

Signed: g —
Authorized Representative of
Charter Approving Entity
(Original signature required)
Printed
Name: Felicia Koha Title: CBO

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:

2019-20 CHARTER SCHOOL UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT: This report has been verified
for mathematical accuracy by the County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code
Section 42100(a).

Signed: Date:
County Superintendent/Designee

(Original signature required)

For additional information on the unaudited actual financial report, please contact:

For Approving Entity: For Charter School:

Felicia Koha Felicia Koha

Name Name

CBO CBO

Title Title

707-522-3008 707-522-3008

Telephone Telephone

fkoha@pousd.org fkoha@pousd.org

E-mail Address E-mail Address
California Dept of Education

104

SACS Financial Reporting Software - Version 2020.2.0
File: ca-cs (Rev 05/30/2017) Page 1 of | Printed: 9/8/2020 10:29 AM



AV 9€:01 0202/8/6 -pajuld

| abed

(0202/01/€0 AoY) e-puny :aji4
0°2'020¢ - a1emyos bunuoday [ejoueuld SOYS
uoijeanp3 jo 1daQ elulojljen

%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 S$3SN/S30HNOS ONIONVNI4 ¥3HLO VLOL (¢
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 6668-0868 suonnquuog (g
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 669.-0€9. sasn (q
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 6.68-0£68 se01nog (e
S9S(/S921N0S J3Yl0 (2
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 629.-009. INQ sisysuel] (q
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 6268-0068 uj sigysued] (e
siajsuel] punya (1
S3ASN/SIDUNOS ONIONVNI4 ¥3IHLO "d
%v'6cl- [(00°2,9°L2) (00°680°12) 00°LLv'EY 86'€81 ¥6 91'16L°€ 28'26€'06 (68 - SV) S3SN ANV S3DUNOS SNIONVNIA
UFHLO FH0439 STUNLIANIJXT ¥INO
S3NNIAIY 40 (ADN3IDI43a) $S30X3 "D
%l'9- 00°0£9'6€8°L 00°L2ESle 00°€¥EPC9’L AT 60°€SECLL G2'8.8'G8.L'L SIUNLIANIIXI TIVLOL (6
%0°0 000 000 000 000 ¢6'0LL (z6'0L1) 66€.-00€L SIS0Q J0auIpu Jo sigjsuel] - obINQ Jayio (8
%0'0 000 000 000 000 000 000 66¥.-00vL (sis0D
662/-00LL jJoauIpu| Jo s1gjsuel] Buipnjoxa) obBNO Jaylo (£
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 6669-0009 Aeino _ma_am%m
%6°9¢- 00'299'8€2 00°0v2'LL oozev'iee ¥£'655°'92¢ v1'1¥0'02 02'815'90¢€ 6665-000S sainyipuadx3 bunesadQ Jayio pue mwo_EmwAm
%88 00'65€'€9 00'2€8'0L 00°225'2S CTAT 16°9€8'9 €€'2.€'LG 666¥-000% sal|ddng pue syoog (¢
%6°G- 00°252'89% 00°0L8°EL) 00°/8€'¥S€E €€°685'L6¥ EV'G6L'GLL 06'€6€'28€E 666€-000€ siyauag aakoldw3 (g
%991~ 00°€0€’L61L 00°68€'eL 00816211 0e'ezh'6ee 60'609'82 LZ'¥18°002 666¢-0002 salejeg payisse|D (g
%L'E 00'680°8.8 000 00'680'8.8 €G°Ghi'op8 00°00S°} €5°S¥6'vv8 6661-0001 saue|eg pajedyiua (1
SIUNLIANILX3 ‘g
%L LL- 00'866'L18'L 00'8EC Pl 00°09L299°L 2ESLP'TS0'e SThPL9LL L0°b.2'9L8") S3INN3AIY TVLOL (S
%6'€L- 0098201 00'9¢€9 00°051°0} C6'ESE LY 00992 26'.85'0v 66.8-0098 anuanasy [e207 18410 (¥
%0°L2- 00'v6Z'vLL 00°06.°L8 00'¥05'9¢ 91°'966'9G1 L0'G¥9'6L1 GL'116'9€ 6658-00€8 anuansy 8elS JBYIo (€
%10 00°218'6S 00'218'SS 000 YT EEL'GS Y2 €€L'GS 000 6628-0018 anuanay [esapaA (z
%€'6- 0090L°L€9') 000 00°90L°1L€9°L 002.L'86L°) 000 00°2LL'86L°) 6608-0108 $921N0S 4407 (1
SANNIAIY V|
4290 (1) (E)] (a) (2) (a) (v) sapo) S8p0Y 22Inosay uondudsag
uwnjo) 3+(Q 102 pajoLysay pajouysalun g+V 02 pajoLysay pajaulsalun 193[q0
#a% pung ejoL pung [ejoL
1abpng 1z-0202 S|enjdy pajipneun 02-610¢
199[q0 Aq sainypuadxg
10 wio4 pajousay pue pajouisalun fAuno) ewouog

26¥€119 0.80. 6

pund [eiauss
S|enjoy psjipneun

Aieyuawa|g uolun J9AIO-Jauld
JapeyD 1anlj0-1auld



WV 9€:0l 0202/8/6 -paulLd

Z abey

(0202/01/£0 A2Y) E-puny :3)14
0'2°020z - 2/emyos Buiuoday [e1oueul SOVS
uoneanp3 jo ydaq eiuloyed

MBN 11°€96°09 (ev'ece) ¥G°98.'09 000 000 000 0616 junowy pajeudoiddeun/paubisseun
%19~ 00°/85'€L 000 00°L8G°€L 00'62€'8L 000 00'62€°8L 68.6 SSRUIELISOUN DIWOU0DT J0j BAIaSaY
pajeudoiddeun/paubisseun (e
%l ve- 15'0v1'8¢ 000 1G°0vL'8E 16°9vZ'0S 000 16°9¥2'0S 0816 sjuswubissy 1ay10
paubissy (p
%S 0- 00'¥9¢'z0e 000 00'¥9€'202 ¥G'68€°€0T 000 $6°68¢'€0¢ 09.6 sjusuwjiwwo) JBYI0
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 06.6 sjuswabueuy uonezijigels
pajiwwo) (9
%0'¥9- 11°898°6€ 11°898'6€ 000 89°€EL'0L) 89°€€L0L] 000 ov.L6 pajLsay (q
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 616 s1ayi0 IV ©
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 €116 Sway| pledaid m
%0°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 cLL6 SaJ0)S
%002 00°000'¢ 000 00°000'¢ 00°005'Z 000 00°00S'C 1116 ysed Buinjonay
a|qepuadsuop (e
aouejeg pun4 Buipu3 jo sjusuodwo)
%<C 9~ €1°225 LIy 89'v¥9'6¢ G0'8.8'LLE ELV6L'ShY 89'€EL'0L) S0'Lov'vEE (814 +3) og aunr ‘aoueleg Bulpu3 (g
%892 EL'VBL'ShY 89°€EL'0LL G0’ Lov'beEe GL0L0°LGE 25°2¥6'901 €2'890'v¥e (P14 + 21 4) @ouejeg bujuuibag paisnipy (o
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 G6.6 sjuswalelsay Jayo (p
%892 €L'¥61'GhYy 89°€€L0LL GO LOV'PEE GL°0L0'LSE 25cb6'901 £2'890'v¥e (914 +e1d) paupny - L Anr Jo sy (0
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 €616 sjuswjsnipy upny (g
%8°9¢ €L'v61'Shy 89°€€L'0LL G0'L9¥'vEE GL0L0'1GE 252P6'901 €2'890'v¥e 1616 paypneun - | Anr jo sy (e
aouejeg pun4 Bujuuibag ()
SIAYIS3Y ‘IONVIVE ANN4 *d4
%¥62L-  [(002,9°22) (00°680°12) 00°LL¥'EY 86°€8L ¥6 gl'L6L'¢e 28'26€06 (¥a + 2) IONVIVE
aNN4 NI (3SV3¥93a) ISYIUONI 13N T
420 (1) (E)] (a) (2) (a) (v) Sapo) S9p0J 931nosay uonduasaq
uwnjo) 3+ Q02 pajolsay pajouysalun g+ V02 pajaLysay pajouysalun 323[qo
Ha % pung |ejo) pund jejol
19bpng 1z-0202 S|enjdy psjipneun 0zZ-6102
199[q0 Aq sainjipuadxg
10 wJo4 pajouisay pue pajouisalun Auno) ewouosg
¢6v€L19 0L80L 6 pun4 |eiauag) Alejuswiaj3 uolun 1dA1|O-Jauld

S[enRY pajlipneun

Jayeyn Janij0-Jauld



Piner-Olivet Charter
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

4970870 6113492
Form A

Description

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

2020-21 Budget

P-2 ADA

Annual ADA

Funded ADA

Estimated P-2
ADA

Estimated
Annual ADA

Estimated
Funded ADA

C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

FUND 01: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.

1. Total Charter School Regular ADA

2. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C2a through C2c)
3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools
b. Special Education-Special Day Class
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI
d. Special Education Extended Year
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C3a through C3e)
4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f)

200.40 ’

200.41 '

200.40 ﬂ

201.00

201.00

201.00

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

200.40

200.41

200.40

201.00

201.00

201.00

FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresponding

to SACS financial data reported in Fund 09 or Fund 62.

(4]

. Total Charter School Regular ADA

6. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA

a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps

c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C6a through C6c¢)
7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
County Community Schools
. Special Education-Special Day Class
. Special Education-NPS/LCI
. Special Education Extended Year
. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C7a through C7e)
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f)

coooTw

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

9. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
(Sum of Lines C4 and C8)

200.40

200.41

200.40

201.00

201.00

201.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: ada (Rev 03/27/2018)

107
Page 1 of 1

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:37 AM



Piner-Olivet Charter
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Unaudited Actuals
2019-20 Unaudited Actuals

4970870 6113492

Sonoma County LOTTERY REPORT Form L
Revenues, Expenditures and
Ending Balances - All Funds
Lottery:
Lottery: Transferred to Instructional
Unrestricted |Other Resources Materials
Description Object Codes (Resource 1100) | for Expenditure | (Resource 6300)* Totals
A. AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR
1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 42,277.61 16,193.73 58,471.34
2. State Lottery Revenue 8560 32,530.15 11,821.01 44,351.16
3. Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. Transfers from Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. Contributions from Unrestricted
Resources (Total must be zero) 8980 0.00 0.00
6. Total Available
(Sum Lines A1 through A5) 74,807.76 0.00 28,014.74 102,822.50
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00
2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 22,797.39 6,613.08 29,410.47
5. a. Services and Other Operating
Expenditures (Resource 1100) 5000-5999 1,763.86 1,763.86
b. Services and Other Operating 5000-5999, except
Expenditures (Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800
c. Duplicating Costs for
Instructional Materials
(Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800
6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00
7. Tuition 7100-7199 0.00 0.00
8. Interagency Transfers Out
a. To Other Districts, Count:
Offices, and Charter Schgols 772212;7722577222812 0.00 0.00
b. To JPAs and All Others 7213,7223,
7283,7299 0.00 0.00
9. Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399
10. Debt Service 7400-7499 0.00 0.00
11. All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00
12. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Sum Lines B1 through B11) 24 561.25 0.00 6,613.08 31,174.33
C. ENDING BALANCE
(Must equal Line A6 minus Line B12) 97972 50,246.51 0.00 21,401.66 71,648.17
D. COMMENTS:

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legislature as required by Control Section 24.60 of the Budget Act.

*Pursuant to Government Code Section 8880.4(a)(2)(B) and the definition in Education Code Section 60010(h), Resource 6300 funds are to be used for the
purchase of instructional materials only. Any amounts in the shaded cells of this column should be reviewed for appropriateness.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: lot (Rev 02/24/2016)

108

Paae 1 of 1

Drintad: Q/2/290N9N 4N-27 ARA



Piner-Olivet Charter

Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 4970870 6113492
Sonoma County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
Funds 01, 09, and 62 2019-20
Section | - Expenditures Goals Functions | Objects Expenditures
A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 1,958,231.34
B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE
(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 55,733.24
C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:
(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)
1.  Community Services All 5000-5999 | 1000-7999 0.00
. All except | All except
2. Capital Outlay 7100-7199 | 5000-5999 | 6000-6999 0.00
5400-5450,
5800, 7430-
3. Debt Service All 9100 7439 0.00
4. Other Transfers Out Al 9200 7200-7299 0.00
5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 0.00
9100 7699
6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00
All except
5000-5999,
7. Nonagency 7100-7199 | 9000-9999 | 1000-7999 0.00
8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received) Al Al 8710 0.00
9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Manually entered. Must not include
Presidentially declared disaster expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or
D2. 222.43
10. Total state and local expenditures not
allowed for MOE calculation
(Sum lines C1 through C9) 222.43
1000-7143,
D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439
1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services minus
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) Al All 8000-8699 0.00
Manually entered. Must not include
2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities expenditures in lines A or D1. 0.00
E. Total expenditures subject to MOE
(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 1,902,275.67

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: esmoec (Rev 03/01/2018)

Pad@9

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:37 AM



Piner-Olivet Charter Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 4970870 6113492
Sonoma County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
2019-20
Annual ADA/

Section Il - Expenditures Per ADA Exps. Per ADA
A. Average Daily Attendance

(Form A, Annual ADA column, Line C9) 200.41
B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line I.A) 9,491.92
Section Ill - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA
A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official CDE

MOE Calculation)

(Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, CDE has adjusted the prior year

base to 90 percent of the preceding prior year amount rather than the actual

i i t.
prior year expenditure amount.) 1.970,527.32 10,209.46
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for
LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section 1V) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1) 1,970,527.32 10,209.46
B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 1,773,474.59 9,188.51
C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line I1.B) 1,902,275.67 9,491.92
D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)

(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00
E. MOE determination

(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met

is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If

either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is

incomplete.)
F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero

(Line D divided by Line B)

(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2021-22 may

be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: esmoec (Rev 03/01/2018)

Pagd @

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:37 AM



Piner-Olivet Charter Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 4970870 6113492
Sonoma County Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort Expenditures Form ESMOE
SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section lll, Line A.1)
Total Expenditures
Description of Adjustments Expenditures Per ADA
Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: esmoec (Rev 03/01/2018) Padeld Printed: 9/8/2020 10:37 AM



NV Z€:0L 0Z0Z/8/6 :pajulld | jo | ebed (6002/22/10 AoY) 19sSE :9)I4

0'2°0202 - a1emyog buioday |eioueuly Sovs
uoneonp3 4o ydaq eiuloye)

000 000 000 000 000 000 18U 'sjasse |ejided Ayanoe adAl-ssauisng
000 | 000 000 000 000 000 18U ‘pajeaidap Bulaq sjasse |eyded [ejo]
000 000 000 000 000 000 uonelosidap pajenwnoode [ejo |
000 000 juswdinbg
000 000 sbuipjing
000 000 sjuswanoidw| pue
110§ uonjenaidag pajeinwnooy

000 000 000 000 000 000 pajeroaidap Buiaq sjesse [eyded [ejo |
000 000 juswdinbg
000 000 sbuiping
000 000 sjuswanoidw| pue]

’ ‘pajeloaldap buiaq sjasse |ejide)
000 000 000 000 000 000 pajeldaidap Buleq jou sjesse [eyded [ejo |
000 000 ssalboid ul YIoM
000 000 pue’

‘pajeoaldap Buiaq jou sjesse jeyde)
1SaNIAlOY adA | -ssauisng

000 000 000 000 000 000 Jau ‘sjasse |e)ided AjAloe [BjUSWUIaN0S)
000 000 000 000 000 000 jau ‘pajeloaidap Buiaq sjasse [e)ided |ejo | ~
000 000 000 000 000 000 uoneloaidap pajenwindoe |ejo —
000 000 yuswdinbg -
000 000 sbuipiing
000 000 sjuswanosdw| puen
:1oj uonepaidaq paje|NWwnooy
000 0070 000 000 000 000 pajeldsidap bulaq sjesse [eyded ejo
000 000 juswdinb3
000 000 sbuipjing
000 000 sjuswanoidw| pueq
‘pajeroaldep Bulaq sjesse |eyde)
000 000 000 000 000 000 pajeldaidap Bulaq jou sjesse |ejides [ejo |
000 000 ssaiboid ur YIopn
000 000 pueT
‘pajernaldap Buiaq jou sjesse [eyde)
IS3JIAIIOY |BJUSWILIBAOS)
o€ aunp sasealdaq S9sealou| L Ainp sjuawale)say | Ainp
aouejeg Buipug aouejeg /sluswysnipy aouejeg
paypny ipny pajipneun
13SSY wio4 sjessy [ejde) Jo sjnpayos Auno9 ewouog
c6vELL9 0/80L 61 s|enjoy pajipneun 0z-6102 Aleyusws|3 uolun yAl|O-Jauld

s[enjoy pajipneun JspeyD JanlO-auld



NV 8€:01L 020Z/8/6 :pajuld | Jo | abed (8102/22/20 A9Y) 199p 9|

02020z - a1emyog Bunioday [eoueul4 SOy
uoijeanpd jo jdaq eluloyije

000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sailjiqel] wisl-buo| saliAoe adA}-ssauisng
000 000 8|qefed ssoussqy pajesuadwon
000 000 Auger1 9340 1eN/eloL
000 000 Ainger uoisuad jaN
000 000 1geQg wia | -buoT |etsuag Jayipn
000 000 3|qehed spuog anuanay asea
000 000 8|qeAed sasea |eyde)
000 000 s|qefed uonedidnied jo ssjeolILe)
000 000 8|qeAed sueoq Buipjing jooyog ajelS
000 000 8|qefed spuog uonebijqQ |elauss)

™

isaniAnoy adA|-ssawisng

000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sailjiqel| wis)-buol sepiAnoe |ejuswuIenoD
000 000 8|qeAed seouesqy pajesuadwor)
000 000 Aunger1 9340 1eN/eloL
000 000 Ajiger uoisuad JeN
000 000 jg8Qg wus | -buoT [etsus9 1oyl
000 000 8|qehed spuog snuanay aseaT
000 000 8|qefed sasea [eyden
000 000 8|qeAed uonedioied o sajeoyian)
000 000 8|qehed sueon Buipjing [ooyog ajelg
000 000 8|qefed spuog uoneblqo |elsuss)

1SAI}IAIY [EJUBIUIBA0SD

Jea\ ouQ 0g aunr sasealda( sasealou] 1 Ainp SjuaWale}say L AInp
Uy ang sjunowy | asuejeg Buipug aoueleg /sjuauisnipy aouejeg
payipny upny paypneun
193Q wio4 saljiqer] wia]-BuoT 4o sjnpayos Auno) ewouos
¢6¥EL19 0280/ 6¥ S[enjoy pajipneun 0z-610¢ Krejuswa|g uolun yeAlO-JoUIC

s[enjoy pajipneun J81BYD JONIO-1aulc



Piner-Olivet Charter Unaudited Actuals
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 6113492
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR

Part | - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs

California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services
costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The
calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated

using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage

occupied by general administration.

A. Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
(Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 0.00
2. Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll
a. Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a
contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800. 105,863.53
b. If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general
administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

Administrative costs paid for by the sponsoring District were allocated and charged to Piner-Olivet Charter.

B. Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities
1. Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)
(Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 1,5653,455.48

C. Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration
(Line A1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative) (See Part Ill, Lines A5 and AB) 6.81%

Part Il - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs

When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition
to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal" or "abnormal
or mass" separation costs.

Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board
policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs
may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation
costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter
these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool.

Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their
employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden
Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal
programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general
administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool.

A. Normal Separation Costs (optional)
Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that
were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400
rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part Ill from base costs to the indirect cost pool.
Retain supporting documentation.

B. Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)
Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to
unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be
moved in Part Il from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero. 0.00

California Dept of Education 114
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 10f 3 Printed: Q/R/2020 10-38 AM



Piner-Olivet Charter

Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 70870 6113492
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR
Part lll - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise)
A. Indirect Costs
1. Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
(Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9) 32.00
2. Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals
(Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10) 0.00
3. External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999) 0.00
4. Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999,
goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
5. Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
(Functions.8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 8,651.56
6. Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)
(Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part |, Line C) 0.00
7. Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs
a. Plus: Normal Separation Costs (Part Il, Line A) 0.00
b. Less: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part Il, Line B) 0.00
8. Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b) 8,683.56
9. Carry-Forward Adjustment (Part IV, Line F) 2,055.10
10. Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line A8 plus Line A9) 10,738.66
B. Base Costs
1. Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 1,410,143.25
2. Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 402,335.27
3. Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 14,138.50
4. Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
5. Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
6. Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 and 5100) 0.00
7. Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999,
minus Part I, Line A4) 460.36
8. External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
objects 5000-5999, minus Part Il, Line A3) 4,080.00

9. Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

(Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,
resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00

10.  Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)
(Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals

except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00
11.  Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

(Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part Ill, Line A5) 118,390.40
12.  Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

(Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part lil, Line AB) 0.00
13.  Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs

a. Less: Normal Separation Costs (Part Il, Line A) 0.00

b. Plus: Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part Il, Line B) 0.00
14.  Student Activity (Fund 08, functions 4000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
15.  Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
16.  Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00
17.  Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00
18.  Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400 & 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 4700 & 5100) 0.00
19.  Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B18, minus Line B13a) 1,949,547.78

C. Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment
(For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)
(Line A8 divided by Line B19) 0.45%

D. Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate
(For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2021-22 see www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aclic)

(Line A10 divided by Line B19) 0.55%

California Dept of Education 115
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 2 of 3 Printed: 9/8/2020 10-38 AM



Piner-Olivet Charter Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals 49 708706113492
Sonoma County Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet Form ICR
Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment
The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect
cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates
the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the
approved rate was based.
Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for
use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs,
or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than
the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A.
A. Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part lll, Line A8) 8,683.56
B. Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s)
1. Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year 0.00
2. Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any 0.00
C. Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year
1. Under-recovery: Part lll, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect
cost rate (0.34%) times Part lll, Line B19); zero if negative 2,055.10
2. Over-recovery: Part lll, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of
(approved indirect cost rate (0.34%) times Part Ill, Line B19) or (the highest rate used to
recover costs from any program (0.34%) times Part Ill, Line B19); zero if positive 0.00
D. Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2) 2,055.10
E. Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year
Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which
the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that
the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more
than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.
Option 1. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part Ill, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: not applicable
Option 2. Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part lll, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years: not applicable
Option 3.  Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part lll, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward
adjustment is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder
is deferred to one or more future years: not applicable
LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3
1
F. Carry-forward adjustment used in Part Ill, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if
Option 2 or Option 3 is selected) 2,055.10
California Dept of Education 116

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: icr (Rev 06/02/2020) Page 3 of 3

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:38 AM



Piner-Olivet Charter Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs

4970870 6113492
Form ICR

Approved indirect cost rate: 0.34%

Highest rate used in any program: 0.34%

Eligible Expenditures
(Objects 1000-5999

Indirect Costs Charged Rate

Fund Resource except Object 5100) (Objects 7310 and 7350) Used
01 3010 40,019.54 118.46 0.30%
01 4035 5,676.28 18.96 0.34%
01 4127 9,966.50 33.50 0.34%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

File: icr (Rev 02/10/2020) Pageit gt 1

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:38 AM



WV 8€:0l 0Z02/8/6 -PSuLd

| abedq

(9102/50/50 Aay) J1od :a)14

0'2°020¢ - a1emyos buiuodey

[eidUBUl] SOVYS

uonieonp3 jo ydaq eiulogen

PEI1€T8S6°1 000 9¢'TLS Y 86'859°€S6°1 LY 681°6€EE 1S°691°819°1 sa.InIpuadxy spuny S[00ydS
I93IeYD pUk puny [BIdUd5) [BI0],
000 00°0 (0s€L 199190
‘01¢L uonaunyg z9 ‘60 ‘10 Spuny Jo 19N)
mU::h 19410 03 mv_o.wmcmu,h INvg] uoo.:Uch
000 000 000 000 (" 2u1] QD sewn [¢0 aul] QV)
+ € uwnjo)]) uonepuno, ‘eLvje) spunyj
‘quowdofaaa( priy) ‘uoneonpy Jnpy RYO
00°0 000 03In0 YO
000 00°0 uondNISuo) 29 uonIsIboy sani[Ioe,] -—--
00°0 0070 asudioyug -—--
000 000 S3DIAIDS POO,]
mumoU 1210
000 000 000 000 000 $901A108 Juawdo[9A3(] pue a1eD pIIy) 00S8
000 000 000 000 000 S30IAI9S AJUNWWIO) 0018
000 000 000 000 000 1O - AouddeuoN 0SIL
000 000 000 000 000 Jeuoneonpy - AoudadeuoN 011L
S[eonH 210
000 000 000 000 000 (d/00¥) 81d/1D [euonedndo( [euoiday] 0009
000 000 000 000 000 uolreonpd [e10adS| 6665-000S
000 000 000 000 000 uonednNpH JUBISIA 0S8%
PSYTSY 9501 86°CISY 000 86 EISY [enguljig 09Ly 00
000 000 000 000 000 uoleoNpy [edIUYDI [, J9aIe) JNpY 0€9¥ —
000 000 000 000 000 UonEedNpPH [BUOI}OALIOD NPY 0T9%
000 000 000 000 000 s193ud) ApnjS Juspuadopu] Jnpy 019t
000 000 000 000 000 NPy ‘uonedonpy Je[n3ay oIy
000 000 000 000 000 uolBINpy [edIUYDI, J9oIe) 008€
00°0 000 000 00°0 000 swesgo1q A1epuodag paziferdads 00LE
00°0 000 000 000 000 sjooyag e Aunwwo) 0SS¢€
000 000 000 000 000 sjooyog Ayunyioddg 00+€
000 000 000 000 000 s19jua) ApmiS 1uapuadapuy 00€€
00°0 000 000 000 000 S[00YOS UonENUIIU0D 00¢C¢
000 000 000 000 000 S[00YDS AU Y 001¢
08'90L°€S6°T 08°'19S°p 00°SY1°6¥6°1 LY 681°6€€ €6°6S6°EI9 T Z1—31 ‘uoneonpy Je[nay 0111
000 000 000 000 000 USLIESIOpULY-a1] 1000
m—NoU
—mﬂc_uu—._..um—:
0 EE:_OU [« CEB_OO .v GEEOU € :EEOU ré GE:_OU 1 :E:_OU %ﬁ>ﬁo<\5mhwo.~n~ _NOO
(S+1v+¢100) (DO 2Inpoyos) (g 2u1] VD YOS X € “[00) (T+17109) (OV anpayog) (0@ aInpayos)
weidoig $150D 1_Y1I0 §1S0) [e101qng pajeoo[|y padiey) 10211
£q 150D [B10], uipy [enua) $1S0D) 10311(J

H0Od wlo4
¢6v€L19 0280/ 6¢

Hodsy 3s0) weiboid
Spun4 sjooyog JaLeyD pue pun4 [BI1suss)

0¢-610¢

s[enjoy pajipneun

funo) ewouog
Aejuswa|g uolun JaA110-Jsuld
JSHEYD J8AI|O-18uld




WV 8€:0L 020Z/8/6 :pajulid

0058 PUE 0018 S1203 10J 661£-001£ Suonoun,]

| abed

(9102/50/50 AoY) Jod :3)14

0'2°0202 - 81emyos Buiuoday [eloueUld SOVS

uoneanp3 jo ydaq eluioje)

15°69b'819°T

000 000 000 000 000 000 0S°8EIPI 9L’LBI'V61 000 000 STEPIOIP'T 51500 padieyD 122.11q [EI0L
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S201AI9S 0058
wswdoaaaq pue a1e)) piiy)
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 §901AJ9§ Ajunwwo) 0018
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 1510 - AouadeuoN 0S1L
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 [euonesnpy - AousSeuoN or1L
sjgon Y0
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 /004 0009
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uoneonpy [eadS|  6665-0005
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uoneanpg weIdiy 0S8t
86 €ISy 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 86'CISY [enSung 09Lb
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uoneonpy 0€9Y
[e21Uyd3 ], JodIe)) ) npy
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 UONEINPF [eUONIDA1I0) NPy 0Z9%
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S12103) [(JT0))
Apmis wuapuadapuj 3npy ~—
000 000 000 | 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 VNPV ‘uonesnpy Jejnday oIy
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uonEINpH [ESUYDI, J931E) 008¢
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sweigorq 00LE
£1epuodag pazijeadg
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 s[00ydS Aeq Anunwuio) 0SS€E
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 sjooyag Knunuoddo 00€E
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 s121us) Aprug Juapuadapuf 00€€
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S[00YdS UoNENUNUO) 00Z€
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 S|00(2S ANEWAY 001€
£5°SS6'E19°T 000 000 000 000 0581Vl 9L’L81'61 000 000 LT6T9'S0b°1 T1-3] ‘uoneonpy Ie[nday ortl
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 uauediapury-ald 1000
sjgon
[euoINISU]
[e10], (00.8 uonouny) (oot8 +(0122 1do0x3 ‘666 (6665 (6661 (009¢ vonoung) | (006€ Pue 091¢ | (00LZ UoHoUNy) (s6vT (oozz (6661 weido1q jo adA L 120D
-0018 suotoung) | -Q0OL SUOHdUN) | -QQOS SUOHDUN) | QOO SuOnOUNg) -011¢ suonounyg) -0TYT suonounyg) | -Q0lg suonounyg) | -pp0I Suondun.g)
sasea] suonesadQ pue Hwpy  |sd1A1ag Ayunwwo) | sasiasag Asejjouy uoneuodsuel], idng S91ALDS uoneNSIUIWLpY $921n059Y I uononsu|
PUE SIUSY SaNI|Ide,] | IDUBUUIRIA JuB[] [esouany woddng jidng jooyos [euonorsuy JAYIQ | pue uoisiatadng
pue Aojouyoa], [euononIsuy
‘IpI *Ateiqry
(00Q) s1s09 pabiey) 1aliq Jo s|Npayos
Hoday 1509 weibouy
HDd wio4 Spun4 s|ooyos 1auey) pue pun4 [elouss) Auno) ewouos
¢6v€LL9 0/80. 6 0zZ-610¢C Kejuswa|g uolun J8AII0-J8uId

S|endY paipneun

8Heyd J9AlO-1auld




WV 8€:0l 0202/8/6 :paiulld | abed (9102/50/50 A9y) Jod :aj14
0'2°020z - asemyog Buioday [eroueuly SOYS
uoljeanpd jo 1da( elulojen

LY'681°SEE 000 96 1¥0°LT1 1S°Ly1°80C s3s0) j10ddng pajedo[y [e)0],
000 000 (19 pue ¢] spuny) eLIJe) --
000 000 000 000 (21 puny) yuswdofaasq priyd --
00'0 00°0 (11 pung) uoneanpy 3npy -
spuny J13y3Q
000 000 000 000 "SOAS JuewdoaAs( pue 31e) p[iy) 0058
000 000 000 000 S90IAISG AjUnwiwio) 0018
000 000 00°0 000 1ayiQ - AdoudgeuoN 0SIL
000 000 000 000 [euOnEeINpH - ASUSSEUON 0lI1L
S[e0onH) 12710
000 000 000 000 d/00Y 0009
0070 000 000 000 (100§ 01 payed0[[8) UoHEONpPH [e1oadg 6665-000S
000 000 000 000 uoneanpy JuBISIN 0S8+
000 000 000 000 [endurjig 09LY
000 000 000 000 uoneonpy [eoIUyd9 ], I9aIe) 3npy 0£9%
000 000 000 000 uoneoNpy [BUONIALI0) JNPY 029
00°0 000 000 000 s1ua) Apnig juspuadspuy 3npy 019%
000 000 000 000 Inpy ‘uoneonpy JIendsy 0l1¥
000 000 000 000 uonedNpy [BdIUYII], 19318) 008¢€
000 000 000 000 sweioid A1epuodsg pazieroads 00LE
000 000 000 000 sjooydg Ae Ajunwiwo) 0SS¢€
000 000 000 000 sjooydg AyunpoddQ 00¥€
000 000 000 000 s1ajua) Apnig juspuadapu] 00€€
000 000 000 000 S]00YOS uonENUIU0D 00Z€
000 000 000 000 S[OOUDS SANRUIN)Y 001¢€
LY'681°S€€ 000 96'1%0°LT1 1SLy1°80C T1-3 ‘uoneonpy Jenoy 0I11
00°0 000 000 000 USMe3IopUTS-ai 1000
s[eon —Nﬂomuo—.-.:m-:
[e10], paiodsuer], spidng S]IU[) WOOISSE[) syus[eAlnby awi ] -[[ng wei3old Jo odL, [e0D
(dAv¥Dd wioj uo In ur 10308 U0 pasegq) s150)) Hoddng pajedol|y

(V) sis09 poddng pajeoojly jo ajnpayog
Hoday }s0) welboig
HOd wio4 Spun4 s|ooyog Japey) pue pun4 |elauss) Auno) ewouog
Cc6¥€L19 0.80.L 6t 02-61L02 Aejusws|g uolun JeAlQ-1auld
S[enjoy pelipneun JayeyQ jenlO-lsuld

120



NV 8€:0L 020Z/8/6 :Pejulid | abed (1L1L0Z/¥2/50 AeY) Jod :a)14
0'2°020¢ - aiemyog buriodey [eioueul{ SOVS
uoileonp3 jo jdaq eluioljed

%€ 0 (@/SV) $150D PagEd0[[y pue pagaey)) }d3II(] 0) §)50) UOHENSIUIWPY [E1UI) JO OBy A
86'8S9°€S6°T (SD + €9) 150D PajedO[[V puE pasiey)) J1I(q [¢I0L,
00°0 spun, IayiQ Ul §1S0)) pasIey) J3I(] [BI0], S
000 (0016 1d29x%2 “6665-0001 $19910 LS 29 61 SPUn,) UonEpUNO,] ¥
000 (00T 1da9%a “6665-0001 S193[Q0 ‘19 %9 €[ spuny) euolfe) ¢
000 (0016 3daoxa “6665-0001 $193[q0 71 puny) yuswdo@As( Pl <
000 (0016 3da9X3 “6665-0001 S199[qQ 11 pun,]) uoneonpy Jnpy 1

spuny JoY)(Q Ul §)s0)) pasaey) 1I[q D
86°859°€S6H°T Spun SJO0USS Ie)iey) pue puny [BISUSLD) UL S}SO)) PJLIO[[y pue paSiey) 10a1(] [BI0], ¢
LY 681°G€EE (fero, “Z uwnjo) YDJ WHO, WOIJ) SIS0 PAJedo[[y [810], ¢
1S°697°819°1 (Tero L, 1 uwmnjo) YO WHO,] WOIJ) §1S0)) Pagiey) J0dII(] 810 1

Spuny S[00Yd§ J93aeY) pUE puny [BI3UID) UI §)S00) PAJBIO[Y Pue pagaey)) 331i[q ‘g
9€TLSY Spun,j S[00YJS 191y pue PUN,] [BISUSL) UL S)S0)) UOHRNSIUTWPY [B1Ud)) [B10], S
00°0 (666L ¥
~0001 $13[Q0 0000 180D 00LL UOBAUN] T9 PUB ‘60 ‘10 SPUN,]) SUISSO01] BJe(] POZI[eIIUL))
00°Z€ (666L-0001 $192[90 ‘0000 ¢
120D ‘017L 1d99X2 ()09.-00TL SUOnIUN] ‘79 PUB ‘6 ‘1) SPUN,]) UOBENSIUIUPY [2ISUSD) JOYI(0)
00°080°F (666L-0001 $192I90 ‘0006 ¢
PUB 6669-0000 S[80D ‘I61L-061L SUOHOUN] ‘79 PUR ‘60 ‘1( SPUN,]) S}PNY [BIOUBUL] [BUINXF
9€°09¥ (666L-0001 $193[90 ‘0006 1|

PUB 6669-0000 STE0D “081L-001L Suonoun,j ‘z9 pue ‘( ‘10 spun,) uspusjurradng pue preog
Spuny s[ooydg 19318y pue puny [EI3UdS) Ul §)50)) UOHBRNSIUIWPY [BHU) Y

(OVD) s}s0D uoRelSIUIWPY [B1USD JO BINPBYDS
HOd wio4 Hoday 1509 weiboid Auno)H ewouog
Z6VELL9 0/80L 6Y 0Z-6102 Aejuswa|3 uolun jenO-1auld
slenjoy pajipneun Japeyg jeno-lauid

121



WV 6€:0L 0202/8/6 -paluld

| abed

(1102/¥2/S0 Aey) Jod :a)14
0'C°020¢ - 21emyos buipoday |eoueuld SOVS
uoileonp3 Jo jdaq eluloyien

000 000 000 000 000 51500 1PYIQ [BI0L
000 000 (666L-0001 $192[q0)
o3inQ 1Yo
000 000 (0059-0001 $1021qQ)
uoidNISuU0)) 2 UoLISInboy saniioe,
000 000 (0059 PU® “00+9 “666S-0001 $199[qQ0)
asudiojuyg
000 000 (00S9 PUE 0019 “6665-0001 S1931Q0)
S9JIAISS P00
[e10], (6666-0006 suonoUN.T) (0058 uonoun,y) (0009 uonoun,j) (00L ¢ uonoun,]) A1anoy jo adA,
o3nQ 1oy uono/NISu0) asudiojuyg S9OIAIOS P00,
2% uonisinboy sanijioe,]
(D0) 81509 J8UIO J0 8INpaYoS
uoday 3s0) weiboud
HOd wio4 Spun4 s|ooyog Jsuey) pue pun4 [eisusc) Auno) ewouog

¢6v€L1L9 04801 6

S[enjoy pajipneun

0¢-6L0¢C

Aieyuswal3 uojun 19A1j0-18uId

IsueyD J9AlO-Jauld

122



: :paju L jo | abed (9102/50/50 Nay) Jesod :aji4
P OOl oz0erBe et 0°2°020¢ - a1emyog buioday |epueuly SOVS

uoleanp3 Jo ydaq elulope)

000 000 00°L 000 0s'8 000 000 S10J3€, UOLEIO[[V [EIOL D
(19 % €1 spuny) euaie) -
(z1 puny) wuauidojarad piyd ==
(11 pung) uoneonpg Jnpy -
uondrrasaq spuny 123y Q
5951198 JusuidojaAa(g pue a1e) piiy) 00S8
$901A19S Ajtunuruio)) 0018
12410 - AouadeuoN 0SIL
[euoneonpy - AouadeuoN o11L
uondiisaq sjeon 1O
d/00Y 0009
(1005 03 pareooj(e) uonesnpy [e1oadg 6665-0005
uoneanpy JueIdiy 058%
[enduljig 09LY
uopeINpy [B2IUYD3 | 19318)) J[NPY 059t
uonEdNpH [BUOHIALI0)) J[NPY 079t
s191ua) Apmig Juapuadapu] Jjnpy 019¢
MNPV ‘uolednpyg Jenday orLy o)
uonesnpy [ed1uydd | J3d1e) ooge N
sweidold A1epuodag pazifersadg 00LE =
s[ooyog Aeq Anunuiuio)) 0SS¢
sjooyos Aynunuioddp 00bE
s11ua)) Apnyg juspuadapuj 00€EE
S[00YDS UoLBNUNUOD) 00ZE
S[00YOS dAnRWIANY 00I€
00°L 0s'8 71— ‘uonesnpy re[nday (188
uanediapury-aigd 1000
uoydiadsa( S[E0S) [BUOLINIISUT
("v suyj ur saamipuadxas paynquusipun s1e 319y}
J1 uwinjod e 10§ papasu AJUO 31E SI0J08J UOHEBIO[[Y :SION)
(s)1o108 14 (s)y10108 ND (s)10108,] ND (s)1o0108.] 914 (s)10108 F 14 (s)10108,] 19 (s)1o108.] 14 :[e0D £q (s)10)28y UOLBIO[[Y Juy g
000 000 96'1¥0°LTI 000 1S°LY1°80T 000 000 (ndur s105u uo paseq pazedo|ie aq [[14) 0006 PUE 0000 SIEOD
‘79 PuE ‘6 ‘10 Spuny ‘saamIpuadxy panqLysipup) jo junowry G
(006
(009¢ uonoun,) (008 uonoun,) (00+8-0018 suonouny) | 661€-001€ Suonoun,) (00Lz uonouny) (s6¥z-0che suonouny) | (00ZZ-001€ Suonounyg)
uoneyodsuer], idng sasea] suoyeladQ $901A19§ poddng idng | uonensIIUIPY (0O | Sa0IN0SHY [eUOONISU] UoHENSIUNUPY pue
PUE 51Uy Sani[19e,] PpUE 9dUBULJUIBIA U] 12y1Q pue AJojouyda], |uoisiazadng [euononnsuy
‘BIPIN ‘Areiqr]
paytodsuesy spdng | -------- SHU) WOOISSB|) -------- | oo oo oo oooo-o- sjudjeamnby sw-[ng Joyded - --------------- ---

s1s0D Hoddng Joj (4y) siojoe4 UoNEdO)lY JO 3jNpayds
Hoday 1s0) weibold
Spun4 sjooyas laueyd pue pund [e1auas)
0c-6L0C
S|eny payipneun

4Vd0d wio4
2¢6vELLS 0/80. 6F

Auno) ewouog
Asejuswa|g uolun JaAlO-1auId
Japey jeAlo-auld




Page 1

SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
9/8/2020 10:45:37 AM 49-70870-6113492
Unaudited Actuals
2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
Technical Review Checks
Piner-Olivet Charter
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Sonoma County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

F - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
0 - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; 1if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

EXP-POSITIVE - (W) - The following expenditure functions have a negative

balance by resource, by fund. (NOTE: Functions, including CDE-defined optional

functions, are checked individually, except functions 7200-7600 are combined.)
EXCEPTION

FUND RESOURCE FUNCTION VALUE

01 0000 7200-7600 -138.92

Explanation:Per CSAM, this balances by fund by function by object. Indirect
costs have been applied to applicabe resources; function 7210 and object 7310
balance.

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

IC-PCT - (W) - The straight indirect cost percentage (i.e., WITHOUT the carry-
forward adjustment) is less than 2% or exceeds 9%. LEAs, regardless of their
size or type, with rates outside of these guidelines have usually incorrectly
coded general administrative costs (e.g., fiscal services, personnel/human
services, central support, and centralized data processing) . Please review the
Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet (Form ICR) paying special attention that costs
coded to the indirect cost functions are consistent with the definitions in
the California School Accounting Manual. Also, to help with your review, the
Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet section of the SACS Software User Guide contains
a list of common problem areas. If general administration costs are
incorrectly coded, make the necessary data corrections; if costs are correct,
please provide an explanation identifying the major contributing factors to
the rate. EXCEPTION

Straight indirect cost percentage before carry-forward adjustment (Form ICR,
Part III, Line C) is 0.45%

Explanation:The Charter School has been treated as a dependent charter school
of the district and had not generated general administrative costs in the
past. The intent going forward is to charge general administrative costs to
the charter school for their proportionate share.

124



Page 2
SACS2020ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0

49-70870-6113492-Piner-Olivet Charter-Unaudited Actuals 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals
9/8/2020 10:45:37 AM

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

125



Piner-Olivet Charter Unaudited Actuals
Piner-Olivet Union Elementary TABLE OF CONTENTS
Sonoma County

G = General Ledger Data; S = Supplemental Data

49 708706113492
Form TC

Data Supplied For:

Form Description 2019-20 2020-21

Unaudited Budget

Actuals

01 General Fund/County School Service Fund GS GS

08 Student Activity Special Revenue Fund

11 Adult Education Fund

12 Child Development Fund

13 Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

14 Deferred Maintenance Fund

15 Pupil Transportation Equipment Fund

17 Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

18 School Bus Emissions Reduction Fund

19 Foundation Special Revenue Fund

20 Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits

21 Building Fund

25 Capital Facilities Fund

30 State School Building Lease-Purchase Fund

35 County School Facilities Fund

40 Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

49 Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units

51 Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

52 Debt Service Fund for Blended Component Units

53 Tax Override Fund

56 Debt Service Fund

57 Foundation Permanent Fund

61 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund

62 Charter Schools Enterprise Fund

63 Other Enterprise Fund

66 Warehouse Revolving Fund

67 Self-Insurance Fund

71 Retiree Benefit Fund

73 Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund

76 Warrant/Pass-Through Fund

95 Student Body Fund

A Average Daily Attendance S S

ASSET  Schedule of Capital Assets S

CA Unaudited Actuals Certification S

CAT Schedule for Categoricals

CHG Change Order Form

DEBT Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities S

ESMOE Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort GS

ICR Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet GS

L Lottery Report GS

PCRAF  Program Cost Report Schedule of Allocation Factors GS

PCR Program Cost Report GS

SEAS Special Education Revenue Allocations Setup (SELPA Selection)

SIAA Summary of Interfund Activities - Actuals

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0 126
File: tc (Rev 03/18/2020) Page 1 of 1

Printed: 9/8/2020 10:40 AM



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda ltem Summary

Action Item: 16.3 Approval of Resolution # 540 Establishing a
Revised “Gann Limit” for 2019-2020 and Establishing a
Projected “Gann Limit” for 2020-2021

Regular Meeting of: September 9, 2020  Action Item Report Format:Oral

Attachment: Staff Report Resolution

Presented by: Felicia Koha, CBO

Background
Proposition 4, the Gann Amendment, explains and defines the appropriations limit and

appropriations subject to limitation as they apply to state and local governments, and require that
each entity of government formally adopt its appropriations limit for a given fiscal year. The
accompanying resolution meets this requirement.

Issue(s)

Plan/Discussion/Detail
The attached worksheets show that the District did not exceed its “Gann Limit” in 2019-2020 and
establishes a projected “Gann Limit” for 2020-2021.

Fiscal Impact
None

Options

Recommendation
Approve as presented

Motion:

Moved by: Second:

Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent

FRANICEVIC HINTON MOHR PRYOR WAY

127



RESOLUTION # 540
September 9, 2020

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE COMPLIANCE OF THE PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL
DISTRICT BUDGET WITH THE EXPENDITURE LIMITATION FOR LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE XI1IB OF THE CONSTITUTION

WHEREAS, in November of 1979, the California electorate did adopt Proposition 4, commonly called the Gann
Amendment, which added Article XI11-B to the California Constitution; and,

WHEREAS, the provisions of that Article establish maximum appropriation limitations, commonly called “Gann
Limits,” for public agencies, including school districts; and,

WHEREAS, the District must establish a revised Gann limit for the 2019-20 fiscal year and a projected Gann Limit
for the 2020-21 fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of Article X111-B and applicable statutory law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board does provide public notice that the attached cal culations
and documentation of the Gann limits for the 2019-20 and 2020-21 fiscal years are made in accord with
applicable constitutional and statutory law;

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board does hereby declare that the appropriations in the Budget for
the 2019-20 and 2020-21 fiscal years do not exceed the limitations imposed by Proposition 4;

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent provides copies of this resolution along with the
appropriate attachments to interested citizens of this district.

The foregoing resolution was introduced by Board Member who moved its
adoption, seconded by Board Member and adopted on roll call on September 9, 2020
by the following vote:

BOARD MEMBER Janae Franicevic
BOARD MEMBER Mardi Hinton
BOARD MEMBER Mindy Mohr
BOARD MEMBER Cindy Pryor
BOARD MEMBER John Way
AYES: NOES: ABSENT: NOT VOTING:

WHEREUPON, the President declared the foregoing resolution adopted, and

SO ORDERED.

Cindy Pryor, President
Piner-Olivet Union School District

128



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Fiscal Year 2019-20 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County School District Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GANN
2019-20 2020-21
Calculations Calculations
Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/
Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals
A. PRIOR YEAR DATA 2018-19 Actual 2019-20 Actual
(2018-19 Actual Appropriations Limit and Gann ADA
are from district's prior year Gann data reported to the CDE)
1. FINAL PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT ‘
(Preload/Line D11, PY column) 6,969,717.46 6,969,717.46 | 7,315,498.73
2. PRIOR YEAR GANN ADA (Preload/Line 83, PY column) 1,206.34 1,20634F 1,219.21
ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT Adjustments to 2018-19 Adjustments to 2019-20
3. District Lapses, Reorganizations and Other Transfers - - -
4. Temporary Voter Approved Increases
5. Less: Lapses of Voter Approved increases
6. TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT
(Lines A3 plus A4 minus A5) 0.00
7. ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ADA
(Only for district lapses, reorganizations and
other transfers, and only if adjustments to the
appropriations limit are entered in Line A3 above)
B. CURRENT YEAR GANN ADA 2019-20 P2 Report 2020-21 P2 Estimate
(2019-20 data should tie to Principal Apportionment
Software Attendance reports and include ADA for charter schools
reporting with the district)
1. Total K-12 ADA (Form A, Line A8) 273.35 273.35 257.65 257.65
2. Total Charter Schools ADA (Form A, Line C9) 745.46 200.40 945.86 746.00 201.00 947.00
3. TOTAL CURRENT YEAR P2 ADA (Line B1 plus B2) ‘ . 121921 - . 1,204.65
C. CURRENT YEAR LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES/STATE 2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Budget
AlID RECEIVED
TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS (Funds 01, 09, and 62)
1. Homeowners' Exemption (Object 8021) 28,488.50 28,488.50 27,982.00 27,982.00
2. Timber Yield Tax (Object 8022) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. Other Subventions/in-Lieu Taxes (Object 8029) 40.94 40.94 0.00 0.00
4. Secured Rolt Taxes (Object 8041) 4,650,107.07 4,650,107.07 4,488,591.00 4,488,591.00
5. Unsecured Roll Taxes (Object 8042) 178,221.11 178,221.11 143,210.00 143,210.00
6. Prior Years' Taxes (Object 8043) 1,247.30 1,247.30 0.00 0.00
7. Supplemental Taxes (Object 8044) 131,708.71 131,708.71 183,600.00 183,600.00
8. Ed. Rev. Augmentation Fund (ERAF) (Object 8045) 697,608.00 697,608.00 0.00 0.00
9. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Taxes (Object 8048) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10. Other In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8082) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11. Comm. Redevelopment Funds (objects 8047 & 8625) 142 1.42 0.00 0.00
12. Parcel Taxes (Object 8621) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13. Other Non-Ad Valorem Taxes (Object 8622) (Taxes only) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Non-LCFF
Taxes (Object 8629) (Only those for the above taxes) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
15. Transfers to Charter Schools o ‘
in Lieu of Property Taxes (Object 8096) ' ‘
16. TOTAL TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS
(Lines C1 through C15) 5,687,423.05 0.00 5,687,423.05 4,843,383.00 0.00 4,843,383.00
OTHER LOCAL REVENUES (Funds 01, 09, and 62)
17. To General Fund from Bond Interest and Redemption
Fund (Excess debt service taxes) (Object 8914) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18. TOTAL LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES
(Lines C16 plus C17) 5,687,423.05 0.00 5,687,423.05 4,843,383.00 0.00 4,843,383.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
Fite: gann-d (Rev 05/19/2020)

129

Paage 1 of 3

Drintad: O/2/090 404N ARA



Piner-Olivet Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals

EXCLUDED APPROPRIATIONS

19. Medicare (Enter federally mandated amounts only from objs.
3301 & 3302; do not include negotiated amounts)

OTHER EXCLUSIONS

20. Americans with Disabilities Act

21. Unreimbursed Court Mandated Desegregation
Costs

22. Other Unfunded Court-ordered or Federa! Mandates

23, TOTAL EXCLUSIONS {(Lines C19 through C22)

STATE AID RECEIVED (Funds 01, 09, and 62)
24. | CFF - CY (objects 8011 and 8012)
25. LCFF/Revenue Limit State Aid - Prior Years (Object 8019)
26. TOTAL STATE AID RECEIVED
(Lines C24 plus C25)

DATA FOR INTEREST CALCULATION
27. Total Revenues (Funds 01, 09 & 62; objects 8000-8799)
28. Total Interest and Return on Investments

(Funds 01, 09, and 62; objects 8660 and 8662)

D. APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATIONS
PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
1. Revised Prior Year Program Limit (Lines A1 plus A6)
2. Inflation Adjustment
3. Program Population Adjustment (Lines B3 divided
by [A2 plus A7}) (Round to four decimal places)
4. PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
(Lines D1 times D2 times D3)

APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT
5. Local Revenues Excluding Interest (Line C18)
6. Preliminary State Aid Calculation
a.  Minimum State Aid in Local Limit (Greater of
$120 times Line B3 or $2,400; but not greater
than Line C26 or less than zero)
b.  Maximum State Aid in Local Limit
(Lesser of Line C26 or Lines D4 minus D5 plus C23;
but not less than zero}
C.  Preliminary State Aid in Local Limit
(Greater of Lines D6a or D6b)
7. Local Revenues in Proceeds of Taxes
a.  Interest Counting in Local Limit (Line C28 divided by
{Lines C27 minus C28] times [Lines D5 plus D6c}))
b, Total Local Proceeds of Taxes (Lines D5 plus D7a)
8. State Aid in Proceeds of Taxes (Greater of Line Déa,
or Lines D4 minus D7b plus C23; but not greater
than Line C26 or less than zero)
9. Total Appropriations Subject to the Limit
a. Local Revenues (Line D7b)
b.  State Subventions (Line D8)
C.  Less: Excluded Appropriations (Line C23)
d. TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT
(Lines DYa plus D3b minus DY¢)

Fiscal Year 2019-20 49 70870 0000000
School District Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GANN
2019-20 2020-21
Calculations Calculations
Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/
Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals
115,945.51 122,481.00
115,945.51 122,481.00
7,512,727 .00 877,482.00 8,390,209.00 7,087,328.00 832,209.00 7,819,537.00
(34,910.00) (10,110.00) (45,020.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00
7,477,817.00 867,372,00 8,345,189.00 7,087,328.00 832,209.00 7,919,537.00
15,660,430.72 2,052,415.32 17,712,846.04 13,487,601.00 1,811,998.00 15,299,599.00
107,784.77 11,543.45 119,328,22 42,000.00 7.000.00 49,000.00
2019-20 Actual 2020-21 Budget
- 6,969,717.46 | | 731549873
- 1.0385] . 1.0373

. 146,305.20
- 1,744,021.19

o 74400119

- 50,403.85

5,737,826.90

107

L o

7,315,498.73

7.315498.73 |

‘ 5687,42305 |

1,693,617.34 f

| 73780890
| 169361734 ]

115945.51 |

0.9881

7,498,065.27

4,843,383.00

144,558.00

2,777,163.27

2,777,163.27

24,484.73
4,867,867.73

2,752,678.54

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: gann-d (Rev 05/19/2020)

130

Page20f3

Printed: Q/RIZN2N 1010 AR



Unaudited Actuals

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary Fiscat Year 2019-20 49 70870 0000000
Sonoma County School District Appropriations Limit Calculations Form GANN
2019-20 2020-21
Calculations Calculations
Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/
Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

10. Adjustments to the Limit Per
Government Code Section 7902.1
(Line D9d minus D4; if negative, then zero)

If not zero report amount to:
Keely Bosler, Director
State Depariment of Finance
Attention: School Gann Limits
State Capitol, Room 1145
Sacramento, CA 95814

SUMMARY

11. Adjusted Appropriations Limit
(Lines D4 plus D10)

12. Appropriations Subject to the Limit
(Line D9d)

2019-20 Actual
7315498.73§

7,315,498.73 |

2020-21 Budget

7,498,065.27

* Please provide below an explanation for each entry in the adjustments column.

Lines B2, C24, C25, C27, and C28 adjustments are to account for the District's external charter data not exiracted.

Felicia Koha, CBO

Gann Contact Person

707-522-3008

Contact Phone Number

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2020.2.0
File: gann-d (Rev 05/19/2020)

131

Page 30f 3

Printed: ©/8/2020 10:10 AM



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING

TO BE HELD September 9, 2020

The Piner-Olivet Union School District will be holding a Public Hearing regarding
whether or not each pupil in the district has or will have, prior to the end of the fiscal
year, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or both, in each subject consistent
with the content and cycles of the curriculum framework adopted by the state board. This
Public Hearing is to receive input from staff, teachers, parents, and community members
regarding this issue. This Public Hearing will take place at a regular Governing Board

meeting scheduled for Wednesday, September 9, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. this meeting will be
held virtually via Zoom:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/|/81233068917?pwd=TGFEaUNROVEXxZTVzeWd50XVnOXZIUT09

Meeting ID: 812 3306 8917

Passcode: 8j2Udq

One tap mobile
+16699009128,,81233068917#,,,,,,0#,,326811# US (San Jose)

This announcement posted August 26, 2020.

132


https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F81233068917%3Fpwd%3DTGFEaUNROVExZTVzeWd5QXVnQXZlUT09&sa=D&ust=1598827055231000&usg=AOvVaw07uEJTW_xMfPMaVa-Hj7gC

Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda ltem Summary

Action Item: 16.5 Approval of Resolution # 541 Regarding Textbook
and Instructional Materials Sufficiency for the Piner-Olivet Union
School District for the 2020-2021 School Year per Ed. Code 60119

Regular Meeting of: September 9, 2020  Action Item Report Format:Oral

Attachment: Resolution

Presented by: Dr. Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent

Background
Under EC Section 60119, the governing board of every local educational agency (LEA) that

receives state instructional materials funds must hold an annual public hearing before the end of
the eighth week from the first day pupils attend school for that year. At the public hearing the
governing board must make a determination as to whether each pupil in each school has
sufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or both, that are aligned to the content standards
and are consistent with content and cycles of the curriculum framework adopted by the State
Board of Education in reading/language arts, mathematics, science, and history-social science.
The Board will hold the Public Hearing earlier in this meeting.

Issue(s)

In addition, the definition of sufficiency now provides that each pupil, including each English
learner, must have a standards-aligned textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class
and to take home.

Plan/Discussion/Detail

A resolution must be adopted at a meeting subsequent to the Public Hearing. The resolution
states that there were no comments at the Public Hearing that were regarding the sufficiency of
instructional materials as required by Ed. Code 60119 and that there are sufficient textbooks and
instructional materials for each student that conform to State standards in reading/language arts,
mathematics, science and history-social science.

Fiscal Impact
None at this time. In the past, instructional materials funding could be reclaimed by the State if

the Ed. Codes were not followed. Since instructional materials funding has been rolled into the
LCFF funding calculation, this is being done to follow the Ed. Code and comply with the Williams
Settlement.

Options

Recommendation
Approve as presented

Motion:

Moved by: Second:

Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent:
FRANICEVIC HINTON MOHR PRYOR WAY

133



RESOLUTION #541
September 9, 2020

RESOLUTION REGARDING TEXTBOOK AND INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS
SUFFICIENCY FOR THE PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE 2020-2021
FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, the governing board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District, in order to comply
with the requirements of Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing on September 9, 2020, at
7:00 p.m. o’clock, which is on or before the eighth week of school and which did not take place during or
immediately following school hours, and;

WHEREAS, the governing board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing posted in
at least three public places within the district that stated the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, and;

WHEREAS, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, members of the
community and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing and,;

WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing and to the governing board at the public
meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were provided to all students,
including English learners, in the District, and,;

WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that each
pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home to complete
required homework assignments, and;

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student,
including English learners, in mathematics, science, history-social science, and English/language arts,
including the English language development component of an adopted program, consistent with the
cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks, and;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that for the 2020-2021 school year, the Piner-Olivet
Union School District has provided each pupil with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials consistent
with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks.

The foregoing resolution was introduced by Board Member
who moved its adoption, seconded by Board Member and adopted on
roll call on September 9, 2020 by the following vote:

BOARD MEMBER Janae Franicevic
BOARD MEMBER Mardi Hinton
BOARD MEMBER Mindy Mohr
BOARD MEMBER Cindy Pryor
BOARD MEMBER John Way
AYES: _ NOES: ABSENT: NOT VOTING:

WHEREUPON, the President declared the foregoing resolution adopted, and

SO ORDERED.

Cindy Pryor, President
Piner-Olivet Union School District

134



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda ltem Summary

Action Item: 16.6 Approval of Contract with Blach Construction
Company for Solar Structure Repair

Regular Meeting of: September 9, 2020  Action Item Report Format:Oral

Attachment: Staff Report Resolution

Presented by: Felicia Koha, CBO

Background
There was some damage to a solar structure in front of the District Office during the 2019-20

year. The District has been working with our insurance provider, RESIG, to be reimbursed for the
expense of the repairs. The District has been working with the original firm, Blach Construction
Company, who constructed all of the solar structures within the district to make these repairs.

Issue(s)

Plan/Discussion/Detail
In order for the District to move forward with repair work, the attached contract will need to be
awarded to Blach Construction Company.

Fiscal Impact
None; insurance to reimbursement District.

Options

Recommendation
Approve as presented

Motion:

Moved by: Second:

Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent

FRANICEVIC HINTON MOHR PRYOR WAY

135



CONTRACT
This Contract (“Contract”) is made by and between the Piner-Olivet Union School District
(“District”), and Blach Construction (“Contractor”).
District and Contractor hereby agree as follows:

1. Description of Work

The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, supervision, appurtenances,
and services, including transportation and utilities, required to perform and satisfactorily complete all work
required for the following project (“Project”) in full conformance with the Contract Documents: PV
Damage Repair.

2. Contract Documents

The Contract Documents consist of the executed Contract and all Addenda, all approved change orders, the
required Insurance forms, the Notice of Award, the Notice to Proceed, the General Conditions and any
supplemental conditions, the Technical Specifications, the Drawings, Labor Compliance Program and
Compliance Monitoring Unit program (if applicable), and Blach Construction Proposal for PV Damage
Repair.

3. Compensation

As full compensation for the Contractor's complete and satisfactory performance of the work and
activities described in the Contract Documents, the District agrees to pay Contractor, and Contractor agrees
to accept the sum of Fifty Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($50,750.00), which shall be paid to
the Contractor according to the Contract Documents.

4, Prevailing Wages

This Project is subject to prevailing wage requirements and Contractor and its Subcontractors are
required to pay all workers employed for the performance of this Contract no less than the applicable
prevailing wage rate for each such worker. If this Contract is for a public works project over $25,000 or for
a maintenance project over $15,000, Contractor acknowledges that the project is subject to compliance
monitoring and enforcement by the California Department of Industrial Relations in accordance with
California Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1770 et seq.

5. Time for Completion

The starting date of the Contract shall be the day listed by the District in the Notice to Proceed and
the Contractor shall fully complete all the work before the expiration of 14 calendar days from the starting
date. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Contract.

136



6. Liquidated Damages

Liquidated damages for the Contractor's failure to complete the Contract within the time fixed for
completion are established in the amount of $250 per calendar day.

7. Performance and Payment Bonds

The Contractor shall file with the District the following bonds, using the bond forms provided with
these Contract Documents:

a) A corporate surety bond, in a sum not less than 100 percent of the amount of the
Contract, to guarantee the faithful performance of the Contract.

b) A corporate surety bond, in a sum not less than 100 percent of the amount of the
Contract, to guarantee the payment of wages for services engaged and of bills
contracted for materials, supplies, and equipment used in the performance of the
Contract.

8. Independent Contractor

The parties intend that Contractor and Contractor’s employees and agents, if any, in performing
the services herein specified, shall act as an independent contractor and shall have control of the work
and the manner in which it is performed in accordance with Labor Code section 2750.3. Contractor
acknowledges that it is a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company, limited liability
partnership, or corporation, as defined by Labor Code section 2750.3(e). Contractor is not to be considered
an agent or employee of District and is not entitled to participate in any pension plans, insurance, bonus
or similar benefits District provides its employees. Contractor shall not at any time or in any manner
represent that Individual is an official, officer, employee or agent of District.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties agree to the terms of this Contract on the day and year written
below.

District Contractor

By:

Individual Signature Contractor License No.
and Expiration Date

By:

Individual Signature

Title

Date

137



If Corporation, Place Seal Below:

For:

Corporation or Partnership

138



GENERAL CONDITIONS TO CONTRACT

DEFINITIONS

Architect: The person or firm holding a valid license to practice architecture or engineering which
has been designated (if any designated) to provide architectural or engineering design services on
this Project. If no architect or engineer has in fact been designated, then the matter shall be referred
to the District Superintendent.

DSA: The State of California Division of the State Architect.
Final Completion: Final Completion is achieved when the Contractor has fully completed all

Contract Document requirements, including, but not limited to, all final punch list items, to the
District’s satisfaction.

Inspector: The person engaged by the District to conduct the inspections required by the Education
Code and Title 24.

Subcontractor: A person, firm, or corporation, duly licensed by the State of California, who has a
contract with the Contractor regarding the Project.

ARCHITECT
The Architect is responsible for the overall design of the Project.

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

a. Contents and Precedence

The Contract Documents consist of the executed Contract and all Addenda, all approved
change orders, the required insurance forms, the Notice of Award, the Notice to Proceed,
the General Conditions, any supplemental Conditions, and the Technical Specifications, the
Drawings. The Contract Documents are complementary and anything required by one shall
be as binding as if required by all. In case of conflicts within the Contract Documents, the
order of precedence of interpretation shall be as listed above, with the executed Contract and
any change order thereto having priority, and subsequent Addenda having priority over prior
Addenda only to the extent modified by the subsequent Addenda. In case of conflict within
the drawings, larger scale drawings shall govern smaller scale drawings, and written
dimensions shall govern over scaled dimensions.

b. Ambiquities, Errors, and Inconsistencies

If, in the opinion of the Contractor, the construction details indicated on the drawings or
otherwise specified are in conflict with accepted industry standards for quality construction
and therefore might interfere with its full guarantee of the work involved, the Contractor

139



shall promptly bring this information to the attention of the Architect for appropriate action
before submittal of the proposal. Contractor’s failure to request clarification or
interpretation of an apparent ambiguity, error or inconsistency waives that Contractor’s right
to thereafter claim any entitlement to additional compensation based upon an ambiguity,
inconsistency, or error, which should have been discovered by a reasonably prudent
Contractor, subject to the limitations of Public Contract Code §1104. During the Project,
should any discrepancy appear or any misunderstanding arise as to the import of anything
contained in the Contract Documents, the matter shall be promptly referred to the Architect,
who will issue instructions or corrections.

C. Lines and Planes

All lines and planes appearing on Contract drawings to be horizontal or vertical and not
explicitly indicated otherwise shall be constructed true and plumb. All lines and planes
appearing on Contract drawings to intersect at right angles and not explicitly indicated
otherwise shall be constructed at true right angles. Where details are indicated covering
specific conditions, such details also apply to all similar conditions not specifically indicated.

d. Standards

The specification standards of the various sections of the Specifications shall be the
procedural, performance, and material standards of the applicable association publications
identified and shall be the required level of installation, materials, workmanship, and
performance for the applicable work. Except where a specific date of issue is mentioned
hereinafter, references to specification standards shall mean the edition, including
amendments and supplements, in effect on the date of the Contract. Where no standard is
identified and a manufacturer is specified, the manufacturer's specifications are the
standards. All standards shall be subordinate to the requirements of the applicable codes
and regulations.

Wherever in the Specifications an article, device or piece of equipment is referred to in the
singular, such reference shall include as many such items as are shown on drawings or
required to complete the installation.

4. INTENT OF DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

Drawings and Specifications are to be read as an integrated document.

Figured dimensions shall be followed in preference to scaled dimensions, and the Contractor
shall make all additional measurements necessary for the work and shall be responsible for
their accuracy. Before ordering any material or doing any work, the Contractor shall verify
all measurements at the Project site and shall be responsible for the correctness of same.

It is the intent of the drawings and Specifications to show and describe complete
installations. Items shown but not specified, or specified but not shown, shall be included
unless specifically omitted.

140



The Specifications shall be deemed to include and require everything necessary and
reasonably incidental to the completion of all work described and indicated on the drawings,
whether particularly mentioned or shown, or not.

S. MASTER MANDATORY PROVISIONS

a. Any material, item, or piece of equipment mentioned, listed or indicated without definition
of quality, shall be consistent with the quality of adjacent or related materials, items, or
pieces of equipment on the Project and in accordance with best practices.

b. Any method of installation, finish, or workmanship of an operation called for, without
definition of standard of workmanship, shall be followed or performed and finished in
accordance with best practices and consistent with adjacent or related installations on the
Project.

C. Any necessary material, item, piece of equipment or operation not called for but reasonably
implied as necessary for proper completion of the work shall be furnished, installed or
performed and finished; and shall be consistent with adjacent or related materials, items, or
pieces of equipment on the Project, and in accordance with best practices.

d. Names or numbered products are to be used according to the manufacturers' directions or
recommendations unless otherwise specified.

6. CONTRACTOR

a. The Contractor shall perform all the work and activities required by the Contract Documents
and furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools and appurtenances necessary to perform
the work and complete it to the District’s satisfaction within the time specified. The
Contractor shall at all times perform the work of this Contract in a competent and
workmanlike manner and, if not specifically stated, accomplish the work according to the
best standards of construction practice. The Contractor in no way is relieved of any
responsibility by the activities of the architect, engineer, inspector or DSA in the
performance of such duties.

b. The Contractor shall employ a full-time competent superintendent and necessary assistants
who shall have complete authority to act for the Contractor on all matters pertaining to the
work. The superintendent shall be satisfactory to the District and, if not satisfactory, shall
be replaced by the Contractor with one that is acceptable. Also, the superintendent shall not
be changed without the written consent of the District unless the superintendent ceases to be
employed by the Contractor.

C. Contractor shall make the layout of lines and elevations and shall be responsible for the
accuracy of both the Contractor’s and the Subcontractors' work resulting therefrom. All
dimensions affecting proper fabrication and installation of all Contract work must be verified
by the Contractor prior to fabrication and installation by taking field measurements of the
true conditions. The Contractor shall take, and assist Subcontractors in taking, all field
dimensions required in performance of the work, and shall verify all dimensions and

141



conditions on the site. If there are any discrepancies between dimensions in drawings and
existing conditions which will affect the work, the Contractor shall promptly bring such
discrepancies to the attention of the Architect for adjustment before proceeding with the
work. Contractor shall be responsible for the proper fitting of all work and for the
coordination of all trades, Subcontractors and persons engaged upon this Contract.

d. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, or patching of Contractor’s work that may be required
to make its several parts come together properly and fit it to receive or be received by work
of other contractors as shown, or reasonably implied by, the drawings and Specifications for
the completed work. Any cost incurred by the District due to defective or ill-timed work
shall be borne by the Contractor.

7. RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR

a. Contractor shall be held strictly responsible for the proper performance of all work covered
by the Contract Documents, including all work performed by Subcontractors. All work
performed under this Contract shall comply in every respect to the rules and regulations of
all agencies having jurisdiction over the Project or any part thereof.

b. Contractor shall perform the duties and shall submit Verified Reports as required by Title
24, California Code of Regulations (“CCR”).

C. With respect to work performed at and near a school site, Contractor shall at all times take
all appropriate measures to ensure the security and safety of students and staff, including,
but not limited to, ensuring that all of Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors, and suppliers
entering school property strictly adhere to all applicable District policies and procedures,
e.g., sign-in requirements, visitor badges, and access limitations.

8. SUBCONTRACTORS

a. Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship
between any Subcontractor and the District. The District shall be deemed to be the third
party beneficiary of the contract between the Contractor and each Subcontractor. If the
Contractor does not specify a Subcontractor for any portion of the work to be performed
under this Contract, as required by law, Contractor shall perform that portion of the work
with its own forces. The Contractor shall not substitute any other person or firm as a
Subcontractor for those listed in the List submitted by the Contractor, without the written
approval of the District and in conformance with the requirements of the Public Contract
Code. The District reserves the right of approval of all Subcontractors proposed for use on
this Project, and to this end, may require financial, performance, and such additional
information as is needed to secure this approval. If a Subcontractor is not approved, the
Contractor shall promptly submit another firm of the same trade for approval.

142



9.

INSURANCE

Contractor shall obtain the following insurance from a company or companies acceptable to
the District. All required insurance must be written by a company licensed to do business
in the State of California at the time the policy is issued. All required insurance shall be
equal to or exceed an A VIII rating as listed in Best's Insurance Guides' latest edition. On a
case-by-case basis, the District may accept insurance written by a company listed on the
State of California Department of Insurance List of Eligible Surplus Lines (“LESLI List™)
with a rating of A VIII or above as listed in Best’s Insurance Guides’ latest edition. Required
documentation of such insurance shall be furnished to the District within the time stated in
the Notice of Award. Contractor shall not commence work nor shall it allow its employees
or Subcontractors or anyone to commence work until all insurance required hereunder has
been submitted and approved in writing by the District and a notice to proceed has been
issued.

Contractor shall take out and maintain at all times during the life of this Contract, up to the
date of acceptance of the work by the District, the following policies of insurance:

1) Public Liability Insurance: Personal injury and replacement value property damage
insurance for all activities of the Contractor and its Subcontractors arising out of or
in connection with this Contract, written on a comprehensive general liability form
including contractor's protected coverage, blanket contractual, completed
operations, vehicle coverage and employer's non-ownership liability coverage, in an
amount no less than $2,000,000 combined single limit personal injury and property
damage for each occurrence, and a general aggregate limit which applies either
separately or specifically to this Contract of $2,000,000.

2) Builders' Risk Insurance: Contractor shall procure and maintain builders' risk
insurance (all-risk coverage) for an amount equal to one hundred percent of the
Contract sum for the benefit of the District, and the Contractor and Subcontractors
as their interest may appear. In projects involving no structural change or building
construction, this requirement may be waived in writing, at the District's sole option.

3) Automobile Insurance. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury and
property damage in an amount no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for
each occurrence. Such insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired, and
nonowned vehicles

These policies shall include the following coverage:

1) The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair the rights of one
insured against another insured and the coverages afforded shall apply as though
separate policies have been issued to each insured.

2) This policy does not exclude explosion, collapse, underground excavation hazard,
or removal of lateral support.

143



C.

Endorsements:
1) The policies specified above shall be endorsed with the following specific language:

“The District is named as an additional insured for all liability arising out of the
operations by or on behalf of the named insured, and this policy protects the
additional insured, its officers, agents and employees against liability for bodily
injuries, death or property damage or destruction arising in any respect directly or
indirectly in the performance of the Contract.”

2) The certificates must state that the insurance is under an occurrence based, and not
a claims-made policy (policies). Both the Public Liability Policy and the Builders'
Risk Policy specified above shall be endorsed with the following specific language:

I. The insurance provided herein is primary and no insurance held or
owned by the District shall be called upon to contribute to a loss.

ii. Coverage provided by this policy shall not be reduced or canceled
without thirty (30) days written notice given to the District by
certified mail.

Documentation:

Within ten (10) calendar days following issuance of the Notice of Award of the Contract,
the following documentation of insurance shall be submitted to the District for approval
prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed: signed certificates of insurance showing the limits
of insurance provided and copies of the specified endorsements for each policy. Certified
copies of all policies shall be provided to the District upon request. If Contractor fails to
submit the required documentation for all coverage required by this Contract within ten (10)
calendar days following issuance of the Notice of Award, the District may, acting in its sole
discretion, rescind the Notice of Award and the Contract.

If the Contractor fails to maintain such insurance, the District may take out such insurance
to cover any damages for which the District might be held liable on account of the
Contractor's failure to pay such damages, and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums
from any sums due the Contractor under the Contract.

Workers' Compensation Insurance:

1) Within ten (10) calendar days following issuance of the Notice of Award of the
Contract, the Contractor shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the
Contractor and all Subcontractors it intends to employ have procured, for the period
covered by the Contract, full Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by law.

144



10.

11.

12.

13.

CODES AND REGULATIONS

a. The Contractor shall be knowledgeable regarding and shall comply with applicable portions
of Code of Regulations Title 24, the applicable Building Codes, and all other codes,
ordinances, regulations or orders of properly constituted authority having jurisdiction over
the work of this Project. The Contractor shall examine the Contract Documents for
compliance with these codes and regulations and shall promptly notify the Architect of any
discrepancies.

b. All work and materials shall be in full accordance with the latest rules and regulations of the
Safety Orders of the Division of Industrial Safety and the applicable State laws and/or
regulations. Nothing in the Project plans or Specifications is to be construed to permit work
not conforming to the applicable Codes. Buildings and/or all other construction covered by
this Contract shall meet all the regulations for access by the physically handicapped as
administered by the Division of the State Architect and as may be required by federal or
state law.

PERMITS AND TAXES

The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all permits, fees and licenses that are required in
order to perform the work under this Contract. The District shall pay connection charges
and meter costs for new permanent utilities required by these Contract Documents.

The Contractor shall pay for all applicable taxes on materials and equipment.

PATENTS AND ROYALTIES

All fees or claims for patents, royalties or licenses on materials, equipment or processes used in the
performance of work on this Project shall be included in the amount of the Contract price.

SAFETY AND FIRE PREVENTION

a. The Contractor, Subcontractors and all of their agents and employees shall fully comply
with all of the provisions and requirements of CAL/OSHA, Title 8, California Code of
Regulations and all other safety codes applicable to the Project. The Contractor shall take
thorough precautions at all times for the protection of persons and property, and shall be
liable for all damages to persons or property, either on or off the site, which occur as a result
of Contractor’s prosecution of the work. The Contractor shall obtain permits for, install and
maintain in safe condition barricades, walkways, fences, railings, and whatever other
safeguards that may be necessary to protect persons and property from damage as a result
of the construction under this Contract.

b. Contractor is required to ensure Material Safety Data Sheets (“MSDS”) are available in a
readily accessible place at the work site for any material requiring a MSDS pursuant to the
federal "Hazard Communication” standard or employee "right to know" laws. Contractor is
also required to ensure proper labeling on materials brought on the job site such that any

145



14.

16.

17.

person working with the material or within the general area of the material is informed of
the hazards of the material and follows proper handling and protection procedures. A copy
of the MSDS shall also be promptly submitted directly to the District.

C. Contractor shall take extraordinary care to prevent fires.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Unless otherwise specified, this Contract does not include the removal, handling, or disturbance of
any hazardous substances or materials encountered in the new construction or on the Project
grounds. If such substances or materials are encountered, work shall cease in that area and the
District shall be promptly notified to take appropriate action for removal or otherwise abating the
condition in accordance with current regulations applicable to the District.

No ashestos, asbestos-containing products or other hazardous materials shall be used in this
construction or in any tools, devices, clothing or equipment used to further this construction.

15. TEMPORARY FACILITIES

The Contractor shall obtain permits for, install and maintain in safe condition all scaffolds, hoisting
equipment, barricades, walkways, or other temporary structures that may be required to accomplish
the work. Such structures shall be adequate for the intended use and capable of safely accepting all
loads that may be imposed upon them. They shall be installed and maintained in accordance with
all applicable codes and regulations.

SIGNS
No signs may be displayed on or about the District's property (except those which may be required

by law) without the District's prior written approval of size, content and location. Any signs required
by the District will be designated in the Supplemental General Conditions.

TIME

a. The Contractor shall commence the work on the date indicated in the Notice to Proceed.
Time is of the essence regarding the Contract work, and the Contractor shall prosecute the
work diligently and regularly at such a rate of progress as to ensure completion of this Project
within, or sooner than, the time specified.

b. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall provide and maintain enough manpower, materials

and equipment to ensure a rate of construction progress that will complete the Project within
or sooner than the time specified and according to the schedule of work. If, in the District’s
opinion, the Contractor and/or Subcontractors are not prosecuting the work at a sufficient
rate of progress to meet the Project schedule, the District may direct the Contractor to
provide additional manpower, materials or equipment, or to work additional hours, holidays
or weekends without additional cost to the District until the work is progressing in a manner
satisfactory to the District. Failure to prosecute the work in a timely manner according to

146



the Project schedule is considered a breach of Contract and shall be cause for termination of
the Contract.

18. CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

a. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after the award of the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare
and submit to the Architect and District an as-planned construction schedule showing in
detail how the Contractor plans to prosecute the work within the time set for Final
Completion. The schedule shall include the work of all trades necessary for construction of
the Project, and shall be sufficiently complete and comprehensive to enable progress to be
monitored on a day-by-day basis. The information for each activity shall include at a
minimum the activity description, duration, start date and completion date.

b. The Contractor shall take care in the preparation of the schedule to ensure that it represents
an accurate and efficient plan for accomplishing the work. If the Project is more than one
week behind schedule, it must be promptly revised showing how the Contractor plans to
complete the work, but in no case shall it show a completion date later than that required by
the Contract, unless a time extension has been granted. The current schedule shall be kept
posted in the Contractor's project office on site.

19. DELAYS AND TIME EXTENSIONS

a. The Contractor may be granted a time extension if the Contractor encounters an unavoidable
delay of the work due to causes completely beyond the Contractor’s control and which the
Contractor could not have avoided by the exercise of reasonable care, prudence, foresight
and diligence. The Contractor will not be granted time extensions for weather conditions
which are normal for the location of the Project, according to the U. S. Weather Bureau
Records.

b. A request for extension of time and compensation related thereto shall be made in writing
to the Architect and District within ten (10) calendar days of the date the delay is
encountered, or shall be deemed waived. The request shall include a detailed description of
the reasons for the delay and corrective measures by the Contractor.

C. No damages or compensation or any kind shall be paid to a Contractor because of delays in
the progress of work, whether such delays be avoidable or unavoidable, that are not the
responsibility of District. District's liability to Contractor for delays for which District is
responsible shall be limited to an extension of time unless such delays were unreasonable
under the circumstances involved and were not within the contemplation of the parties when
the Contract was awarded. The District shall not be liable for any damages which the
Contractor could have avoided by any reasonable means including, but not limited to, the
more judicious handling of forces or equipment.

147



20.

21.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

a.

The parties understand and agree that the goodwill, educational process, and other business
of District will be damaged if the Project is not completed within the time limits required.
The parties have further agreed that the exact amount of damages for failure to complete the
Work within the time specified is, in some cases, extremely difficult, impractical, or
impossible to determine. As to those damages that are difficult, impractical, or impossible
to determine, Should the Contractor fail to achieve Final Completion of this Contract within
the time fixed for Final Completion, together with extensions granted by the District for
unavoidable delays, Contractor shall become liable to the District in the amount specified in
the Contract per calendar day for each day the Contract remains incomplete beyond the time
for Final Completion, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty. Contractor shall not be
charged with liquidated damages when the delay in completion of the work beyond the time
for Final Completion is due to acts of the District.

In addition to any liquidated damages which may be assessed, if Contractor fails to achieve
Final Completion of this Contract within the time fixed for Final Completion, together with
extensions granted by the District for unavoidable delays, and if as a result District finds it
necessary to incur any costs and/or expenses, or if District receives any claims by other
contractors, subcontractors, or third parties claiming time or other compensation by reason
of Contractor’s failure to complete work on time, Contractor shall pay all those costs and
expenses incurred by District. These costs and expenses may include but are not limited to
such items as rental payments, inspection fees, and additional architectural fees, whether
related to the acquisition of facilities or caused by the delay in completion.

Any money due or to become due the Contractor may be retained to cover liquidated and
other delay damages. Should such money not be sufficient to cover those damages, the
District shall have the right to recover the balance from the Contractor or Contractor’s
sureties.

Should the District authorize suspension of the work for any cause, the time work is
suspended will be added to the time for completion. Suspension of the work by the District
shall not be a waiver of the right to claim liquidated or other delay damages as set forth in
this section.

DISTRICT'S RIGHT TO STOP WORK; TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE

CONTRACT

District's Right to Stop Work:

In addition to or as an alternative to any and all other remedies available to the District, if
the Contractor fails to correct work which is not performed in accordance with the Contract
Documents, or if the Contractor persistently fails to perform the work in accordance with the
Contract Documents, the District may by written order direct the Contractor to stop the work,
or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated to the satisfaction
of the District. However, the right of the District to stop the work shall not give rise to a
duty on the part of the District to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any

148



22.

other person or entity, and the failure of the District to do so shall not be raised as a defense
to the Contractor's failure to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

b. Termination for Cause:

1)

If the Contractor refuses or fails to furnish sufficient materials, work force,
equipment, and appurtenances to properly prosecute the work in a timely manner, or
if Contractor refuses or fails to comply with any provisions of the Contract
Documents, or if Contractor should file a bankruptcy petition or make a general
assignment for the benefit of Contractor’s creditors or if a receiver should be
appointed on account of Contractor’s insolvency, then the District may give the
Contractor written notice of intention to terminate the Contract. Unless within seven
(7) calendar days after the serving of such notice upon the Contractor such violation
shall cease and arrangements for correction of such conditions shall be made
satisfactory to the District, the Contract shall cease and terminate. In the event of
such termination, the District shall immediately serve written notice thereof upon
the Contractor.

C. Termination or Suspension for Convenience:

The District reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate or suspend all or part of the
Contract for convenience following three (3) days written notice to the Contractor. In the
event of termination or suspension for convenience, Contractor shall have no claims against
the District, except:

1)

2)

The actual cost of labor, materials and services provided pursuant to the Contract,
and which have not yet been paid for, as documented by timesheets, invoices,
receipts and the like; and

Five percent (5%) of the total cost of the work performed as of the date of notice of
termination or suspension or five percent (5%) of the value of the work yet to be
completed, whichever is less. The parties agree that this amount shall constitute full
and fair compensation for all of Contractor's lost profits and other damages resulting
from the termination or suspension for convenience.

ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

The Contractor may not assign or delegate all or any portion of this Contract without the written

consent of the District and no such consent shall be given which would relieve the Contractor of its
responsibilities under the Contract. The Contractor may assign, without liability to the District,
monies due the Contractor under the Contract to banks, trust companies or other financial
institutions provided written notice thereof is promptly delivered to the District. Assignment of
monies earned by the Contractor shall be subject to the same retention as other payments made to
Contractor, and shall also be subject to setoffs and back charges as provided by this Contract.

149



23. COORDINATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTS

The District reserves the right to do other work or award other contracts in connection with
this Project. By entering into this Contract, Contractor acknowledges that there may be other
contractors on or adjacent to the Project site whose work must be coordinated with that of
its own. Contractor expressly warrants and agrees that it will cooperate with other
contractors and will do nothing to delay, hinder, or interfere with the work of other
contractors, or that of the District, its Architect and Construction Manager. Contractor also
expressly agrees that in the event its work is hindered, delayed, interfered with, or otherwise
affected by a separate contractor, its sole remedy will be a direct action against the separate
contractor. To the extent allowed by law, the Contractor expressly waives any remedy
against the District, its Architect and Construction Manager on account of delay, hindrance,
interference or other such events caused by a separate contractor.

If Contractor is aware of a current or potential conflict between Contractor’s work and the
work of another contractor on the site, and is unable to informally resolve the conflict
directly with the other contractor, Contractor shall promptly provide written notice to the
District, with a copy to the Architect and the other contractor, specifying the nature of the
conflict, the date upon which the conflict arose, and the steps taken to attempt to resolve the
conflict. The District may issue written instructions to address the conflict.

If, through Contractor’s negligence, any other contractor or subcontractor shall suffer loss
or damage to the work, Contractor shall make a reasonable effort to settle with such other
contractor and subcontractor by agreement or arbitration. If such other contractor or
subcontractor shall assert any claim against the District or Architect, on account of any
damage alleged to have been so sustained, the District or Architect shall notify the
Contractor, who shall defend such proceedings at Contractor’s own expense and save
harmless and indemnify the District and the Architect from any such claim.

24.  SUBMITTALS: SHOP DRAWINGS, CUTS AND SAMPLES

a.

Five (5) copies of shop drawings, brochures and cuts and samples in quantities specified by
the Architect shall be submitted to the Architect for all items for which they are required by
the plans and Specifications. Prior to transmittal, the Contractor shall examine all submittals
for accuracy and completeness in order to verify their suitability for the work and
compliance with the Contract Documents and shall sign and date each submittal. Submittals
shall be made sufficiently before the items are required for the work so as to cause no delay
and shall be in accordance with the Project construction schedule.

25. PAYMENTS

Cost Breakdown:

Prior to submitting Contractor’s first request for payment, the Contractor shall prepare and
submit to the Architect and District a cost breakdown (schedule of values) showing the major
work items for each trade or operation required in construction of the Project. The work

150



items shall be sufficiently detailed to enable the Architect to accurately evaluate the
completion percentages requested by the Contractor. The cost for each work item shall
include overhead and profit. The total of all work item costs shall equal the amount of the
Contract.

Progress Payments:

The Contractor will, on or about the last day of each month, make an estimate of the value
of the work completed by Contractor in the performance of the Contract. These estimates
shall be subject to the review and approval of the Architect. The first such estimate will be
of the value of the work completed after the Contractor commenced the performance of the
Contract, and every subsequent estimate, except the final estimate, will be of the value of
the work completed since the immediately preceding estimate. Such estimates will be based
on labor, materials and equipment incorporated into the work, and items of materials and
equipment delivered to the Project. The Contractor shall be responsible for the security and
protection of such materials and equipment delivered to the Project and not incorporated in
the work. Within thirty (30) calendar days after the approval of each estimate for progress
payment, the District will pay to the Contractor an amount equal to ninety five (95) percent
of the approved estimate. Payments may at any time be withheld if in the judgment of the
District the work is not proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents, the
Contractor is not complying with the requirements of the Contract, stop notices have been
timely filed, the estimate contains an error, or the District has incurred costs or requests
reasonable financial assurances regarding defective work by the Contractor.

Final Payment:

Within thirty (30) days after all required work is fully completed in accordance with the
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall submit a final invoice for the total value of the
work completed in accordance with the Contract, which shall be subject to review and
approval by the District. As required by law, District shall pay Contractor the unpaid balance
of the Contract price of the work, or the whole Contract price of the work if no progress
payment has been made, determined in accordance with the terms of the Contract, less such
sums as may be lawfully retained under any provision of the Contract, including, but not
limited to, amounts retained as liquidated damages, for stop notices, for third-party claims
for which the Contractor is required to indemnify the District, for defective work and costs
incurred by the District in connection therewith, or for other such claims and damages
attributable to the Contractor (“Final Payment”). Prior progress estimates and payments are
subject to correction in the Final Payment. Tender of the Final Payment shall constitute
denial by the District of any unresolved claim. Contractor’s acceptance of the Final Payment
shall operate as a full and final release to the District and its agents from any and all
unasserted claims Contractor has, or may have, related to this Contract.

Payments Do Not Imply Acceptance of Work:

The granting of any progress payment or payments by the District or the receipt thereof by
the Contractor shall not constitute acceptance of the work or of any portion thereof, and shall
in no way lessen the liability of the Contractor to replace unsatisfactory work or material,

151



whether or not the unsatisfactory character of such work or material was apparent or detected
at the time such payment was made.

f. Release:

The Contractor and each assignee under an assignment in effect at the time of Final Payment
shall, if required by the District, execute and deliver at the time of Final Payment and as a
condition precedent to Final Payment, a release in form and substance satisfactory to and
containing such exemptions as may be found appropriate by the District, discharging the
District, its officers, agents and employees of and from liabilities, obligations and claims
arising under this Contract.

h. Payment to Subcontractors and Suppliers:

The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor and supplier promptly on receipt of each
progress payment from the District for the materials, labor and equipment delivered to the
site or incorporated in the work by each Subcontractor during the period for which the
progress payment is made, less any retention as provided above.

i. Stop Notice Costs:

The District reserves the right to charge the Contractor, or to withhold from release of
retention, all costs incurred by the District, including attorney’s fees, for processing and
defending stop notice claims.

26. MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACT

a. Changes In The Work:

1) The District, before the date of acceptance of the work, may, without notice to the
Sureties, order changes in the work (“Modifications”), may order extra materials and
extra work in connection with the performance of the Contract, and the Contractor
shall promptly comply with such orders. All Modifications must be approved by
DSA and the State Fire Marshall, if applicable, as required by law.

2) If changes ordered in design, workmanship or materials are of such a nature as to
increase or decrease the cost of any part of the work, the price fixed in the Contract
shall be increased or decreased by such amount as represents the reasonable and
proper allowance for the increase or decrease in the cost of the work in accordance
with the provisions of this Article, and any other applicable terms of the Contract,
including, but not limited to, the Contractor’s schedule of values and the price for
allowances, if any. Except as provided by law, the total cost of all Modifications
shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the original Contract price.

3) In the case of a disputed work item, the District may direct the Contractor to perform
the disputed work at no additional cost to the District on the grounds that the work

152



is adequately indicated in the Contract Documents, and therefore already included
in the Contract price. If the Contractor maintains that the disputed work represents
a modification to the Contract, Contractor may submit a claim in accordance with
Article 39, Resolution of Construction Claims. Notwithstanding any dispute
regarding the requirements of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall promptly
and fully comply with the District’s directive. Contractor’s failure to do so shall be
deemed a material breach of this Contract, and in addition to all other remedies,
District may, at its sole discretion, hire another contractor and/or use its own forces
to complete the disputed work at Contractor’s sole expense, and may deduct the cost
of such work from the Contract price.

Cost Breakdown:

When the Modification is proposed, the Contractor shall furnish a complete breakdown of
actual costs of both credits and extras, itemizing materials, labor, taxes, overhead and profit.
Subcontract work shall be so indicated. All costs must be fully documented. The following
limitations shall apply:

1)

2)

Limitations Where Contract Price Changes are Involved:

@ Overhead and Profit for the Contractor. The Contractor and any
subcontractor's overhead and profit on the cost of subcontracts shall be a sum
not exceeding ten percent (10%) of such costs. The Contractor's overhead
and profit on the costs of work performed by the Contractor shall be a sum
not exceeding fifteen percent (15%) of such costs. Overhead and profit shall
not be applied to the cost of taxes and insurance by Contractor or
Subcontractors or to credits. No processing or similar fees may be charged
by the Contractor in connection with the Modification.

(b) Taxes. State and city sales taxes should be indicated. Federal excise tax
shall not be included. (District will issue an exemption on request.)

Change Order Certification:

All change orders and requests for proposed change orders shall be deemed to
include the following certification by the Contractor:

"The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes in work, if
any, and as to the Contract price specified for each item and as to the extension of
time allowed, if any, for completion of the Project as stated herein, and agrees to
furnish all labor, materials, and service and to perform all work necessary to
complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated herein.
Submission of claims which have no basis in fact or which Contractor knows are
false are made at the sole risk of the Contractor and may be a violation of the False
Claims Act, as set forth in Government Code 8812650 et seq. It is understood that

153



the changes to the Contract Documents set forth herein shall only be effective upon
approval by the Governing Board of the District.

"It is expressly understood that the value of the extra work or changes expressly
includes any and all of the Contractor's costs and expenses, both direct and indirect,
resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay to the
Project. Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included herein are
deemed waived.”

Unit Prices, Schedule of VValues, or Allowances:

Where Unit Prices, a Schedule of Values, and/or Allowances are required by the Contract
Documents, that pricing shall govern in computing any additions to or deductions from the
Contract price on account of any added or omitted work. Unit Prices listed in the original
Contract include all costs and no addition of any description will be allowed.

Time and Materials:

If it is impractical, because of the nature of the work, or for any other reason, to fix an
increase in price in advance, the Change Order may fix a maximum price which shall not
under any circumstances be exceeded, and subject to such limitation, such alteration,
modification or extra shall be paid for at the actual necessary cost as determined by the sum
of the following items (1) to (5) inclusive:

1) Labor, including premium on compensation insurance and charge for Social
Security taxes, and other taxes pertaining to labor.

2) Material, including sales taxes and other taxes pertaining to materials.

3) Plant and equipment rental, to be agreed upon in writing before the work is begun.
No charge for the cost of repairs to plant or equipment will be allowed.

4) Overhead and profit computed at fifteen percent (15%) of the total of Items (1) to
(3) inclusive.

If the Time and Materials work is done by a Subcontractor, the amount shall be determined
as set forth above under items (1) to (5) inclusive. The Contractor's overhead and profit on
the costs of subcontracts (exclusive of taxes and insurance) shall not exceed ten percent
(10%) of such costs.

The District reserves the right to furnish such materials as it may deem expedient, and no
allowance will be made for profit thereon. The above-described methods of determining the
payment for work and materials shall not apply to the performance of any work or the
furnishing of any material which, in the judgment of the District, may properly be classified
under items for which prices are established in the Contract.

154



21.

28.

29.

e. Oral Modifications:

No oral statements of any person shall in any manner or degree modify or otherwise affect
the terms of the Contract.

INDEMNITY

Contractor shall defend with counsel acceptable to the District, indemnify and hold harmless to the
full extent permitted by law, the District and its Board of Trustees, officers, agents, Architect,
construction manager, employees and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage,
claims, expenses, fines, judgments and costs (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees and costs
and fees of litigation) (collectively, "Liability") of every nature arising out of or in connection with
Contractor's performance of the Project or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained
in these Contract Documents, except such Liability caused by the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of the District. Such indemnification shall extend to all claims, demands, or liabilities
occurring after completion of the project as well as during the progress of the work. Pursuant to
Public Contract Code 89201, District shall timely notify Contractor of receipt of any third-party
claim relating to this Project.

WARRANTY OF TITLE

Contractor warrants that title to all work, materials or equipment included in a request for payment
shall pass and transfer to the District whether or not they are installed or incorporated in the Project,
free from any claims, liens or encumbrances, when such payment is made to the Contractor.
Contractor further warrants that no such work, materials or equipment have been purchased for work
under the Contract subject to an agreement by which an interest therein or an encumbrance thereon
is retained by the seller or supplier.

GUARANTEE AND WARRANTY

a. By signing this Contract, Contractor agrees to the following guarantee and warranty:

Guarantee & Warranty

Contractor hereby guarantees and warrants its work on the
Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of the filing
of the Notice of Completion as follows.

Contractor shall promptly repair or replace to the
satisfaction of the District any or all work that appears
defective in workmanship, equipment and/or materials for
whatever reason, ordinary wear and tear and unusual abuse
or neglect excepted, together with any other work which may
be damaged or displaced in so doing.

155



Contractor agrees to promptly correct and remedy any failure
by the Contractor to conform its work, activities and services
to the requirements of the Contract Documents.

In the event of the Contractor’s failure to comply with the
above-mentioned obligations within ten (10) calendar days of
notice, or sooner if required by an emergency, Contractor
hereby authorizes the District to have the defects or
deficiencies repaired, remedied, corrected and made good at
Contractor’s expense, and Contractor shall pay the costs
and charges therefore upon demand.

30. SUBSTITUTIONS

a. Wherever in the drawings or Specifications a material or product is called for by trade or
brand names or manufacturer and model number, alternative items of equal quality and
purpose may be proposed for use by the Contractor. The burden of proof of equality is on
the Contractor, and Contractor shall furnish all information and supplies necessary for the
Architect to make a thorough evaluation of the proposed substitution. The Architect's
decision about the equality of the proposed substitution is final, and if the proposed
substitution is not approved, the Contractor shall install the item called for. Proposed
substitutions and any changes in adjacent work caused by them shall be made by the
Contractor at no additional cost to the District.

b. In the event Contractor makes substitutions in materials, equipment, or designs, with or
without the District's approval, other than those authorized herein, the Contractor shall then
assume full responsibility for the effects of such substitutions on the entire Project, including
the design, and shall reimburse the District for any charges resulting from such substitutions,
including any charges for modifications in the work of other trades, and including any
charges for additional design and review, plus reasonable and customary mark-ups.

31. INSPECTION

a. All materials, equipment and workmanship used in the work of the Project shall be subject
to inspection or testing at all times and locations during construction and/or manufacture.
Any material or work found to be unsatisfactory or not according to the Contract Documents
shall be replaced with the correct material or work and the defective items promptly
removed, all at the Contractor's expense, when directed to do so by any of the above-named
persons having authority over the work. The cost of review time and analysis by the
Architect or other District consultants necessitated by incomplete or defective work by the
Contractor shall be charged to the Contractor.

b. Inspection and testing by the District or its representatives shall not relieve the Contractor

from complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor is
responsible for its own quality control.

156



32.

33.

34.

35.

CLEANUP

The Contractor shall maintain the premises and area of the work in a neat and clean condition. No
burning of rubbish on site shall be allowed. The Contractor shall control dust on the site by
sprinkling at whatever intervals are necessary to keep it laid down and shall take measures to prevent
dust and debris from being accidentally transported outside the area of the work.

INSTRUCTIONS AND MANUALS

Three copies of the maintenance instructions, application/installation instructions and service
manuals called for in the Specifications shall be provided by the Contractor.

AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall maintain on the work site a separate complete set of
contract drawings which will be used solely for the purpose of recording changes made in any
portion of the work during the course of construction, regardless of the reason for the change. As
changes occur, there will be included or marked on this record set on a daily basis if necessary to
keep them up to date at all times. Progress payments may be delayed or withheld until such time as
the record set is brought up to date to the satisfaction of the Architect. The Contractor shall verify
that all changes in the work are included in the "AS-BUILT" drawings and deliver the complete set
thereof to the Architect for review and approval within thirty (30) calendar days after District's notice
of completion. District's acceptance and approval of the "AS-BUILT" drawings are a necessary
condition precedent to the release of the final retention.

SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES

a. Pursuant to Public Contract Code 822300, Contractor may request in writing that it be
allowed at its own expense to substitute securities for moneys withheld by District to ensure
performance under this Contract. Only securities listed in Government Code 816430 and
bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest-bearing demand deposit accounts,
standby letters of credit, or any other security mutually agreed to by Contractor and District
shall qualify under this Article. Securities equivalent to the amount withheld shall be
deposited with the District or with a state or federally chartered bank in California as the
escrow agent. Upon satisfactory completion of the Contract and on written authorization by
the District, the securities shall be returned to Contractor. Contractor shall be the beneficial
owner of the securities and shall receive any interest thereon. The Contractor may
alternatively request District to make payment of retentions earned directly to the escrow
agent at the expense of the Contractor.

b. At the expense of the Contractor, the Contractor may direct the investment of the payments
into securities and the Contractor shall receive the interest earned on the investments upon
the same terms provided for above for securities deposited by Contractor. Upon satisfactory
completion of the Contract, Contractor shall receive from the escrow agent all securities,
interest, and payments received by the escrow agent from the District. The Contractor shall

157



pay to each Subcontractor, not later than 20 days of receipt of payment, the respective
amount of interest earned, net of costs attributed to retention withheld from each
Subcontractor, on the amount of retention.

C. Any escrow agreement entered into pursuant to this Article shall comply with Public
Contract Code 822300 and shall be subject to approval by District's counsel.

36. LABOR STANDARDS

The Contractor shall comply with the Labor Code as it pertains to this project. In accordance
with Labor Code 81810, eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal day's work under
this Contract. Contractor and any Subcontractor shall pay workers overtime pay as required
by Labor Code §1815. The Contractor shall pay each worker, laborer, mechanic or persons
performing work under this Contract at a rate not less than the prevailing wage for each craft
or classification covering the work actually performed.

Contractor shall comply with Labor Code §81773.3, 1777.5 and 1777.6, and 3077 et. seq.
with regard to apprentices, each of which is incorporated by reference into this Contract. .

As required by Labor Code §1773.2, the District has available copies of the general
prevailing rate of per diem wages for workers employed on public work as determined by
the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, which shall be available to any
interested party on request. Contractor shall post a copy of the document at each job site.

The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall pay each worker performing work under this
Contract at a rate not less than the prevailing wage as defined in Labor Code 81771 and 1774
and 816000(a) of Title 8, California Code of Regulations.

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of 881776 and 1812 of the Labor Code.
The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record
showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classifications, straight time
and overtime hours worked each day and week of all workers employed by Contractor in
connection with the execution of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder and showing
the actual per diem wages paid to each of such workers.

37. PROJECT COMPLETION

a. When all of the work to be performed under this Contract has been fully completed, the
Contractor shall notify the Architect and District, in writing, setting a date for inspection.
The Contractor and Subcontractor representatives shall attend the inspection. As a result of
this inspection, the Architect will prepare a list of items ("punch list") that are incomplete or
not installed according to the Contract Documents. Failure to include items on this list does
not relieve the Contractor from fulfilling all requirements of the Contract Documents.

b. The Architect will promptly deliver the punch list to the Contractor and it will include a
period of time by which the Contractor shall complete all items listed thereon. On

158



completion of all items on the punch list, verified by a final inspection, and all other Contract
requirements, so that Final Completion has been achieved to the District’s satisfaction, the
District will file a Notice of Completion with the County Recorder. Payment of retention
from the Contract, less any sums withheld pursuant to the terms of this Contract or applicable
law, shall not be made sooner than thirty-five (35) calendar days after the date of filing of
Notice of Completion.

C. District reserves the right to occupy buildings and/or portions of the site at any time before
Completion, and occupancy shall not constitute final acceptance of any part of the Work
covered by the Contract Documents, nor shall such occupancy extend the date specified for
completion of the Work. Beneficial occupancy of building(s) does not commence any
warranty period or entitle Contractor to any additional compensation due to such occupancy,
or affect in any way or amount Contractor’s obligation to pay liquidated damages for failure
to complete the Project on time.

38. TRENCHING OR OTHER EXCAVATIONS

a. Excavations or Trenches Deeper than Four Feet:

If the Project involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four

feet, the following provisions shall be a part of this Contract:

1) The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed,
provide written notice to the District if the Contractor finds any of the following
conditions:

@ Material that the Contractor believes may be a hazardous waste, as defined
in 825117 of the Health and Safety Code, which is required to be removed
to a Class I, Class Il, or Class Ill disposal site in accordance with the
provisions of existing law.

(b) Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which are different from
those indicated or expected.

(© Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature or which are
materially different from those ordinarily encountered and generally
recognized as inherent in work which the Contractor generally performs.

2) In the event that the Contractor notifies the District that Contractor has found any of
the conditions specified in subparagraphs (a), (b) or (c), above, the District shall
promptly investigate the condition(s). If the District finds that the conditions are
materially different or that a hazardous waste is present at the site which will affect
the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of the Contract, the
District shall issue a change order in accordance with the procedures set forth in this
Contract.

159



3)

In the event that a dispute arises between the District and the Contractor regarding
any of the matters specified in Paragraph (2), above, the Contractor shall proceed
with all work to be performed under the Contract and the Contractor shall not be
excused from completing the Project as provided in the Contract. In performing the
work pursuant to this Paragraph, the Contractor retains all rights provided by Article
39 which pertains to the resolution of disputes between the contracting parties.

Regional Notification Center: The Contractor, except in an emergency, shall
contact the appropriate regional notification center at least two (2) days prior to
commencing any excavation if the excavation will be conducted in an area that is
known, or reasonably should be known, to contain subsurface installations other than
the underground facilities owned or operated by the District, and obtain an inquiry
identification number from that notification center.

Existing Utility Lines:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Pursuant to Government Code 84215, the District assumes the responsibility for
removal, relocation, and protection of main or trunk utility lines and facilities located
on the construction site at the time of commencement of construction under this
Contract with respect to any such utility facilities that are not identified in the plans
and Specifications.

Locations of existing utilities provided by the District shall not be considered exact,
but approximate within reasonable margin and shall not relieve Contractor of
responsibilities to exercise reasonable care or costs of repair due to Contractor’s
failure to do so.

No provision herein shall be construed to preclude assessment against Contractor for
any other delays in completion of the Project. Nothing in this section shall be
deemed to require the District to indicate the presence of existing service laterals,
appurtenances, or other utility lines, with the exception of main or trunklines,
whenever the presence of such utilities on the site of the construction Project can be
inferred from the presence of other visible facilities, such as buildings, meter and
junction boxes, on or adjacent to the site of the construction.

If Contractor, while performing work under this Contract, discovers utility facilities
not identified by the District in the Project plans and Specifications, Contractor shall
immediately notify the District and the utility in writing. The cost of repair for
damage to above-mentioned visible facilities without prior written notification to the
District shall be borne by the Contractor.

Trenches Five Feet and Deeper:

Pursuant to Labor Code 86705, if the Contract price exceeds $25,000 and involves the
excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in depth, the Contractor shall, in
advance of excavation, promptly submit to the District and/or a registered civil or structural

160



engineer employed by the District or Architect, a detailed plan showing the design of shoring
for protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench or
trenches.

39. RESOLUTION OF CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS

a.

Public work claims of $375,000 or less between the Contractor and the District are subject
to the provisions of Article 1.5 (commencing with §20104) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of the
Public Contract Code (“Article 1.5 claim”). For purposes of Article 1.5, "public work" has
the same meaning as set forth in 883100 and 3106 of the Civil Code; "claims" means a
separate demand by Contractor for a time extension or payment of money or damages arising
from work done by or on behalf of Contractor pursuant to the Contract and payment of which
is not otherwise expressly provided for or the claimant is not otherwise entitled to or the
amount of the payment which is disputed by the District.

All Article 1.5 claims shall be submitted on or before the date of the Final Payment and shall
include all documents necessary to substantiate the claim. District shall respond in writing
within 45 days of receipt of claim if the claim is less than or equal to $50,000 ("$50,000
claim™) or within 60 days if the claim is over $50,000 but less than or equal to $375,000
(""50,000 - $375,000 claim™). In either case, District may request in writing within 30 days
of receipt of claim any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating to any
defenses to the claim which the District may have against the Contractor. Any additional
information shall be requested and provided upon mutual agreement of the District and the
Contractor. District's written response to the claim shall be submitted to Contractor within
15 days after receipt of the further documentation for $50,000 claims or within 30 days after
receipt of the further documentation for $50,000 - $375,000 claims or within a period of
time no greater than that taken by the Contractor in producing the additional information,
whichever is greater.

Within 15 days of receipt of the District's response, if Contractor disputes the District's
written response, or within 15 days of the District's failure to respond within the time
prescribed, the Contractor shall provide written notification to District demanding an
informal conference to meet and confer (“conference™) to be scheduled by District within 30
days. Following the conference, if any claim or portion remains in dispute, the Contractor
may file a claim as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with 8900) and Chapter 2
(commencing with 8§910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. For
purposes of those provisions, the period of time within which a claim must be filed is tolled
from the time the claimant submits a written claim pursuant to this section until the time that
claim is denied as a result of the conference process, including any period of time utilized
by the meet and confer process.

Pursuant to Public Contract Code §20104.2(f), this section does not apply to tort claims and
does not change the period for filing claims or actions specified by Chapter 1 (commencing
with 8900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with §910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of
the Government Code.

161



40.

41.

e. If a civil action is filed, within 60 days, but no earlier than 30 days, following the filing of
responsive pleadings, the court shall submit the matter to nonbinding mediation unless
waived by mutual stipulation of both parties. The mediation process shall provide that both
parties select a disinterested third person mediator within 15 days, shall be commenced
within 30 days of the submittal, and shall be concluded within 15 days of the commencement
of the mediation unless time is extended upon a good cause showing to the court or by
stipulation of the parties. If the parties fail to select a mediator within the 15-day period, any
party may petition the court to appoint the mediator.

f. If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted to judicial arbitration as set forth
in Public Contract Code §820104.4 (b)(1) through (b)(3).

g. For any claim in excess of $375,000, the Contractor and the District shall follow the same
process as for an Article 1.5 claim. The District will forward a response within 60 days of
submittal of any such claim. Judicial arbitration is not required for claims in excess of
$375,000.

h. In addition, for all unresolved claims that the Contractor wishes to pursue, the Contractor
shall file a timely claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act and shall otherwise comply
with the procedures set forth in that Act prior to commencing any litigation against the
District. The accrual date for any such claim is the date the dispute or controversy first arose
regarding the issues raised in the claim.

I. “The date of Final Payment,” as used in this Article 39, means the date the public entity is
required to release retention proceeds in accordance with Public Contract Code §7107
regardless of whether any payment is made to the Contractor at that time.

J. The claims required by this Article are jurisdictional and conditions precedent to the

commencement of any further legal proceedings. Strict compliance with all filing deadlines
is mandatory.

PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED

Every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this Contract shall be deemed to
be inserted, and this Contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included, and if through
mistake or otherwise any provision is not inserted or is not correctly inserted, upon application of
either party the Contract shall be amended to make the insertion or correction.

PREVAILING WAGE MONITORING.

This project is subject to prevailing wage requirements and Contractor and its subcontractors are
required to pay all workers employed for the performance of this project no less than the applicable
prevailing wage rate for each such worker. If this project is for a public works project over $25,000
or for a maintenance project over $15,000, bidder acknowledges that the project is subject to
compliance monitoring and enforcement by the California Department of Industrial Relations in
accordance with California Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1770 et seq.

162



42.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Assignment and Successors:

Neither party may transfer or assign its rights or obligations under the Contract Documents,
in part or in whole, without the other party’s prior written consent. The Contract Documents
are binding on the successors, and permitted assigns of the parties hereto.

Third Party Beneficiaries:

There are no intended third party beneficiaries to the Contract.

Choice of Law and Venue

The Contract Documents shall be governed by California law, and venue shall be in the
Superior Court of the county in which the project is located, and no other place.

Severability

If any provision of the Contract Documents is determined to be illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable, in part of in whole, the remaining provisions, or portions of the Contract
Documents shall remain in full force and effect.

Entire Agreement

The Contract Documents constitute the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms
of the agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter of the Contract Documents
and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings or agreements of the parties.
Waiver

No waiver of a breach, failure of any condition, or any right or remedy contained in or
granted by the provisions of the Contract Documents shall be effective unless it is in writing
and signed by the party waiving the breach, failure, right, or remedy.

--END--

163



PERFORMANCE BOND

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District (“District”), at its
meeting on , 20 , has awarded to Bach Construction Company (“Principal”), the Contract
for performance of the following project (“Project”): PV Damage Repair

WHEREAS, the Principal is required under the terms of the Contract to furnish a bond to the District
as obligee ensuring its full and faithful performance of the Contract Documents, which are fully
incorporated herein by this reference,

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Principal and , as
Surety, hereby guarantee the Principal’s full, faithful and complete performance of the Contract
Document requirements in the penal sum of Fifty Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty dollars
($50,750.00) for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,
executors, administrators and successors, jointly, severally, and firmly by this agreement to perform
or have performed all of the work and activities required to complete the Project pursuant to the
Contract Documents and to pay to the District all damages the District incurs as a result of the
Principal’s failure to fully perform in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The condition of the obligation is such that if the Principal, its heirs, executors, administrators,
successors or assigns shall in all things abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covenants,
conditions and agreements in the Contract Documents and any amendment thereof made as therein
provided, on its or their parts to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified,
and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall insure and indemnify and save
harmless the District, its officers and agents, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become
null and void. Otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time,
alteration or addition to the Contract Documents shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond
and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition.

Principal and Surety further agree to pay all costs incurred by the District in connection with
enforcement of this bond, including, but not limited to the District’s reasonable attorney’s fees and
costs incurred, with or without suit, in addition to any other sum required by this bond. Surety further
agrees that death, dissolution, or bankruptcy of the Principal shall not relieve the Surety of its
obligations hereunder.

164



In witness whereof, this instrument, has been duly executed by the Principal and Surety on the

day of , 20
To be signed by
Principal and Surety PRINCIPAL
and acknowledgment
and notarial seal to By:
be attached.
TITLE
SURETY
By:
TITLE
The above bond is accepted and approved this day of , 20
By:

Authorized District Signature

165



PAYMENT BOND

WHEREAS, the Piner-Olivet Union School District (“District”) and the Contractor, Bach
Construction Company (“Principal”’) have entered into a contract (“Contract”) for the furnishing of
all materials, labor, services, equipment, tools, supervision and transportation necessary, convenient
and proper for the PV Damage Repair project (“Project”) which Contract dated , 2,
and all of the Contract Documents made part thereof are fully incorporated herein by this reference;
and

WHEREAS, Contractor/Principal is required by Division 4, Part 6, Title 3, Chapter 5 (commencing
at Section 9550) of the California Civil Code to furnish a bond in connection with the contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Contractor/Principal and as Surety, are held firmly bound
unto Owner in the penal sum of Fifty Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty dollars ($50,750.00), lawful
money of the United States of America for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally,
firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the Contractor/Principal, his/her or its
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, or a subcontractor, shall fail to pay any person
or persons named in Civil Code Section 9100 or fail to pay for any materials or other supplies used
in, upon, for, or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor
thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to
work or labor thereon of any kind, or shall fail to deduct, withhold, and pay over to the Employment
Development Department any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over by Section
13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work and labor thereon of any kind, then
said Surety will pay for the same, in or to an amount not exceeding the amount set forth above, and
in case suit is brought upon this bond Surety will also pay such reasonable attorney's fees as shall be
fixed by the court, awarded and taxed as provided in Division 4, Part 6, Title 3, Chapter 5
(commencing at Section 9550) of the California Civil Code.

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any of the persons named in Section 9100 of the California
Civil Code so as to give a right of action to such person or their assigns in any suit brought upon this
bond.

It is further stipulated and agreed that the Surety of this bond shall not be exonerated or released from
the obligation of the bond by any change, extension of time for performance, addition, alteration, or
modification in, to, or of any contract, plans, specifications, or agreement pertaining or relating to any
scheme or work of improvement described above or pertaining or relating to the furnishing of labor,
materials, or equipment therefor, nor by any change or modification of any terms of payment or
extension of the time for any payment pertaining or relating to any scheme or work of improvement
described above, nor by any rescission or attempted rescission of the contract, agreement, or bond,
nor by any conditions precedent or subsequent in the bond attempting to limit the right of recovery of
claimants otherwise entitled to recover under any such contract or agreement or under the bond, nor

166



by any fraud practiced by any person other than the claimant seeking to recover on the bond, and that
this bond be construed most strongly against the Surety and in favor of all persons for whose benefit
such bond is given, and under no circumstances shall Surety be released from liability to those for
whose benefit such bond has been given, by reason of any breach of contract between the Owner and
original contractor or on the part of any obligee named in such bond, but the sole conditions of
recovery shall be that claimant is a person described in Section 8400 and 8402 of the California Civil
Code and has not been paid the full amount of his/her or its claim and that Surety does hereby waive
notice of any such change, extension of time, addition, alteration, or modification.

In witness whereof, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and Surety this

day of , 20
To be signed by
Principal and Surety
and acknowledgment PRINCIPAL
and notarial seal to
be attached.
By:
Title
SURETY
By:
Title
The above bond is accepted and approved this day of , 20
By:

Authorized District Signature

167



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING

TO BE HELD September 9, 2020

The Piner-Olivet Union School District will be holding a Public Hearing regarding the
2020-2021 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet District,
Schaefer Charter, Olivet Charter, Piner-Olivet Charter and Northwest Prep Charter.

This Public Hearing will take place at a regular Governing Board meeting scheduled for
Wednesday, September 9, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. this meeting will be held virtually via Zoom:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/|/81233068917?pwd=TGFEaUNROVEXxZTVzeWd50XVnOXZIUT09

Meeting ID: 812 3306 8917

Passcode: 8j2Udq

One tap mobile
+16699009128,,81233068917#,,,,,,0#,,326811# US (San Jose)

This announcement posted September 4, 2020.

168


https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F81233068917%3Fpwd%3DTGFEaUNROVExZTVzeWd5QXVnQXZlUT09&sa=D&ust=1598827055231000&usg=AOvVaw07uEJTW_xMfPMaVa-Hj7gC

UNION SCHOOL
DISTRICT

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020-21)

The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at
https://www.cde.ca.qov/re/lc/documents/Irngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone
Piner-Olivet Union School District Steve Charbonneau scharbonneau@pousd.org
Superintendent 707-522-3000

General Information
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.]

This plan was created to document the efforts of the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) to serve its students' educational needs in a
COVID-19 context. The COVID-19 pandemic has had far-reaching consequences beyond the spread of the disease itself and efforts to
quarantine it. Previous to experiencing the negative impact brought on by the pandemic, the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) was
devastated by the Sonoma County wildfires and firestorms of 2017, with a significant number of POUSD students, families, and staff
tragically losing their homes and personal possessions. The emotional toll of that experience coupled with the experience brought on by the
current pandemic has been a significant challenge for the community.

The pandemic has affected educational systems State-wide, leading to the widespread closures of schools and colleges. In the fall of 2020,
Sonoma County found itself on the Governor’s watch list, due to the number of COVID cases here. In turn, school districts across the County,
including POUSD, launched the school year with a 100% virtual learning program.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 169 Page 1 of 18



https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation

Stakeholder Engagement

[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.]

The efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback for each group were:
Students
e Surveys

Families
e Surveys
e Phone Calls
o Town Hall Virtual Meetings
o Emails

Educators ( teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
e Bargaining Unit Member Meetings
« MOU
e Reopening Committee

Other stakeholders (who do not have internet or speak languages other than English)
e Phone interviews

Overview of the stakeholder engagement process

« We consulted with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school district, parents,
and pupils in developing a learning continuity and attendance plan.

« We solicited recommendations and comments of members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to
be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan

o We notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures
proposed to be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan, using the most efficient method of notification possible (note
it is not required to produce printed notices or to send notices by mail).

e We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan to the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory
committee separately for review and comment. The superintendent of a school district responded, in writing, to comments received
from the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory committee.

170

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District Page 2 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement

« We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan at a public hearing of the governing board of the school district for review
and comment by members of the public. The agenda for the public hearing was posted at least 72 hours before the public hearing
and included the location where the learning continuity and attendance plan was available for public inspection.

« The Governing Board adopted the learning continuity and attendance plan in a public meeting. This meeting was held after, but not
on the same day as, the public hearing

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.]

» Open session board meetings were held via Zoom. Remote participation was made available via Zoom and included public comment and
input.

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]

Students
o Students miss their friends and school
« Students are fearful of getting sick or giving it to someone at home.

Families

« Families need students in school in order to work

o Families are uneasy about students returning to school when COVID19 cases are growing.

« Major concerns for parents were: socialization, mask wearing vs non-mask wearing, quality virtual learning, child getting behind,
schooling for younger grade levels, belonging and part of a community, in schooling important for students, hard on working families
doing distance learning, scheduling the same for families, extra support for struggling students, socially distancing, special
education services.

Educators (teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
e Educators miss their students
o Educators are uneasy about returning to school when COVID-19 cases are growing

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]

All areas of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan were influenced by stakeholder input. The POUSD Governing Board was one of the
first school boards in Sonoma County to commit to a 100% virtual learning program to start the school year off, Fall 2020. This decision was
made carefully, and informed by stakeholder input.

171

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District Page 3 of 18



Continuity of Learning

In-Person Instructional Offerings

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019-2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss
due to future school closures.]

At the time this report was written (early fall 2020), POUSD was not able to determine when a transition to a hybrid instruction approach or in-
person learning would occur. This is due to a variety of factors outside the district's control. When a transition to hybrid learning is possible,
we anticipate the following:
e The adopted model for classroom based instruction is the Hybrid model where students attend in person instruction for 2 days a
week and attend distance learning 3 days a week.
« Students who have experienced significant learning loss or are at a greater risks of experiencing learning loss due to future closure
will have priority for the ability to come to campus 5 days per week if feasible and if able to be under the supervision of a school
employee with proper social distancing and cohorting available.

As reported, a move to in-person instruction is not possible at this time. However, POUSD has designed a virtual learning program meant to
increase and improve services to students and their families, relative to our virtual learning program initiated in Spring 2020. Our planning for
a move to hybrid learning has been informed by surveys sent out to staff and families in June 2020. Additionally, some expenditures have
been made in preparation for the eventual transition to hybrid and/or in-person instruction such as: face coverings, gloves, face shields, hand
sanitizer, temperature taking technology, MERV13 Filtration, Sterilization Machines, COVID-related signage, etc.

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
MERV-13 filtration 10,400 No
Personal Protective Equipment for staff and students 20,500 No
Plexiglass dividers 650 No
Cleaning and Sanitization Equipment and Supplies 15,000 No

172

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District Page 4 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning2

Total Funds Contributing

Description

Portable hand washing stations 900 No

Temperature reading equipment 5,000 No
1,000 No

Safety signage

Distance Learning Program

Continuity of Instruction

[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.]

Distance Learning Model

We will provide a distance learning program to students with the following components:
o Content aligned to essential grade level standards that is provided at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially

equivalent to in-person instruction.
« Daily live interaction with certificated employees and peers for purposes of instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining school

connectedness. This interaction may take the form of internet or telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under
public health orders. If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, the governing board or body of the local
educational agency shall develop, with parent and stakeholder input, an alternative plan for frequent live interaction that provides a

comparable level of service and school connectedness.

Curriculum

We will provide a full curriculum of substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery by:
« Allocating POUSD learning resources to students to facilitate virtual learning (technology devices, software programs, curriculum,

etc.)

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 173 Page 5 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram1

o Small groups and 1:1 support (Zoom breakout sessions during virtual learning)

The resources used to support this will be:

o Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Access to Devices and Connectivity
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.]

o Connected devices will be provided to students

« For students who lack internet access at home, the District will provide either individual internet Hotspot devices, regular access to
on-site internet-connected computers, or recorded instruction and electronic materials/assignments.

o Hardware: TK-K-1: iPads-one to one; 2-6: Chromebooks-one to one

Pupil Participation and Progress

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.]

Assess Progress
« Fountas and Pinnell assessments, Running Records, Star Math, Star Reading

Measuring Participation
o Teachers and school staff will keep track of student/family participation and attendance on a daily basis via AERIES.

Students will fill out a daily learning log via a google form. Students will submit items daily in google classroom. Teachers or staff members
may also submit this google form on the students behalf to document what the student completed for the day.

Evidence of participation includes:
« Online activities,
o Completion of regular assignments,
e Completion of assessments,
o Contacts between employees of the local educational agency and pupils or parents or guardians.

All students at all grade levels will be required to log into Google Classroom or otherwise confirm active learning.

Each teacher will determine the time value of assignments. Teachers will provide at least 240 instructional minutes that may include:

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 174 Page 6 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram3

« Interaction, instruction, and check-ins between teachers and pupils through the use of a computer or communications technology.

« Video or audio instruction in which the primary mode of communication between the pupil and certificated employee is online
interaction, instructional television, video, telecourses, or other instruction that relies on computer or communications technology.

e The use of print materials incorporating assignments that are the subject of written or oral feedback.

e Assignments

e Assessments

Distance Learning Professional Development

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including
technological support.]

Professional Development has been/and is being provided to support teachers so that they can manage a virtual learning program for
students.
« PD informed by the work of POUSD PD Committee
Developed on shortened Wednesdays
Added weekly to Seesaw or Google classroom (accessible to all who work with your students)
Collaboration between district grade level teachers
Ex: Working together to produce videos/Creating lesson plans to use in class and online
Professional Development: See PD Plan and Shortened Wednesday
Accountability, flexibility, personalized professional learning plan, etc.
Using curriculum digitally
Use Fountas & Pinnell intervention program- trained on it and look at it for each cohort day

Resources

o Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Staff Roles and Responsibilities
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.]

The roles and responsibilities of certificated staff have not significantly changed, with the exception of where and when their responsibilities
are being carried out. When hybrid instruction begins, teachers and students may assist with sanitizing classroom between cohorts each day.
The most affected staff in terms of sanitizing facilities are the classified ranks. The MOU the district has with the Classified Bargaining Unit
provides a degree of flexibility to many classified job descriptions so that they may assist with current new learning models.

175

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District Page 7 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram5

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing
homelessness.]

English Learners

e Synchronous Designated ELD
Live virtual lessons/meetings
Phone calls
Small group lessons
By proficiency levels with scaffolds
In mixed level groups for fluency building
Teacher feedback and support as needed
Asynchronous Designated ELD
Previously-recorded lesson and videos
Phone and text messages
ELD assignments/projects using approved
ELD curriculum
Paper and pencil activities
Reading logs and journals
Goal setting and reflection

Exceptional needs

o Student's with IEPs: Students with IEP's will receive all services virtually during the period of virtual learning. Such services may
include occupational therapy, adaptive physical education, physical therapy, speech, and specialized academic instruction. In
accordance with SB 98 and California Ed Code, a Distance Learning Plan (DLP) that outlines how services will be delivered, will be
developed in collaboration with the parent of each student with an IEP.

o Foster Care: POUSD students in Foster Care will be afforded their Foster Care Educational Rights as outlined in EdCode and by the
CA Department of Education. Foster Care students have access to resources that will allow them to connect to virtual learning
resources (iPads, Chromebooks, Hotspots, etc.). POUSD staff do reach out to Foster families to encourage attendance and
engagement.

« Students Experiencing Homelessness: POUSD will make every effort to ensure continuity of service so that children and youth
experiencing homelessness are able to participate fully in school activities, and that barriers to identification, enrollment, and
retention in school are identified and removed.

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
Description Total Funds Contributing

Educational software and equipment to support Virtual Learning 16,300 No

176

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District Page 8 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram6
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram7

Description Total Funds Contributing

Technology Devices - Chromebooks, Chromebook covers, and I-Pads for students 85,705 No
Hot Spots for students 4,000 No
Zoom to allow for synchronous teaching and learning 3,000 No
Website development to serve as primary source of information, foster contentedness, and 1,575 No

provide tools for staff, parents, and students

Aeries Software Suite, Aeries Professional Development, Aeries Enroliment 5,800 No

Professional development 4,200 No

Pupil Learning Loss

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019-2020 and 2020-21 school years,
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language
development, and mathematics.]

POUSD will utilize a well articulated Assessment Calendar in conjunction with a number of diagnostic and formative assessment tools to
measure learning loss of students during the pandemic. In turn, what is learned by analyzing diagnostic and formative assessments will
inform classroom instruction and differentiation utilized strategies to augment student learning. The primary focus areas of POUSD diagnostic
and formative assessment tools are English Language Arts, Mathematics and English Language Development.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 177 Page 9 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss

Please see the assessment calendar below for additional information.

POUSD Assessment Calendar

Content Area Assessment Assessment Window

Narrative August-Sept.
Writing
Informational Jan-Fel
Argumentativel March-April
Gpinion
Guiged Reading F& P | Ayg. 15-0ct. 15
Readin R-niot for
- STAR Reading (3- | ° .
Eith)
Guiged Reading F & P | Jan. 7-Feb. 14th
(K imcluded)
STAR Reading [3-
Bth)
Interim Assessments Math Common Dec. 2-Dec. 10th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
Math (3-6th)
ELA Common Feb. 10th-Feb. 18th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
ELA (3-6th)

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 178

Page 10 of 18



Pupil Learning Loss Strategies

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed,
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils

experiencing homelessness.]

Analyzing student data resulting from the diagnostic and formative assessments outlined above may lead to one or more of the following

actions/interventions:

Small group instruction
e 1:1 tutoring
o Authentic Learning Materials to use at school and home
o Daily and Weekly Check-Ins
e Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS)
e Learning Team
English Learners
« Small group instruction
e 1:1 meetings
« Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
o Weekly Check-ins
 Integrated and Designated ELD
« Balance technology and real materials

Exceptional needs

Foster Care/ Students Experiencing Homelessness
e Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

CB for Virtual Learning

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home

Balance technology and real materials

Weekly Check-ins

Other
e Small group instruction
e 1:1 meetings
o Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
o Weekly Check-ins

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District

179

Page 11 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1

« Balance technology and real materials

Young Learners

« TK, Kand/or 1: % day learning schedule
Small group instruction
1:1 meetings and check-ins
iPads for Digital Learning
Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.]

The CAASPP will serve as a Summative Assessment utilized by POUSD to gauge the effectiveness of POUSD's program to mitigate
learning loss over time.

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
1:1 tutoring 14,000 No
Student math kits for Virtual Learning 7,540 No
Communication devices for staff to connect to families and students 460 No

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 180 Page 12 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional

[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of
COVID-19 on the school community.]

Monitor and Support
« Counseling services provided by district staff
Partnership with other organizations for additional counseling services
Student groups: Friendship, grief, loss, anxiety, and etc.
1:1 counseling for students that have been identified that have emotional needs
Proactive Lessons for classes
Family Support
SEL Curriculum: PBIS/ToolBox /Restorative Practices/PBIS
Toolbox: Continue and increase our use of it
PBIS- looks different at different (physical) campuses
Restorative Practices: Daily Community Circles, SEL- lessons, Mindfulness Practices
Focus on SEL during both models: Virtual Academy, Hybrid Model
Weekly Check-ins and support from teachers, Program Assistants and Principal (if needed)
Build partnerships with SEL organization
Each school chooses an organization to develop a full partnership.
Opportunities for adults to cultivate their own SEL competencies
Professional Development, room/time for self-reflection
Staff Community Circles and Colleague supports and support group
Making staff aware of the district resource that are available for our staff (i.e. insurance, RESIG, CTA, and CSEA)
Classes/course that are available

Professional Development and Resources to address Trauma and other Impacts
o West County Health Center
« SCOE

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

181

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District Page 13 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach

[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English,
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk
of learning loss.]

If a student is absent from distance learning for more than three schools days or 60% of the instructional days in the school week, the
following process will be followed:
« Verify current contact information for each enrolled pupil
« Daily notification to parents or guardians of absences
« A plan for outreach from the school to determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services as necessary
e When feasible, transitioning the pupil to full-time in-person instruction

Outreach

Teachers will regularly communicate with parents and guardians regarding a pupil’s academic progress. AERIES "ParentSquare" was
acquired by POUSD specifically to improve our ability to communicate/engage students and their families.

We will regularly discuss as a staff effective ways to motivate students and families.

Students who are not engaged in instruction and are at risk of learning loss will be referred to school site administration who will coordinate
the following:
o Determine the best person to contact the student/family (principal, teacher, counselor, Instructional assistant) in order to make the
best impact
Determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services
Encourage teachers to consistently contact students and families
Focus the site on: Building trust and relationships so our community feeling safe and sharing their families needs
Keeping track of student/family communication on a weekly basis (ex. Parentsquare)

School Nutrition

[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.]

In Person

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 182 Page 14 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition

We will provide meals for pupils who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in in-person instruction by..

« “Grab and Go” meals will be delivered to classrooms, outdoors, or in a cafeteria. (Even if food is delivered to classrooms, students
should go outside to eat, so masks can be removed).

o Food carts/kiosks in multiple locations on the campus will aid in safe food distribution. If common areas such as dining halls and
cafeterias are used, students will be safely separated by cohorts while maintaining the social distance standards with proper
disinfection after each use.

« Disposable food service items (e.g., utensils, dishes) will be used as much as possible. If disposable items are not feasible, items
will be handled with gloves and washed with dish soap and hot water or in a dishwasher.

« Divided mealtimes (for breakfast, snack, and lunch) will be implemented by site administrators. Classified staff and teachers will
assist with the monitoring of various eating locations.

« Additional trash/composting containers will be used to accommodate the various eating areas.

Distance Learning (Hybrid/100% Virtual)

We will provide meals for all pupils, including those who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in distance
learning by..

Hybrid

e Group A (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Mondays and Tuesdays)

« At the end of the instructional day on Tuesdays, Group A students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to
take home
On Wednesdays, students who participate in full-time distance learning will be offered five breakfasts, five lunches, and 10 milks on
a grab-and-go basis. Meals for all students will be distributed to parents between the hours of 11:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. Parents
will be required to remain in their vehicles when picking up meals.
Group B (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Thursdays and Fridays)
At the end of the instructional day on Fridays, Group B students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to take
home.

100% Virtual Learning

o 5 days of breakfast and lunch will be provided on Monday's at Schaefer, Jack London, and Olivet from 10am to 1pm.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 183 Page 15 of 18



Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows
and actions may be added as necessary]

Section Description

Mental Health and Social and | Additional Counseling Services to Promote Mental Health and
Emotional Well-Being Social/Emotional Wellbeing of Students: COUNSELOR

Pupil Engagement and Improved Communication with EL Students/Families
Outreach POUSD acquired "ParentSquare" (an AERIES product) which

translates all outgoing and incoming messages to facilitate
effective communication during virtual learning efforts. This
has allowed us to provide significantly improved support for
our Spanish speaking families. The program was on-boarded
in fall 2020, specifically to augment the Virtual Learning
experience of English Learners and to better support their

families.

Distance Learning Program  "Comfort Bags" for Homeless, Foster, Low Income Students

(Supports for Pupils with 40 duffel bags were made available for homeless, foster, low

Unique Needs) income and struggling students. Distributed the first week of
September 2020 out of Schaefer Elementary, these bags
contained toiletries (shampoo, soap, toothbrush and
toothpaste), a blanket, books, games/puzzles, coloring books

and stuffed animals/toys.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District

184

Total Funds
35,000

1,575

500

Contributing
No

No

No

Page 16 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions

Section Description Total Funds Contributing

Distance Learning Program | Materials and equipment for teachers to work effectively in 20,000 No
Virtual Learning

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students

Increased Apportionment based on the Enroliment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students

9.36% 214,612

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

Required Descriptions

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in
meeting the needs of these students.]

Chromebooks, iPads, Hotspots (as needed) have been provided to unduplicated students and foster youth for use at home during virtual
learning in a COVID context. In order to communicate more effectively with our Spanish speaking students and families, Parentsquare was
acquired. Fountas & Pinnell intervention program was purchased to help us bridge the learning loss that is likely happening because of the
impact of the pandemic on student learning.

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage
required.]

Outreach Worker (Bilingual Spanish), AERIES "ParentSquare", Use of Program Assistance for outreach, Hotspots, free Wifi resources,
Fountas & Pinnell intervention program

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District 185 Page 17 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions

186

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Union School District Page 18 of 18



Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020-21)

The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/Irngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone
Schaefer Charter School Kathy Harris kharris@pousd.org
Principal 707-522-3015

General Information
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.]

This plan was created to document the efforts of the Schaefer Charter School to serve its students' educational needs in a COVID-19
context. Schaefer Charter School is part of the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD).

The COVID-19 pandemic has had far-reaching consequences beyond the spread of the disease itself and efforts to quarantine it. Previous to
experiencing the negative impact brought on by the pandemic, the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) was devastated by the
Sonoma County wildfires and firestorms of 2017, with a significant number of POUSD students, families, and staff tragically losing their
homes and personal possessions. The emotional toll of that experience coupled with the experience brought on by the current pandemic has
been a significant challenge for the community.

The pandemic has affected educational systems State-wide, leading to the widespread closures of schools and colleges. In the fall of 2020,

Sonoma County found itself on the Governor’s watch list, due to the number of COVID cases here. In turn, schools across the County,
including Schaefer Charter School, launched the school year with a 100% virtual learning program.

Stakeholder Engagement

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School 187 Page 1 of 18



https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement

[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.]

The efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback for each group were:
Students
e Surveys

Families
e Surveys
e Phone Calls
e Town Hall Virtual Meetings
o Emails

Educators ( teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
« Bargaining Unit Member Meetings
« MOU
e Reopening Committee

Other stakeholders (who do not have internet or speak languages other than English)
o Phone interviews

Overview of the stakeholder engagement process

o We consulted with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school district, parents,
and pupils in developing a learning continuity and attendance plan.

« We solicited recommendations and comments of members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to
be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan

« We notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures
proposed to be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan, using the most efficient method of notification possible (note
it is not required to produce printed notices or to send notices by mail).

o We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan to the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory
committee separately for review and comment. The superintendent of a school district responded, in writing, to comments received
from the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory committee.

« We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan at a public hearing of the governing board of the school district for review
and comment by members of the public. The agenda for the public hearing was posted at least 72 hours before the public hearing
and included the location where the learning continuity and attendance plan was available for public inspection.

188

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 2 of 18



o The Governing Board adopted the learning continuity and attendance plan in a public meeting. This meeting was held after, but not
on the same day as, the public hearing

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.]

* Open session board meetings were held via Zoom. Remote participation was made available via Zoom and included public comment and
input.

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]

Students
« Students miss their friends and school
« Students are fearful of getting sick or giving it to someone at home.

Families

o Families need students in school in order to work

« Families are uneasy about students returning to school when COVID19 cases are growing.

« Major concerns for parents were: socialization, mask wearing vs non-mask wearing, quality virtual learning, child getting behind,
schooling for younger grade levels, belonging and part of a community, in schooling important for students, hard on working families
doing distance learning, scheduling the same for families, extra support for struggling students, socially distancing, special
education services.

Educators (teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
o Educators miss their students
« Educators are uneasy about returning to school when COVID-19 cases are growing

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]

All areas of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan were influenced by stakeholder input. The POUSD Governing Board was one of the
first school boards in Sonoma County to commit to a 100% virtual learning program to start the school year off, Fall 2020. This decision was
made carefully, and informed by stakeholder input.

189

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 3 of 18



Continuity of Learning

In-Person Instructional Offerings

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019-2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss
due to future school closures.]

At the time this report was written (early fall 2020), Schaefer Charter School was not able to determine when a transition to a hybrid
instruction approach or in-person learning would occur. This is due to a variety of factors outside the district's control. When a transition to
hybrid learning is possible, we anticipate the following:
o The adopted model for classroom based instruction is the Hybrid model where students attend in person instruction for 2 days a
week and attend distance learning 3 days a week.
« Students who have experienced significant learning loss or are at a greater risks of experiencing learning loss due to future closure
will have priority for the ability to come to campus 5 days per week if feasible and if able to be under the supervision of a school
employee with proper social distancing and cohorting available.

As reported, a move to in-person instruction is not possible at this time. However, Schaefer Charter School has designed a virtual learning
program meant to increase and improve services to students and their families, relative to our virtual learning program initiated in Spring
2020. Our planning for a move to hybrid learning has been informed by surveys sent out to staff and families in June 2020. Additionally,
some expenditures have been made in preparation for the eventual transition to hybrid and/or in-person instruction such as: face coverings,
gloves, face shields, hand sanitizer, temperature taking technology, MERV13 Filtration, Sterilization Machines, COVID-related signage, etc.

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
MERV-13 filtration 10,400 No
Personal Protective Equipment for staff and students 20,500 No
Plexiglass dividers 650 No
Cleaning and Sanitization Equipment and Supplies 15,000 No

190

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 4 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning2

Total Funds Contributing

Description

Portable hand washing stations 900 No

Temperature reading equipment 5,000 No
1,000 No

Safety signage

Distance Learning Program

Continuity of Instruction

[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.]

Distance Learning Model

We will provide a distance learning program to students with the following components:
o Content aligned to essential grade level standards that is provided at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially

equivalent to in-person instruction.
« Daily live interaction with certificated employees and peers for purposes of instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining school

connectedness. This interaction may take the form of internet or telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under
public health orders. If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, the governing board or body of the local
educational agency shall develop, with parent and stakeholder input, an alternative plan for frequent live interaction that provides a

comparable level of service and school connectedness.

Curriculum

We will provide a full curriculum of substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery by:
« Allocating Schaefer Charter School learning resources to students to facilitate virtual learning (technology devices, software

programs, curriculum, etc.)

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School 191 Page 5 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram1

o Small groups and 1:1 support (Zoom breakout sessions during virtual learning)

The resources used to support this will be:

o Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Access to Devices and Connectivity
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.]

o Connected devices will be provided to students

« For students who lack internet access at home, the District will provide either individual internet Hotspot devices, regular access to
on-site internet-connected computers, or recorded instruction and electronic materials/assignments.

o Hardware: TK-K-1: iPads-one to one; 2-6: Chromebooks-one to one

Pupil Participation and Progress

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.]

Assess Progress
« Fountas and Pinnell assessments, Running Records, Star Math, Star Reading

Measuring Participation
o Teachers and school staff will keep track of student/family participation and attendance on a daily basis via AERIES.

Students will fill out a daily learning log via a google form. Students will submit items daily in google classroom. Teachers or staff members
may also submit this google form on the students behalf to document what the student completed for the day.

Evidence of participation includes:
« Online activities,
o Completion of regular assignments,
e Completion of assessments,
o Contacts between employees of the local educational agency and pupils or parents or guardians.

All students at all grade levels will be required to log into Google Classroom or otherwise confirm active learning.

Each teacher will determine the time value of assignments. Teachers will provide at least 240 instructional minutes that may include:

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School 192 Page 6 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram3

« Interaction, instruction, and check-ins between teachers and pupils through the use of a computer or communications technology.

« Video or audio instruction in which the primary mode of communication between the pupil and certificated employee is online
interaction, instructional television, video, telecourses, or other instruction that relies on computer or communications technology.

e The use of print materials incorporating assignments that are the subject of written or oral feedback.

e Assignments

e Assessments

Distance Learning Professional Development

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including
technological support.]

Professional Development has been/and is being provided to support teachers so that they can manage a virtual learning program for
students.
« PD informed by the work of the PD Committee
Developed on shortened Wednesdays
Added weekly to Seesaw or Google classroom (accessible to all who work with your students)
Collaboration between district grade level teachers
Ex: Working together to produce videos/Creating lesson plans to use in class and online
Professional Development: See PD Plan and Shortened Wednesday
Accountability, flexibility, personalized professional learning plan, etc.
Using curriculum digitally
Use Fountas & Pinnell intervention program- trained on it and look at it for each cohort day

Resources

o Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Staff Roles and Responsibilities
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.]

The roles and responsibilities of certificated staff have not significantly changed, with the exception of where and when their responsibilities
are being carried out. When hybrid instruction begins, teachers and students may assist with sanitizing classroom between cohorts each day.
The most affected staff in terms of sanitizing facilities are the classified ranks. The MOU the district has with the Classified Bargaining Unit
provides a degree of flexibility to many classified job descriptions so that they may assist with current new learning models.

193

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 7 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram5

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing
homelessness.]

English Learners

e Synchronous Designated ELD
Live virtual lessons/meetings
Phone calls
Small group lessons
By proficiency levels with scaffolds
In mixed level groups for fluency building
Teacher feedback and support as needed
Asynchronous Designated ELD
Previously-recorded lesson and videos
Phone and text messages
ELD assignments/projects using approved
ELD curriculum
Paper and pencil activities
Reading logs and journals
Goal setting and reflection

Exceptional needs

o Student's with IEPs: Students with IEP's will receive all services virtually during the period of virtual learning. Such services may
include occupational therapy, adaptive physical education, physical therapy, speech, and specialized academic instruction. In
accordance with SB 98 and California Ed Code, a Distance Learning Plan (DLP) that outlines how services will be delivered, will be
developed in collaboration with the parent of each student with an IEP.

o Foster Care: POUSD students in Foster Care will be afforded their Foster Care Educational Rights as outlined in EdCode and by the
CA Department of Education. Foster Care students have access to resources that will allow them to connect to virtual learning
resources (iPads, Chromebooks, Hotspots, etc.). POUSD staff do reach out to Foster families to encourage attendance and
engagement.

« Students Experiencing Homelessness: POUSD will make every effort to ensure continuity of service so that children and youth
experiencing homelessness are able to participate fully in school activities, and that barriers to identification, enrollment, and
retention in school are identified and removed.

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
Description Total Funds Contributing

Educational software and equipment to support Virtual Learning 16,300 No

194

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 8 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram6
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram7

Description Total Funds Contributing

Technology Devices - Chromebooks, Chromebook covers, and I-Pads for students 97,355 No
Hot Spots for students 4,000 No
Zoom to allow for synchronous teaching and learning 3,000 No
Website development to serve as primary source of information, foster contentedness, and 1,575 No

provide tools for staff, parents, and students

Aeries Software Suite, Aeries Professional Development, Aeries Enroliment 5,900 No

Professional development 4,200 No

Pupil Learning Loss

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019-2020 and 2020-21 school years,
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language
development, and mathematics.]

Schaefer Charter School will utilize a well articulated Assessment Calendar in conjunction with a number of diagnostic and formative
assessment tools to measure learning loss of students during the pandemic. In turn, what is learned by analyzing diagnostic and formative
assessments will inform classroom instruction and differentiation utilized strategies to augment student learning. The primary focus areas of
POUSD diagnostic and formative assessment tools are English Language Arts, Mathematics and English Language Development.

195

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 9 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss

Please see the assessment calendar below for additional information.

POUSD Assessment Calendar

Content Area Assessment Assessment Window

Narrative August-Sept.
Writing
Informational Jan-Fel
Argumentativel March-April
Gpinion
Guiged Reading F& P | Ayg. 15-0ct. 15
Readin R-niot for
- STAR Reading (3- | ° .
Eith)
Guiged Reading F & P | Jan. 7-Feb. 14th
(K imcluded)
STAR Reading [3-
Bth)
Interim Assessments Math Common Dec. 2-Dec. 10th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
Math (3-6th)
ELA Common Feb. 10th-Feb. 18th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
ELA (3-6th)

196

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School

Page 10 of 18



Pupil Learning Loss Strategies

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed,
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils
experiencing homelessness.]

Analyzing student data resulting from the diagnostic and formative assessments outlined above may lead to one or more of the following
actions/interventions:

Small group instruction

1:1 tutoring

Authentic Learning Materials to use at school and home

Daily and Weekly Check-Ins
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS)
Learning Team

English Learners

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

Integrated and Designated ELD

Balance technology and real materials

Exceptional needs

Foster Care/ Students Experiencing Homelessness

Other

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

CB for Virtual Learning

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials
Weekly Check-ins

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

197

Page 11 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1

« Balance technology and real materials

Young Learners

« TK, Kand/or 1: % day learning schedule
Small group instruction
1:1 meetings and check-ins
iPads for Digital Learning
Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.]

The CAASPP will serve as a Summative Assessment utilized by Schaefer Charter School to gauge the effectiveness of POUSD's program to
mitigate learning loss over time.

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
1:1 tutoring 13,400 No
Student math kits for Virtual Learning 7,540 No
Communication devices for staff to connect to families and students 460 No

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School 198 Page 12 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional

[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of
COVID-19 on the school community.]

Monitor and Support
« Counseling services provided by district staff
Partnership with other organizations for additional counseling services
Student groups: Friendship, grief, loss, anxiety, and etc.
1:1 counseling for students that have been identified that have emotional needs
Proactive Lessons for classes
Family Support
SEL Curriculum: PBIS/ToolBox /Restorative Practices/PBIS
Toolbox: Continue and increase our use of it
PBIS- looks different at different (physical) campuses
Restorative Practices: Daily Community Circles, SEL- lessons, Mindfulness Practices
Focus on SEL during both models: Virtual Academy, Hybrid Model
Weekly Check-ins and support from teachers, Program Assistants and Principal (if needed)
Build partnerships with SEL organization
Each school chooses an organization to develop a full partnership.
Opportunities for adults to cultivate their own SEL competencies
Professional Development, room/time for self-reflection
Staff Community Circles and Colleague supports and support group
Making staff aware of the district resource that are available for our staff (i.e. insurance, RESIG, CTA, and CSEA)
Classes/course that are available

Professional Development and Resources to address Trauma and other Impacts
o West County Health Center
« SCOE

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

199

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 13 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach

[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English,
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk
of learning loss.]

If a student is absent from distance learning for more than three schools days or 60% of the instructional days in the school week, the
following process will be followed:
« Verify current contact information for each enrolled pupil
« Daily notification to parents or guardians of absences
« A plan for outreach from the school to determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services as necessary
e When feasible, transitioning the pupil to full-time in-person instruction

Outreach

Teachers will regularly communicate with parents and guardians regarding a pupil’s academic progress. AERIES "ParentSquare" was
acquired by POUSD specifically to improve our ability to communicate/engage students and their families.

We will regularly discuss as a staff effective ways to motivate students and families.

Students who are not engaged in instruction and are at risk of learning loss will be referred to school site administration who will coordinate
the following:
o Determine the best person to contact the student/family (principal, teacher, counselor, Instructional assistant) in order to make the
best impact
Determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services
Encourage teachers to consistently contact students and families
Focus the site on: Building trust and relationships so our community feeling safe and sharing their families needs
Keeping track of student/family communication on a weekly basis (ex. Parentsquare)

School Nutrition

[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.]

In Person

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School 200 Page 14 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition

We will provide meals for pupils who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in in-person instruction by..

« “Grab and Go” meals will be delivered to classrooms, outdoors, or in a cafeteria. (Even if food is delivered to classrooms, students
should go outside to eat, so masks can be removed).

o Food carts/kiosks in multiple locations on the campus will aid in safe food distribution. If common areas such as dining halls and
cafeterias are used, students will be safely separated by cohorts while maintaining the social distance standards with proper
disinfection after each use.

« Disposable food service items (e.g., utensils, dishes) will be used as much as possible. If disposable items are not feasible, items
will be handled with gloves and washed with dish soap and hot water or in a dishwasher.

« Divided mealtimes (for breakfast, snack, and lunch) will be implemented by site administrators. Classified staff and teachers will
assist with the monitoring of various eating locations.

« Additional trash/composting containers will be used to accommodate the various eating areas.

Distance Learning (Hybrid/100% Virtual)

We will provide meals for all pupils, including those who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in distance
learning by..

Hybrid

e Group A (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Mondays and Tuesdays)

« At the end of the instructional day on Tuesdays, Group A students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to
take home
On Wednesdays, students who participate in full-time distance learning will be offered five breakfasts, five lunches, and 10 milks on
a grab-and-go basis. Meals for all students will be distributed to parents between the hours of 11:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. Parents
will be required to remain in their vehicles when picking up meals.
Group B (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Thursdays and Fridays)
At the end of the instructional day on Fridays, Group B students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to take
home.

100% Virtual Learning

o 5 days of breakfast and lunch will be provided on Monday's at Schaefer, Jack London, and Olivet from 10am to 1pm.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School 201 Page 15 of 18



Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows
and actions may be added as necessary]

Section Description

Mental Health and Social and | Additional Counseling Services to Promote Mental Health and
Emotional Well-Being Social/Emotional Wellbeing of Students: COUNSELOR

Pupil Engagement and Improved Communication with EL Students/Families
Outreach Schaefer Charter School acquired "ParentSquare" (an

AERIES product) which translates all outgoing and incoming
messages to facilitate effective communication during virtual
learning efforts. This has allowed us to provide significantly
improved support for our Spanish speaking families. The
program was on-boarded in fall 2020, specifically to augment
the Virtual Learning experience of English Learners and to

better support their families.

Distance Learning Program  "Comfort Bags" for Homeless, Foster, Low Income Students

(Supports for Pupils with 40 duffel bags were made available for homeless, foster, low

Unique Needs) income and struggling students. Distributed the first week of
September 2020 out of Schaefer Elementary, these bags
contained toiletries (shampoo, soap, toothbrush and
toothpaste), a blanket, books, games/puzzles, coloring books

and stuffed animals/toys.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School

202

Total Funds
35,000

1,600

500

Contributing
No

No

No

Page 16 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions

Section Description Total Funds Contributing

Distance Learning Program | Materials and equipment for teachers to work effectively in 20,000 No
Virtual Learning

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students

Increased Apportionment based on the Enroliment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students

10.58% 283,577

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

Required Descriptions

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in
meeting the needs of these students.]

Chromebooks, iPads, Hotspots (as needed) have been provided to unduplicated students and foster youth for use at home during virtual
learning in a COVID context. In order to communicate more effectively with our Spanish speaking students and families, Parentsquare was
acquired. Fountas & Pinnell intervention program was purchased to help us bridge the learning loss that is likely happening because of the
impact of the pandemic on student learning.

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage
required.]

Outreach Worker (Bilingual Spanish), AERIES "ParentSquare", Use of Program Assistance for outreach, Hotspots, free Wifi resources,
Fountas & Pinnell intervention program

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School 203 Page 17 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions

204

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Schaefer Charter School Page 18 of 18



OLIVET

Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020-21)

The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/Irngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone
Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet Union School |Anna Moore amoore@pousd.org
District Principal 7075223045

General Information
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.]

This plan was created to document the efforts of Olivet Charter School to serve its students' educational needs in a COVID-19 context. Olivet
Elementary Charter School is part of the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD).

The COVID-19 pandemic has had far-reaching consequences beyond the spread of the disease itself and efforts to quarantine it. Previous to
experiencing the negative impact brought on by the pandemic, Olivet Elementary Charter School was devastated by the Sonoma County
wildfires and firestorms of 2017, with a significant number of POUSD students, families, and staff tragically losing their homes and personal
possessions. The emotional toll of that experience coupled with the experience brought on by the current pandemic has been a significant
challenge for the community.

The pandemic has affected educational systems State-wide, leading to the widespread closures of schools and colleges. In the fall of 2020,

Sonoma County found itself on the Governor’s watch list, due to the number of COVID cases here. In turn, schools across the County,
including Olivet Charter School, launched the school year with a 100% virtual learning program.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%I%ﬁ School District Page 1 of 18


https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation

Stakeholder Engagement

[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.]

The efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback for each group were:
Students
e Surveys

Families
e Surveys
« Phone Calls
o Town Hall Virtual Meetings
« Emails

Educators ( teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
« Bargaining Unit Member Meetings
« MOU
e Reopening Committee

Other stakeholders (who do not have internet or speak languages other than English)
e Phone interviews

Overview of the stakeholder engagement process

« We consulted with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school district, parents,
and pupils in developing a learning continuity and attendance plan.

« We solicited recommendations and comments of members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to
be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan

« We notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures
proposed to be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan, using the most efficient method of notification possible (note
it is not required to produce printed notices or to send notices by mail).

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%I%ﬁ School District Page 2 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement

o We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan to the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory
committee separately for review and comment. The superintendent of a school district responded, in writing, to comments received
from the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory committee.

« We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan at a public hearing of the governing board of the school district for review
and comment by members of the public. The agenda for the public hearing was posted at least 72 hours before the public hearing
and included the location where the learning continuity and attendance plan was available for public inspection.

o The Governing Board adopted the learning continuity and attendance plan in a public meeting. This meeting was held after, but not
on the same day as, the public hearing

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.]

* Open session board meetings were held via Zoom. Remote participation was made available via Zoom and included public comment and
input.

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]

Students
o Students miss their friends and school
« Students are fearful of getting sick or giving it to someone at home.

Families
o Families need students in school in order to work
« Families are uneasy about students returning to school when COVID19 cases are growing.
o Major concerns for parents were: socialization, mask wearing vs non-mask wearing, quality virtual learning, child getting behind,

schooling for younger grade levels, belonging and part of a community, in schooling important for students, hard on working families

doing distance learning, scheduling the same for families, extra support for struggling students, socially distancing, special
education services.

Educators (teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
e Educators miss their students

« Educators are uneasy about returning to school when COVID-19 cases are growing

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]

All areas of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan were influenced by stakeholder input. The POUSD Governing Board was one of the

first school boards in Sonoma County to commit to a 100% virtual learning program to start the school year off, Fall 2020. This decision was
made carefully, and informed by stakeholder input.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%%Z School District Page 3 of 18



Continuity of Learning

In-Person Instructional Offerings

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019-2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss
due to future school closures.]

At the time this report was written (early fall 2020), POUSD was not able to determine when a transition to a hybrid instruction approach or in-
person learning would occur. This is due to a variety of factors outside the district's control. When a transition to hybrid learning is possible,
we anticipate the following:
e The adopted model for classroom based instruction is the Hybrid model where students attend in person instruction for 2 days a
week and attend distance learning 3 days a week.
« Students who have experienced significant learning loss or are at a greater risks of experiencing learning loss due to future closure
will have priority for the ability to come to campus 5 days per week if feasible and if able to be under the supervision of a school
employee with proper social distancing and cohorting available.

As reported, a move to in-person instruction is not possible at this time. However, POUSD has designed a virtual learning program meant to
increase and improve services to students and their families, relative to our virtual learning program initiated in Spring 2020. Our planning for
a move to hybrid learning has been informed by surveys sent out to staff and families in June 2020. Additionally, some expenditures have
been made in preparation for the eventual transition to hybrid and/or in-person instruction such as: face coverings, gloves, face shields, hand
sanitizer, temperature taking technology, MERV13 Filtration, Sterilization Machines, COVID-related signage, etc.

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
MERV-13 filtration 10,400 No
Personal Protective Equipment for staff and students 16,308 No
Plexiglass dividers 650 No

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%l%ﬁ School District Page 4 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning2

Total Funds Contributing

Description

Cleaning and Sanitization Equipment and Supplies 15,000 No

Portable hand washing stations 900 No

Temperature reading equipment 5,000 No
1,000 No

Safety signage

Distance Learning Program

Continuity of Instruction
[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of

substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.]

Distance Learning Model

We will provide a distance learning program to students with the following components:

« Content aligned to essential grade level standards that is provided at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially
equivalent to in-person instruction.

« Daily live interaction with certificated employees and peers for purposes of instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining school
connectedness. This interaction may take the form of internet or telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under
public health orders. If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, the governing board or body of the local
educational agency shall develop, with parent and stakeholder input, an alternative plan for frequent live interaction that provides a

comparable level of service and school connectedness.
Curriculum

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%l%ﬁ School District Page 5 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram1

We will provide a full curriculum of substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery by:

« Allocating Olivet Charter School learning resources to students to facilitate virtual learning (technology devices, software programs,
curriculum, etc.)

o Small groups and 1:1 support (Zoom breakout sessions during virtual learning)
The resources used to support this will be:

o Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Access to Devices and Connectivity
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.]

o Connected devices will be provided to students

o For students who lack internet access at home, the District will provide either individual internet Hotspot devices, regular access to
on-site internet-connected computers, or recorded instruction and electronic materials/assignments.

o Hardware: TK-K-1: iPads-one to one; 2-6: Chromebooks-one to one

Pupil Participation and Progress

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.]

Assess Progress
« Fountas and Pinnell assessments, Running Records, Star Math, Star Reading
Measuring Participation
« Teachers and school staff will keep track of student/family participation and attendance on a daily basis via AERIES.

Students will fill out a daily learning log via a google form. Students will submit items daily in google classroom. Teachers or staff members
may also submit this google form on the students behalf to document what the student completed for the day.

Evidence of participation includes:
e Online activities,
« Completion of regular assignments,
o Completion of assessments,
« Contacts between employees of the local educational agency and pupils or parents or guardians.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il)g School District Page 6 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram3

All students at all grade levels will be required to log into Google Classroom or otherwise confirm active learning.

Each teacher will determine the time value of assignments. Teachers will provide at least 240 instructional minutes that may include:
« Interaction, instruction, and check-ins between teachers and pupils through the use of a computer or communications technology.
« Video or audio instruction in which the primary mode of communication between the pupil and certificated employee is online
interaction, instructional television, video, telecourses, or other instruction that relies on computer or communications technology.
« The use of print materials incorporating assignments that are the subject of written or oral feedback.
o Assignments
o Assessments

Distance Learning Professional Development

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including
technological support.]

Professional Development has been/and is being provided to support teachers so that they can manage a virtual learning program for
students.
« PD informed by the work of the PD Committee
Developed on shortened Wednesdays
Added weekly to Seesaw or Google classroom (accessible to all who work with your students)
Collaboration between district grade level teachers
Ex: Working together to produce videos/Creating lesson plans to use in class and online
Professional Development: See PD Plan and Shortened Wednesday
Accountability, flexibility, personalized professional learning plan, etc.
Using curriculum digitally
Use Fountas & Pinnell intervention program- trained on it and look at it for each cohort day

Resources

e Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Staff Roles and Responsibilities
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.]

The roles and responsibilities of certificated staff have not significantly changed, with the exception of where and when their responsibilities
are being carried out. When hybrid instruction begins, teachers and students may assist with sanitizing classroom between cohorts each day.
The most affected staff in terms of sanitizing facilities are the classified ranks. The MOU the district has with the Classified Bargaining Unit
provides a degree of flexibility to many classified job descriptions so that they may assist with current new learning models.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il);l School District Page 7 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram5

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing
homelessness.]

English Learners

e Synchronous Designated ELD
Live virtual lessons/meetings
Phone calls
Small group lessons
By proficiency levels with scaffolds
In mixed level groups for fluency building
Teacher feedback and support as needed
Asynchronous Designated ELD
Previously-recorded lesson and videos
Phone and text messages
ELD assignments/projects using approved
ELD curriculum
Paper and pencil activities
Reading logs and journals
Goal setting and reflection

Exceptional needs

o Student's with IEPs: Students with IEP's will receive all services virtually during the period of virtual learning. Such services may
include occupational therapy, adaptive physical education, physical therapy, speech, and specialized academic instruction. In
accordance with SB 98 and California Ed Code, a Distance Learning Plan (DLP) that outlines how services will be delivered, will be
developed in collaboration with the parent of each student with an IEP.

o Foster Care: POUSD students in Foster Care will be afforded their Foster Care Educational Rights as outlined in EdCode and by the
CA Department of Education. Foster Care students have access to resources that will allow them to connect to virtual learning
resources (iPads, Chromebooks, Hotspots, etc.). POUSD staff do reach out to Foster families to encourage attendance and
engagement.

« Students Experiencing Homelessness: Olivet Charter School will make every effort to ensure continuity of service so that children
and youth experiencing homelessness are able to participate fully in school activities, and that barriers to identification, enrollment,
and retention in school are identified and removed.

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
Description Total Funds Contributing
Educational software and equipment to support Virtual Learning 16,300 No
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il)g School District Page 8 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram6
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram7

Description Total Funds Contributing

Technology Devices - Chromebooks, Chromebook covers, and I-Pads for students 97,355 No
Hot Spots for students 5,130 No
Zoom to allow for synchronous teaching and learning 3,780 No
Website development to serve as primary source of information, foster contentedness, and 2,025 No

provide tools for staff, parents, and students

Aeries Software Suite, Aeries Professional Development, Aeries Enroliment 7,500 No

Professional development 5,400 No

Pupil Learning Loss

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019-2020 and 2020-21 school years,
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language
development, and mathematics.]

POUSD will utilize a well articulated Assessment Calendar in conjunction with a number of diagnostic and formative assessment tools to
measure learning loss of students during the pandemic. In turn, what is learned by analyzing diagnostic and formative assessments will
inform classroom instruction and differentiation utilized strategies to augment student learning. The primary focus areas of POUSD diagnostic
and formative assessment tools are English Language Arts, Mathematics and English Language Development.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il)ﬁ School District Page 9 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss

Please see the assessment calendar below for additional information.

POUSD Assessment Calendar

Content Area Assessment Assessment Window

Narrative August-Sept.
Writing
Informational Jan-Fel
Argumentativel March-April
Gpinion
Guiged Reading F& P | Ayg. 15-0ct. 15
Readin R-niot for
- STAR Reading (3- | ° .
Eth)
Guiged Reading F & P | Jan. 7-Feb. 14th
(K imcluded)
STAR Reading [3-
Bth)
Interim Assessments Math Common Dec. 2-Dec. 10th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
Math (3-6th)
ELA Common Feb. 10th-Feb. 18th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
ELA (3-6th)

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%ilﬂ School District

Page 10 of 18



Pupil Learning Loss Strategies

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed,
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils
experiencing homelessness.]

Analyzing student data resulting from the diagnostic and formative assessments outlined above may lead to one or more of the following
actions/interventions:

Small group instruction

1:1 tutoring

Authentic Learning Materials to use at school and home

Daily and Weekly Check-Ins
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS)
Learning Team

English Learners

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

Integrated and Designated ELD

Balance technology and real materials

Exceptional needs

Foster Care/ Students Experiencing Homelessness

Other

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il)ﬁ School District

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

CB for Virtual Learning

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials
Weekly Check-ins

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

Page 11 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1

« Balance technology and real materials

Young Learners

« TK, Kand/or 1: % day learning schedule
Small group instruction
1:1 meetings and check-ins
iPads for Digital Learning
Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.]

The CAASPP will serve as a Summative Assessment utilized by Olivet Charter School to gauge the effectiveness of POUSD's program to
mitigate learning loss over time.

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
1:1 tutoring 16,860 No
Student math kits for Virtual Learning 9,100 No
Communication devices for staff to connect to families and students 460 No

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il)ﬁ School District Page 12 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional

[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of
COVID-19 on the school community.]

Monitor and Support
« Counseling services provided by district staff
Partnership with other organizations for additional counseling services
Student groups: Friendship, grief, loss, anxiety, and etc.
1:1 counseling for students that have been identified that have emotional needs
Proactive Lessons for classes
Family Support
SEL Curriculum: PBIS/ToolBox /Restorative Practices/PBIS
Toolbox: Continue and increase our use of it
PBIS- looks different at different (physical) campuses
Restorative Practices: Daily Community Circles, SEL- lessons, Mindfulness Practices
Focus on SEL during both models: Virtual Academy, Hybrid Model
Weekly Check-ins and support from teachers, Program Assistants and Principal (if needed)
Build partnerships with SEL organization
Each school chooses an organization to develop a full partnership.
Opportunities for adults to cultivate their own SEL competencies
Professional Development, room/time for self-reflection
Staff Community Circles and Colleague supports and support group
Making staff aware of the district resource that are available for our staff (i.e. insurance, RESIG, CTA, and CSEA)
Classes/course that are available

Professional Development and Resources to address Trauma and other Impacts
o West County Health Center
« SCOE

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%ilz School District Page 13 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach

[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English,
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk
of learning loss.]

If a student is absent from distance learning for more than three schools days or 60% of the instructional days in the school week, the
following process will be followed:
« Verify current contact information for each enrolled pupil
« Daily notification to parents or guardians of absences
« A plan for outreach from the school to determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services as necessary
e When feasible, transitioning the pupil to full-time in-person instruction

Outreach

Teachers will regularly communicate with parents and guardians regarding a pupil’s academic progress. AERIES "ParentSquare" was
acquired by POUSD specifically to improve our ability to communicate/engage students and their families.

We will regularly discuss as a staff effective ways to motivate students and families.

Students who are not engaged in instruction and are at risk of learning loss will be referred to school site administration who will coordinate
the following:
o Determine the best person to contact the student/family (principal, teacher, counselor, Instructional assistant) in order to make the
best impact
Determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services
Encourage teachers to consistently contact students and families
Focus the site on: Building trust and relationships so our community feeling safe and sharing their families needs
Keeping track of student/family communication on a weekly basis (ex. Parentsquare)

School Nutrition

[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.]

In Person

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il)ﬁ School District Page 14 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition

We will provide meals for pupils who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in in-person instruction by..

« “Grab and Go” meals will be delivered to classrooms, outdoors, or in a cafeteria. (Even if food is delivered to classrooms, students
should go outside to eat, so masks can be removed).

o Food carts/kiosks in multiple locations on the campus will aid in safe food distribution. If common areas such as dining halls and
cafeterias are used, students will be safely separated by cohorts while maintaining the social distance standards with proper
disinfection after each use.

« Disposable food service items (e.g., utensils, dishes) will be used as much as possible. If disposable items are not feasible, items
will be handled with gloves and washed with dish soap and hot water or in a dishwasher.

« Divided mealtimes (for breakfast, snack, and lunch) will be implemented by site administrators. Classified staff and teachers will
assist with the monitoring of various eating locations.

« Additional trash/composting containers will be used to accommodate the various eating areas.

Distance Learning (Hybrid/100% Virtual)

We will provide meals for all pupils, including those who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in distance
learning by..

Hybrid

e Group A (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Mondays and Tuesdays)

« At the end of the instructional day on Tuesdays, Group A students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to
take home
On Wednesdays, students who participate in full-time distance learning will be offered five breakfasts, five lunches, and 10 milks on
a grab-and-go basis. Meals for all students will be distributed to parents between the hours of 11:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. Parents
will be required to remain in their vehicles when picking up meals.
Group B (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Thursdays and Fridays)
At the end of the instructional day on Fridays, Group B students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to take
home.

100% Virtual Learning

o 5 days of breakfast and lunch will be provided on Monday's at Schaefer, Jack London, and Olivet from 10am to 1pm.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%il)ﬁ School District Page 15 of 18



Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows

and actions may be added as necessary]

Section Description

Mental Health and Social and | Additional Counseling Services to Promote Mental Health and
Emotional Well-Being Social/Emotional Wellbeing of Students: COUNSELOR

Pupil Engagement and Improved Communication with EL Students/Families
Outreach POUSD acquired "ParentSquare" (an AERIES product) which

translates all outgoing and incoming messages to facilitate
effective communication during virtual learning efforts. This
has allowed us to provide significantly improved support for
our Spanish speaking families. The program was on-boarded
in fall 2020, specifically to augment the Virtual Learning
experience of English Learners and to better support their
families.

Distance Learning Program  "Comfort Bags" for Homeless, Foster, Low Income Students

(Supports for Pupils with 40 duffel bags were made available for homeless, foster, low

Unique Needs) income and struggling students. Distributed the first week of
September 2020 out of Schaefer Elementary, these bags
contained toiletries (shampoo, soap, toothbrush and
toothpaste), a blanket, books, games/puzzles, coloring books
and stuffed animals/toys.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%%Q School District

Total Funds
35,000

2,025

500

Contributing
No

No

No

Page 16 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions

Section Description Total Funds Contributing

Distance Learning Program | Materials and equipment for teachers to work effectively in 20,000 No
Virtual Learning

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students

Increased Apportionment based on the Enroliment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students

9.22% 240,804

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

Required Descriptions

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in
meeting the needs of these students.]

Chromebooks, iPads, Hotspots (as needed) have been provided to unduplicated students and foster youth for use at home during virtual
learning in a COVID context. In order to communicate more effectively with our Spanish speaking students and families, Parentsquare was
acquired. Fountas & Pinnell intervention program was purchased to help us bridge the learning loss that is likely happening because of the
impact of the pandemic on student learning.

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage
required.]

Outreach Worker (Bilingual Spanish), AERIES "ParentSquare", Use of Program Assistance for outreach, Hotspots, free Wifi resources,
Fountas & Pinnell intervention program

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%%A School District Page 17 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet U%%g School District Page 18 of 18



Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020-21)

The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/Irngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone
Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-Olivet Union | Kirsten Sanft kwofford@pousd.org
School District Principal 707-522-3310

General Information
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.]

This plan was created to document the efforts of the Piner-Olivet Charter School to serve its students' educational needs in a COVID-19
context. Piner-Olivet Charter School (POCS) is part of the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD)

The COVID-19 pandemic has had far-reaching consequences beyond the spread of the disease itself and efforts to quarantine it. Previous to
experiencing the negative impact brought on by the pandemic, the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) was devastated by the
Sonoma County wildfires and firestorms of 2017, with a significant number of POUSD students, families, and staff tragically losing their
homes and personal possessions. The emotional toll of that experience coupled with the experience brought on by the current pandemic has
been a significant challenge for the community.

The pandemic has affected educational systems State-wide, leading to the widespread closures of schools and colleges. In the fall of 2020,
Sonoma County found itself on the Governor’s watch list, due to the number of COVID cases here. In turn, schools across the County,
including POCS, launched the school year with a 100% virtual learning program.

Stakeholder Engagement

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%‘?Union School District Page 1 of 18



https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement

[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.]

The efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback for each group were:
Students
e Surveys

Families
e Surveys
e Phone Calls
e Town Hall Virtual Meetings
o Emails

Educators ( teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
« Bargaining Unit Member Meetings
« MOU
e Reopening Committee

Other stakeholders (who do not have internet or speak languages other than English)
o Phone interviews

Overview of the stakeholder engagement process

o We consulted with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school district, parents,
and pupils in developing a learning continuity and attendance plan.

« We solicited recommendations and comments of members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to
be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan

« We notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures
proposed to be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan, using the most efficient method of notification possible (note
it is not required to produce printed notices or to send notices by mail).

o We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan to the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory
committee separately for review and comment. The superintendent of a school district responded, in writing, to comments received
from the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory committee.

« We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan at a public hearing of the governing board of the school district for review
and comment by members of the public. The agenda for the public hearing was posted at least 72 hours before the public hearing
and included the location where the learning continuity and attendance plan was available for public inspection.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%f"Union School District Page 2 of 18



o The Governing Board adopted the learning continuity and attendance plan in a public meeting. This meeting was held after, but not
on the same day as, the public hearing

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.]

* Open session board meetings were held via Zoom. Remote participation was made available via Zoom and included public comment and
input.

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]

Students
« Students miss their friends and school
« Students are fearful of getting sick or giving it to someone at home.

Families

o Families need students in school in order to work

« Families are uneasy about students returning to school when COVID19 cases are growing.

« Major concerns for parents were: socialization, mask wearing vs non-mask wearing, quality virtual learning, child getting behind,
schooling for younger grade levels, belonging and part of a community, in schooling important for students, hard on working families
doing distance learning, scheduling the same for families, extra support for struggling students, socially distancing, special
education services.

Educators (teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
o Educators miss their students
« Educators are uneasy about returning to school when COVID-19 cases are growing

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]

All areas of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan were influenced by stakeholder input. The POUSD Governing Board was one of the
first school boards in Sonoma County to commit to a 100% virtual learning program to start the school year off, Fall 2020. This decision was
made carefully, and informed by stakeholder input.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%‘?Union School District Page 3 of 18



Continuity of Learning

In-Person Instructional Offerings

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019-2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss
due to future school closures.]

At the time this report was written (early fall 2020), POCS was not able to determine when a transition to a hybrid instruction approach or in-
person learning would occur. This is due to a variety of factors outside the district's control. When a transition to hybrid learning is possible,
we anticipate the following:
e The adopted model for classroom based instruction is the Hybrid model where students attend in person instruction for 2 days a
week and attend distance learning 3 days a week.
« Students who have experienced significant learning loss or are at a greater risks of experiencing learning loss due to future closure
will have priority for the ability to come to campus 5 days per week if feasible and if able to be under the supervision of a school
employee with proper social distancing and cohorting available.

As reported, a move to in-person instruction is not possible at this time. However, POCS has designed a virtual learning program meant to
increase and improve services to students and their families, relative to our virtual learning program initiated in Spring 2020. Our planning for
a move to hybrid learning has been informed by surveys sent out to staff and families in June 2020. Additionally, some expenditures have
been made in preparation for the eventual transition to hybrid and/or in-person instruction such as: face coverings, gloves, face shields, hand
sanitizer, temperature taking technology, MERV13 Filtration, Sterilization Machines, COVID-related signage, etc.

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
MERV-13 filtration 10,400 No
Personal Protective Equipment for staff and students 9,700 No
Plexiglass dividers 400 No
Cleaning and Sanitization Equipment and Supplies 7,500 No

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%@Union School District Page 4 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning2

Total Funds Contributing

Description

Portable hand washing stations 900 No

Temperature reading equipment 5,000 No
1,000 No

Safety signage

Distance Learning Program

Continuity of Instruction

[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will
ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.]

Distance Learning Model

We will provide a distance learning program to students with the following components:
o Content aligned to essential grade level standards that is provided at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially

equivalent to in-person instruction.

« Daily live interaction with certificated employees and peers for purposes of instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining school
connectedness. This interaction may take the form of internet or telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under
public health orders. If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, the governing board or body of the local
educational agency shall develop, with parent and stakeholder input, an alternative plan for frequent live interaction that provides a

comparable level of service and school connectedness.

Curriculum

We will provide a full curriculum of substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery by:
« Allocating POCS learning resources to students to facilitate virtual learning (technology devices, software programs, curriculum, etc.)

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%ZUnion School District Page 5 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram1

o Small groups and 1:1 support (Zoom breakout sessions during virtual learning)

The resources used to support this will be:

o Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Access to Devices and Connectivity
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.]

o Connected devices will be provided to students

« For students who lack internet access at home, the District will provide either individual internet Hotspot devices, regular access to
on-site internet-connected computers, or recorded instruction and electronic materials/assignments.

o Hardware: TK-K-1: iPads-one to one; 2-6: Chromebooks-one to one

Pupil Participation and Progress

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.]

Assess Progress
« Fountas and Pinnell assessments, Running Records, Star Math, Star Reading
Measuring Participation
o Teachers and school staff will keep track of student/family participation and attendance on a daily basis via AERIES.

Students will fill out a daily learning log via a google form. Students will submit items daily in google classroom. Teachers or staff members
may also submit this google form on the students behalf to document what the student completed for the day.

Evidence of participation includes:
« Online activities,
o Completion of regular assignments,
e Completion of assessments,
o Contacts between employees of the local educational agency and pupils or parents or guardians.

All students at all grade levels will be required to log into Google Classroom or otherwise confirm active learning.

Each teacher will determine the time value of assignments. Teachers will provide at least 240 instructional minutes that may include:
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%?Union School District Page 6 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram3

« Interaction, instruction, and check-ins between teachers and pupils through the use of a computer or communications technology.

« Video or audio instruction in which the primary mode of communication between the pupil and certificated employee is online
interaction, instructional television, video, telecourses, or other instruction that relies on computer or communications technology.

e The use of print materials incorporating assignments that are the subject of written or oral feedback.

e Assignments

e Assessments

Distance Learning Professional Development

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including
technological support.]

Professional Development has been/and is being provided to support teachers so that they can manage a virtual learning program for
students.
« PD informed by the work of POUSD PD Committee
Developed on shortened Wednesdays
Added weekly to Seesaw or Google classroom (accessible to all who work with your students)
Collaboration between district grade level teachers
Ex: Working together to produce videos/Creating lesson plans to use in class and online
Professional Development: See PD Plan and Shortened Wednesday
Accountability, flexibility, personalized professional learning plan, etc.
Using curriculum digitally
Use Fountas & Pinnell intervention program- trained on it and look at it for each cohort day

Resources

o Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Staff Roles and Responsibilities
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.]

The roles and responsibilities of certificated staff have not significantly changed, with the exception of where and when their responsibilities
are being carried out. When hybrid instruction begins, teachers and students may assist with sanitizing classroom between cohorts each day.
The most affected staff in terms of sanitizing facilities are the classified ranks. The MOU the district has with the Classified Bargaining Unit
provides a degree of flexibility to many classified job descriptions so that they may assist with current new learning models.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%?Union School District Page 7 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram5

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing
homelessness.]

English Learners

e Synchronous Designated ELD
Live virtual lessons/meetings
Phone calls
Small group lessons
By proficiency levels with scaffolds
In mixed level groups for fluency building
Teacher feedback and support as needed
Asynchronous Designated ELD
Previously-recorded lesson and videos
Phone and text messages
ELD assignments/projects using approved
ELD curriculum
Paper and pencil activities
Reading logs and journals
Goal setting and reflection

Exceptional needs

o Student's with IEPs: Students with IEP's will receive all services virtually during the period of virtual learning. Such services may
include occupational therapy, adaptive physical education, physical therapy, speech, and specialized academic instruction. In
accordance with SB 98 and California Ed Code, a Distance Learning Plan (DLP) that outlines how services will be delivered, will be
developed in collaboration with the parent of each student with an IEP.

o Foster Care: POUSD students in Foster Care will be afforded their Foster Care Educational Rights as outlined in EdCode and by the
CA Department of Education. Foster Care students have access to resources that will allow them to connect to virtual learning
resources (iPads, Chromebooks, Hotspots, etc.). POUSD staff do reach out to Foster families to encourage attendance and
engagement.

« Students Experiencing Homelessness: POUSD will make every effort to ensure continuity of service so that children and youth
experiencing homelessness are able to participate fully in school activities, and that barriers to identification, enrollment, and
retention in school are identified and removed.

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
Description Total Funds Contributing
Educational software and equipment to support Virtual Learning 8,800 No
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-Ol%/%pUnion School District Page 8 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram6
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram7

Description Total Funds Contributing

Technology Devices - Chromebooks, Chromebook covers, and I-Pads for students 57,700 No
Hot Spots for students 3,050 No
Zoom to allow for synchronous teaching and learning 2,300 No
Website development to serve as primary source of information, foster contentedness, and 1,200 No

provide tools for staff, parents, and students

Aeries Software Suite, Aeries Professional Development, Aeries Enroliment 4,500 No

Professional development 3,200 No

Pupil Learning Loss

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019-2020 and 2020-21 school years,
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language
development, and mathematics.]

POCS will utilize a well articulated Assessment Calendar in conjunction with a number of diagnostic and formative assessment tools to
measure learning loss of students during the pandemic. In turn, what is learned by analyzing diagnostic and formative assessments will
inform classroom instruction and differentiation utilized strategies to augment student learning. The primary focus areas of POCS diagnostic
and formative assessment tools are English Language Arts, Mathematics and English Language Development.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%{IUnion School District Page 9 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss

Please see the assessment calendar below for additional information.

POUSD Assessment Calendar

Content Area Assessment Assessment Window

Narrative August-Sept.
Writing
Informational Jan-Fel
Argumentativel March-April
Gpinion
Guiged Reading F& P | Ayg. 15-0ct. 15
Readin R-niot for
- STAR Reading (3- | ° .
Eth)
Guiged Reading F & P | Jan. 7-Feb. 14th
(K imcluded)
STAR Reading [3-
Bth)
Interim Assessments Math Common Dec. 2-Dec. 10th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
Math (3-6th)
ELA Common Feb. 10th-Feb. 18th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
ELA (3-6th)

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%?Union School District

Page 10 of 18



Pupil Learning Loss Strategies

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed,
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils
experiencing homelessness.]

Analyzing student data resulting from the diagnostic and formative assessments outlined above may lead to one or more of the following
actions/interventions:

Small group instruction

1:1 tutoring

Authentic Learning Materials to use at school and home

Daily and Weekly Check-Ins
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS)
Learning Team

English Learners

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

Integrated and Designated ELD

Balance technology and real materials

Exceptional needs

Foster Care/ Students Experiencing Homelessness

Other

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%%‘?Union School District

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

CB for Virtual Learning

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials
Weekly Check-ins

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

Page 11 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1

« Balance technology and real materials

Young Learners

« TK, Kand/or 1: % day learning schedule
Small group instruction
1:1 meetings and check-ins
iPads for Digital Learning
Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.]

The CAASPP will serve as a Summative Assessment utilized by POUSD to gauge the effectiveness of POUSD's program to mitigate
learning loss over time.

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
1:1 tutoring 10,500 No
Student learning kits for Virtual Learning 4,200 No
Communication devices for staff to connect to families and students 460 No

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%%f"Union School District Page 12 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional

[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of
COVID-19 on the school community.]

Monitor and Support
« Counseling services provided by district staff
Partnership with other organizations for additional counseling services
Student groups: Friendship, grief, loss, anxiety, and etc.
1:1 counseling for students that have been identified that have emotional needs
Proactive Lessons for classes
Family Support
SEL Curriculum: PBIS/ToolBox /Restorative Practices/PBIS
Toolbox: Continue and increase our use of it
PBIS- looks different at different (physical) campuses
Restorative Practices: Daily Community Circles, SEL- lessons, Mindfulness Practices
Focus on SEL during both models: Virtual Academy, Hybrid Model
Weekly Check-ins and support from teachers, Program Assistants and Principal (if needed)
Build partnerships with SEL organization
Each school chooses an organization to develop a full partnership.
Opportunities for adults to cultivate their own SEL competencies
Professional Development, room/time for self-reflection
Staff Community Circles and Colleague supports and support group
Making staff aware of the district resource that are available for our staff (i.e. insurance, RESIG, CTA, and CSEA)
Classes/course that are available

Professional Development and Resources to address Trauma and other Impacts
o West County Health Center
« SCOE

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%‘?Union School District Page 13 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach

[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English,
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk
of learning loss.]

If a student is absent from distance learning for more than three schools days or 60% of the instructional days in the school week, the
following process will be followed:
« Verify current contact information for each enrolled pupil
« Daily notification to parents or guardians of absences
« A plan for outreach from the school to determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services as necessary
e When feasible, transitioning the pupil to full-time in-person instruction

Outreach

Teachers will regularly communicate with parents and guardians regarding a pupil’s academic progress. AERIES "ParentSquare" was
acquired by POUSD specifically to improve our ability to communicate/engage students and their families.

We will regularly discuss as a staff effective ways to motivate students and families.

Students who are not engaged in instruction and are at risk of learning loss will be referred to school site administration who will coordinate
the following:
o Determine the best person to contact the student/family (principal, teacher, counselor, Instructional assistant) in order to make the
best impact
Determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services
Encourage teachers to consistently contact students and families
Focus the site on: Building trust and relationships so our community feeling safe and sharing their families needs
Keeping track of student/family communication on a weekly basis (ex. Parentsquare)

School Nutrition

[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.]

In Person

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%%@Union School District Page 14 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition

We will provide meals for pupils who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in in-person instruction by..

« “Grab and Go” meals will be delivered to classrooms, outdoors, or in a cafeteria. (Even if food is delivered to classrooms, students
should go outside to eat, so masks can be removed).

o Food carts/kiosks in multiple locations on the campus will aid in safe food distribution. If common areas such as dining halls and
cafeterias are used, students will be safely separated by cohorts while maintaining the social distance standards with proper
disinfection after each use.

« Disposable food service items (e.g., utensils, dishes) will be used as much as possible. If disposable items are not feasible, items
will be handled with gloves and washed with dish soap and hot water or in a dishwasher.

« Divided mealtimes (for breakfast, snack, and lunch) will be implemented by site administrators. Classified staff and teachers will
assist with the monitoring of various eating locations.

« Additional trash/composting containers will be used to accommodate the various eating areas.

Distance Learning (Hybrid/100% Virtual)

We will provide meals for all pupils, including those who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in distance
learning by..

Hybrid

e Group A (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Mondays and Tuesdays)

« At the end of the instructional day on Tuesdays, Group A students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to
take home
On Wednesdays, students who participate in full-time distance learning will be offered five breakfasts, five lunches, and 10 milks on
a grab-and-go basis. Meals for all students will be distributed to parents between the hours of 11:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. Parents
will be required to remain in their vehicles when picking up meals.
Group B (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Thursdays and Fridays)
At the end of the instructional day on Fridays, Group B students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to take
home.

100% Virtual Learning

o 5 days of breakfast and lunch will be provided on Monday's at Schaefer, Jack London, and Olivet from 10am to 1pm.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%ZUnion School District Page 15 of 18



Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows

and actions may be added as necessary]

Section Description

Mental Health and Social and | Additional Counseling Services to Promote Mental Health and
Emotional Well-Being Social/Emotional Wellbeing of Students: COUNSELOR

Pupil Engagement and Improved Communication with EL Students/Families
Outreach POCS acquired "ParentSquare" (an AERIES product) which

translates all outgoing and incoming messages to facilitate
effective communication during virtual learning efforts. This
has allowed us to provide significantly improved support for
our Spanish speaking families. The program was on-boarded
in fall 2020, specifically to augment the Virtual Learning
experience of English Learners and to better support their
families.

Distance Learning Program  "Comfort Bags" for Homeless, Foster, Low Income Students

(Supports for Pupils with 40 duffel bags were made available for homeless, foster, low

Unique Needs) income and struggling students. Distributed the first week of
September 2020 out of Schaefer Elementary, these bags
contained toiletries (shampoo, soap, toothbrush and
toothpaste), a blanket, books, games/puzzles, coloring books
and stuffed animals/toys.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%%?Union School District

Total Funds
9,600

1,200

500

Contributing
No

No

No

Page 16 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions

Section Description Total Funds Contributing

Distance Learning Program | Materials and equipment for teachers to work effectively in 12,000 No
Virtual Learning

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students

Increased Apportionment based on the Enroliment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students

8.87% 143,093

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

Required Descriptions

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in
meeting the needs of these students.]

Chromebooks, iPads, Hotspots (as needed) have been provided to unduplicated students and foster youth for use at home during virtual
learning in a COVID context. In order to communicate more effectively with our Spanish speaking students and families, Parentsquare was
acquired. Fountas & Pinnell intervention program was purchased to help us bridge the learning loss that is likely happening because of the
impact of the pandemic on student learning.

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage
required.]

Outreach Worker (Bilingual Spanish), AERIES "ParentSquare", Use of Program Assistance for outreach, Hotspots, free Wifi resources,
Fountas & Pinnell intervention program

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%%?Union School District Page 17 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Piner-Olivet Charter School - Piner-OI%/%pUnion School District Page 18 of 18



Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020-21)

The instructions for completing the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan is available at
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/Irngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone
Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union School District | Adam Napoleon anapoleon@pousd.org
Principal 707-522-3320

General Information
[A description of the impact the COVID-19 pandemic has had on the LEA and its community.]

This plan was created to document the efforts of the Northwest Prep Charter School to serve its students' educational needs in a COVID-19
context. Northwest Prep Charter School is part of the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD).

The COVID-19 pandemic has had far-reaching consequences beyond the spread of the disease itself and efforts to quarantine it. Previous to
experiencing the negative impact brought on by the pandemic, the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) was devastated by the
Sonoma County wildfires and firestorms of 2017, with a significant number of POUSD students, families, and staff tragically losing their
homes and personal possessions. The emotional toll of that experience coupled with the experience brought on by the current pandemic has
been a significant challenge for the community.

The pandemic has affected educational systems State-wide, leading to the widespread closures of schools and colleges. In the fall of 2020,

Sonoma County found itself on the Governor’s watch list, due to the number of COVID cases here. In turn, schools across the County,
including Northwest Prep Charter School , launched the school year with a 100% virtual learning program.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%ll District Page 1 of 18


https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/documents/lrngcntntyatndncpln-instructions.docx
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#generalinformation

Stakeholder Engagement

[A description of the efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback.]

The efforts made to solicit stakeholder feedback for each group were:
Students
e Surveys

Families
e Surveys
e Phone Calls
o Town Hall Virtual Meetings
e Emails

Educators ( teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
e Bargaining Unit Member Meetings
« MOU
o Reopening Committee

Other stakeholders (who do not have internet or speak languages other than English)
o Phone interviews

Overview of the stakeholder engagement process

o We consulted with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school district, parents,
and pupils in developing a learning continuity and attendance plan.

« We solicited recommendations and comments of members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to
be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan

« We notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures
proposed to be included in the learning continuity and attendance plan, using the most efficient method of notification possible (note
it is not required to produce printed notices or to send notices by mail).

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union s%%& District Page 2 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#stakeholderengagement

o We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan to the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory
committee separately for review and comment. The superintendent of a school district responded, in writing, to comments received
from the parent advisory committee and the English learner parent advisory committee.

« We presented the learning continuity and attendance plan at a public hearing of the governing board of the school district for review
and comment by members of the public. The agenda for the public hearing was posted at least 72 hours before the public hearing
and included the location where the learning continuity and attendance plan was available for public inspection.

o The Governing Board adopted the learning continuity and attendance plan in a public meeting. This meeting was held after, but not
on the same day as, the public hearing

[A description of the options provided for remote participation in public meetings and public hearings.]

* Open session board meetings were held via Zoom. Remote participation was made available via Zoom and included public comment and
input.

[A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.]

Students
o Students miss their friends and school
« Students are fearful of getting sick or giving it to someone at home.

Families
o Families need students in school in order to work
« Families are uneasy about students returning to school when COVID19 cases are growing.
o Major concerns for parents were: socialization, mask wearing vs non-mask wearing, quality virtual learning, child getting behind,

schooling for younger grade levels, belonging and part of a community, in schooling important for students, hard on working families

doing distance learning, scheduling the same for families, extra support for struggling students, socially distancing, special
education services.

Educators (teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel
e Educators miss their students

« Educators are uneasy about returning to school when COVID-19 cases are growing

[A description of the aspects of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.]

All areas of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan were influenced by stakeholder input. The POUSD Governing Board was one of the

first school boards in Sonoma County to commit to a 100% virtual learning program to start the school year off, Fall 2020. This decision was
made carefully, and informed by stakeholder input.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union s%%§| District Page 3 of 18



Continuity of Learning

In-Person Instructional Offerings

[A description of the actions the LEA will take to offer classroom-based instruction whenever possible, particularly for students who have
experienced significant learning loss due to school closures in the 2019-2020 school year or are at a greater risk of experiencing learning loss
due to future school closures.]

At the time this report was written (early fall 2020), Northwest Prep Charter School was not able to determine when a transition to a hybrid
instruction approach or in-person learning would occur. This is due to a variety of factors outside the district's control. When a transition to
hybrid learning is possible, we anticipate the following:
e The adopted model for classroom based instruction is the Hybrid model where students attend in person instruction for 2 days a
week and attend distance learning 3 days a week.
« Students who have experienced significant learning loss or are at a greater risks of experiencing learning loss due to future closure
will have priority for the ability to come to campus 5 days per week if feasible and if able to be under the supervision of a school
employee with proper social distancing and cohorting available.

As reported, a move to in-person instruction is not possible at this time. However, Northwest Prep Charter School has designed a virtual
learning program meant to increase and improve services to students and their families, relative to our virtual learning program initiated in
Spring 2020. Our planning for a move to hybrid learning has been informed by surveys sent out to staff and families in June 2020.
Additionally, some expenditures have been made in preparation for the eventual transition to hybrid and/or in-person instruction such as: face
coverings, gloves, face shields, hand sanitizer, temperature taking technology, MERV13 Filtration, Sterilization Machines, COVID-related
signage, etc.

Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
MERV-13 filtration 10,400 No
Personal Protective Equipment for staff and students 7,000 No
Plexiglass dividers 300 No

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union Sa%%l District Page 4 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#ContinuityofLearning2

Description

Cleaning and Sanitization Equipment and Supplies

Portable hand washing stations

Temperature reading equipment

Safety signage

Total Funds

8,000

900

5,000

1,000

Contributing

No

No

No

No

Distance Learning Program

Continuity of Instruction

[A description of how the LEA will provide continuity of instruction during the school year to ensure pupils have access to a full curriculum of
substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery, including the LEA’s plan for curriculum and instructional resources that will

ensure instructional continuity for pupils if a transition between in-person instruction and distance learning is necessary.]

Distance Learning Model

We will provide a distance learning program to students with the following components:

« Content aligned to essential grade level standards that is provided at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially

equivalent to in-person instruction.

« Daily live interaction with certificated employees and peers for purposes of instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining school
connectedness. This interaction may take the form of internet or telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under
public health orders. If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, the governing board or body of the local
educational agency shall develop, with parent and stakeholder input, an alternative plan for frequent live interaction that provides a

comparable level of service and school connectedness.

Curriculum
2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union s&%@ District

Page 5 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram1

We will provide a full curriculum of substantially similar quality regardless of the method of delivery by:
« Allocating Northwest Prep Charter School learning resources to students to facilitate virtual learning (technology devices, software
programs, curriculum, etc.)

e Small groups and 1:1 support (Zoom breakout sessions during virtual learning)

The resources used to support this will be:

e Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Access to Devices and Connectivity
[A description of how the LEA will ensure access to devices and connectivity for all pupils to support distance learning.]

o Connected devices will be provided to students

« For students who lack internet access at home, the District will provide either individual internet Hotspot devices, regular access to
on-site internet-connected computers, or recorded instruction and electronic materials/assignments.

e Hardware: TK-K-1: iPads-one to one; 2-6: Chromebooks-one to one

Pupil Participation and Progress

[A description of how the LEA will assess pupil progress through live contacts and synchronous instructional minutes, and a description of how
the LEA will measure participation and time value of pupil work.]

Assess Progress
« Fountas and Pinnell assessments, Running Records, Star Math, Star Reading
Measuring Participation
e Teachers and school staff will keep track of student/family participation and attendance on a daily basis via AERIES.

Students will fill out a daily learning log via a google form. Students will submit items daily in google classroom. Teachers or staff members
may also submit this google form on the students behalf to document what the student completed for the day.

Evidence of participation includes:
« Online activities,
o Completion of regular assignments,
o Completion of assessments,

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%@I District Page 6 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram3

« Contacts between employees of the local educational agency and pupils or parents or guardians.
All students at all grade levels will be required to log into Google Classroom or otherwise confirm active learning.

Each teacher will determine the time value of assignments. Teachers will provide at least 240 instructional minutes that may include:
 Interaction, instruction, and check-ins between teachers and pupils through the use of a computer or communications technology.
« Video or audio instruction in which the primary mode of communication between the pupil and certificated employee is online
interaction, instructional television, video, telecourses, or other instruction that relies on computer or communications technology.
e The use of print materials incorporating assignments that are the subject of written or oral feedback.
o Assignments
e Assessments

Distance Learning Professional Development

[A description of the professional development and resources that will be provided to staff to support the distance learning program, including
technological support.]

Professional Development has been/and is being provided to support teachers so that they can manage a virtual learning program for
students.
o PD informed by the work of the PD Committee
Developed on shortened Wednesdays
Added weekly to Seesaw or Google classroom (accessible to all who work with your students)
Collaboration between district grade level teachers
Ex: Working together to produce videos/Creating lesson plans to use in class and online
Professional Development: See PD Plan and Shortened Wednesday
Accountability, flexibility, personalized professional learning plan, etc.
Using curriculum digitally
Use Fountas & Pinnell intervention program- trained on it and look at it for each cohort day

Resources

e Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Lexia, Renaissance (Myon, Freckle, etc.), Khan Academy, Zoom, Clever, etc.

Staff Roles and Responsibilities
[A description of the new roles and responsibilities of affected staff as a result of COVID-19.]

The roles and responsibilities of certificated staff have not significantly changed, with the exception of where and when their responsibilities
are being carried out. When hybrid instruction begins, teachers and students may assist with sanitizing classroom between cohorts each day.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%ZI District Page 7 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram5

The most affected staff in terms of sanitizing facilities are the classified ranks. The MOU the district has with the Classified Bargaining Unit
provides a degree of flexibility to many classified job descriptions so that they may assist with current new learning models.

Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs

[A description of the additional supports the LEA will provide during distance learning to assist pupils with unique needs, including English
learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing
homelessness.]

English Learners

e Synchronous Designated ELD
Live virtual lessons/meetings
Phone calls
Small group lessons
By proficiency levels with scaffolds
In mixed level groups for fluency building
Teacher feedback and support as needed
Asynchronous Designated ELD
Previously-recorded lesson and videos
Phone and text messages
ELD assignments/projects using approved
ELD curriculum
Paper and pencil activities
Reading logs and journals
Goal setting and reflection

Exceptional needs

« Student's with IEPs: Students with IEP's will receive all services virtually during the period of virtual learning. Such services may
include occupational therapy, adaptive physical education, physical therapy, speech, and specialized academic instruction. In
accordance with SB 98 and California Ed Code, a Distance Learning Plan (DLP) that outlines how services will be delivered, will be
developed in collaboration with the parent of each student with an IEP.

o Foster Care: POUSD students in Foster Care will be afforded their Foster Care Educational Rights as outlined in EdCode and by the
CA Department of Education. Foster Care students have access to resources that will allow them to connect to virtual learning
resources (iPads, Chromebooks, Hotspots, etc.). POUSD staff do reach out to Foster families to encourage attendance and
engagement.

« Students Experiencing Homelessness: Northwest Prep Charter School will make every effort to ensure continuity of service so that
children and youth experiencing homelessness are able to participate fully in school activities, and that barriers to identification,
enroliment, and retention in school are identified and removed.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union s%%§| District Page 8 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram6

Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
Educational software and equipment to support Virtual Learning 5,000 No
Technology Devices - Chromebooks, Chromebook covers, and I-Pads for students 18,000 No
Hot Spots for students 1,700 No
Zoom to allow for synchronous teaching and learning 1,300 No
Website development to serve as primary source of information, foster contentedness, and 800 No

provide tools for staff, parents, and students

Aeries Software Suite, Aeries Professional Development, Aeries Enrollment 2,500 No

Professional development 1,800 No

Pupil Learning Loss

[A description of how the LEA will address pupil learning loss that results from COVID-19 during the 2019-2020 and 2020-21 school years,
including how the LEA will assess pupils to measure learning status, particularly in the areas of English language arts, English language
development, and mathematics.]

Northwest Prep Charter School will utilize a well articulated Assessment Calendar in conjunction with a number of diagnostic and formative
assessment tools to measure learning loss of students during the pandemic. In turn, what is learned by analyzing diagnostic and formative

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union Sa%gl District Page 9 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#DistanceLearningProgram7
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss

assessments will inform classroom instruction and differentiation utilized strategies to augment student learning. The primary focus areas of
POUSD diagnostic and formative assessment tools are English Language Arts, Mathematics and English Language Development.

Please see the assessment calendar below for additional information.

POUSD Assessment Calendar

Content Area Assessment Assassment Window

Narrative August-Sapt.
Writing
Informational Jan-Fel
Argumentativel March-April
Opinion
Guided Reading FAP | Ayg. 15-Oct. 15
Readin R-miot for
- STAR Reading (3- | ° g
Bth)
Gulded Reading FAP | Jjan. 7-Feb. 14th
(K imcluded)
STAR Reading [3-
Bth)
Interim Assessmenis Math Common Dec. 2-Dec. 10th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
Math (3-6th)
ELA Common Fab. 10th-Fab. 18th
Assessment from
grade level (K-2)
ELA (3-8th)

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S&%gl District Page 10 of 18



Pupil Learning Loss Strategies

[A description of the actions and strategies the LEA will use to address learning loss and accelerate learning progress for pupils, as needed,
including how these strategies differ for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils
experiencing homelessness.]

Analyzing student data resulting from the diagnostic and formative assessments outlined above may lead to one or more of the following
actions/interventions:

Small group instruction

1:1 tutoring

Authentic Learning Materials to use at school and home

Daily and Weekly Check-Ins
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS)
Learning Team

English Learners

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

Integrated and Designated ELD

Balance technology and real materials

Exceptional needs

Foster Care/ Students Experiencing Homelessness

Other

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%ll District

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

CB for Virtual Learning

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials
Weekly Check-ins

Small group instruction

1:1 meetings

Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Weekly Check-ins

Page 11 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss1

« Balance technology and real materials

Young Learners

« TK, Kand/or 1: % day learning schedule
Small group instruction
1:1 meetings and check-ins
iPads for Digital Learning
Authentic Learning Materials at school/home
Balance technology and real materials

Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
[A description of how the effectiveness of the services or supports provided to address learning loss will be measured.]

The CAASPP will serve as a Summative Assessment utilized by POUSD to gauge the effectiveness of Northwest Prep Charter School's
program to mitigate learning loss over time.

Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

Description Total Funds Contributing
1:1 tutoring 3,500 No
Student learning kits for Virtual Learning 2,300 No
Communication devices for staff to connect to families and students 460 No

Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%gl District Page 12 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss2
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilLearningLoss4
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#MentalHealthandSocialandEmotional

[A description of how the LEA will monitor and support mental health and social and emotional well-being of pupils and staff during the school
year, including the professional development and resources that will be provided to pupils and staff to address trauma and other impacts of
COVID-19 on the school community.]

Monitor and Support
« Counseling services provided by district staff
Partnership with other organizations for additional counseling services
Student groups: Friendship, grief, loss, anxiety, and etc.
1:1 counseling for students that have been identified that have emotional needs
Proactive Lessons for classes
Family Support
SEL Curriculum: PBIS/ToolBox /Restorative Practices/PBIS
Toolbox: Continue and increase our use of it
PBIS- looks different at different (physical) campuses
Restorative Practices: Daily Community Circles, SEL- lessons, Mindfulness Practices
Focus on SEL during both models: Virtual Academy, Hybrid Model
Weekly Check-ins and support from teachers, Program Assistants and Principal (if needed)
Build partnerships with SEL organization
Each school chooses an organization to develop a full partnership.
Opportunities for adults to cultivate their own SEL competencies
Professional Development, room/time for self-reflection
Staff Community Circles and Colleague supports and support group
Making staff aware of the district resource that are available for our staff (i.e. insurance, RESIG, CTA, and CSEA)
Classes/course that are available

Professional Development and Resources to address Trauma and other Impacts
o West County Health Center
« SCOE

Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%gl District Page 13 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#PupilEngagementandOutreach

[A description of pupil engagement and outreach, including the procedures for tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who are absent from
distance learning and how the LEA will provide outreach to pupils and their parents or guardians, including in languages other than English,
when pupils are not meeting compulsory education requirements, or if the LEA determines the pupil is not engaging in instruction and is at risk
of learning loss.]

If a student is absent from distance learning for more than three schools days or 60% of the instructional days in the school week, the
following process will be followed:
« Verify current contact information for each enrolled pupil
« Daily notification to parents or guardians of absences
« A plan for outreach from the school to determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services as necessary
e When feasible, transitioning the pupil to full-time in-person instruction

Outreach

Teachers will regularly communicate with parents and guardians regarding a pupil’s academic progress. AERIES "ParentSquare" was
acquired by POUSD specifically to improve our ability to communicate/engage students and their families.

We will regularly discuss as a staff effective ways to motivate students and families.

Students who are not engaged in instruction and are at risk of learning loss will be referred to school site administration who will coordinate
the following:
o Determine the best person to contact the student/family (principal, teacher, counselor, Instructional assistant) in order to make the
best impact
Determine pupil needs including connection with health and social services
Encourage teachers to consistently contact students and families
Focus the site on: Building trust and relationships so our community feeling safe and sharing their families needs
Keeping track of student/family communication on a weekly basis (ex. Parentsquare)

School Nutrition

[A description of how the LEA will provide nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils, including those students who are eligible for free or
reduced-price meals, when pupils are participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.]

In Person

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%%I District Page 14 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#SchoolNutrition

We will provide meals for pupils who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in in-person instruction by..

« “Grab and Go” meals will be delivered to classrooms, outdoors, or in a cafeteria. (Even if food is delivered to classrooms, students
should go outside to eat, so masks can be removed).

o Food carts/kiosks in multiple locations on the campus will aid in safe food distribution. If common areas such as dining halls and
cafeterias are used, students will be safely separated by cohorts while maintaining the social distance standards with proper
disinfection after each use.

« Disposable food service items (e.g., utensils, dishes) will be used as much as possible. If disposable items are not feasible, items
will be handled with gloves and washed with dish soap and hot water or in a dishwasher.

« Divided mealtimes (for breakfast, snack, and lunch) will be implemented by site administrators. Classified staff and teachers will
assist with the monitoring of various eating locations.

« Additional trash/composting containers will be used to accommodate the various eating areas.

Distance Learning (Hybrid/100% Virtual)

We will provide meals for all pupils, including those who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals for pupils participating in distance
learning by..

Hybrid

e Group A (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Mondays and Tuesdays)

« At the end of the instructional day on Tuesdays, Group A students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to
take home
On Wednesdays, students who participate in full-time distance learning will be offered five breakfasts, five lunches, and 10 milks on
a grab-and-go basis. Meals for all students will be distributed to parents between the hours of 11:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. Parents
will be required to remain in their vehicles when picking up meals.
Group B (Grades PK-12 attending classes on-site Thursdays and Fridays)
At the end of the instructional day on Fridays, Group B students will be offered three breakfasts, three lunches, and six milks to take
home.

100% Virtual Learning

o 5 days of breakfast and lunch will be provided on Monday's at Schaefer, Jack London, and Olivet from 10am to 1pm.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%gl District Page 15 of 18



Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows
and actions may be added as necessary]

Section

Mental Health and Social and
Emotional Well-Being

Pupil Engagement and
Outreach

Distance Learning Program
(Supports for Pupils with
Unique Needs)

Description

Additional Counseling Services to Promote Mental Health and
Social/Emotional Wellbeing of Students: COUNSELOR

Improved Communication with EL Students/Families
Northwest Prep Charter School acquired "ParentSquare"” (an
AERIES product) which translates all outgoing and incoming
messages to facilitate effective communication during virtual
learning efforts. This has allowed us to provide significantly
improved support for our Spanish speaking families. The
program was on-boarded in fall 2020, specifically to augment
the Virtual Learning experience of English Learners and to
better support their families.

"Comfort Bags" for Homeless, Foster, Low Income Students
40 duffel bags were made available for homeless, foster, low
income and struggling students. Distributed the first week of
September 2020 out of Schaefer Elementary, these bags
contained toiletries (shampoo, soap, toothbrush and
toothpaste), a blanket, books, games/puzzles, coloring books
and stuffed animals/toys.

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%@I District

Total Funds
5,500

675

500

Contributing

No

No

No

Page 16 of 18


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#AdditionalActions

Section Description Total Funds Contributing

Distance Learning Program | Materials and equipment for teachers to work effectively in 5,800 No
Virtual Learning

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students

Increased Apportionment based on the Enroliment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students

9.49% 87,475

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services

Required Descriptions

[For the actions being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in
meeting the needs of these students.]

Chromebooks, iPads, Hotspots (as needed) have been provided to unduplicated students and foster youth for use at home during virtual
learning in a COVID context. In order to communicate more effectively with our Spanish speaking students and families, Parentsquare was
acquired. Fountas & Pinnell intervention program was purchased to help us bridge the learning loss that is likely happening because of the
impact of the pandemic on student learning.

[A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage
required.]

Outreach Worker (Bilingual Spanish), AERIES "ParentSquare", Use of Program Assistance for outreach, Hotspots, free Wifi resources,
Fountas & Pinnell intervention program

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%ZI District Page 17 of 18



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#IncreasedorImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/20LCP/Instructions/20LCPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions

2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union S%%gl District Page 18 of 18



10.

11.

PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
3450 COFFEY LANE
SANTA ROSA, CA 95403
REGULAR MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES
August 12, 2020

CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 6:00 p.m.,
Wednesday, August 12, 2020, conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 865 7939-8583. President, Cindy Pryor,
presided.

ROLL CALL

Governing Board Staff

Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT Dr. Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent and
Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT Secretary to the Board

Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official (CBO)
Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary

John Way, Member PRESENT

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
There were none

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION
The meeting adjourned to closed session at 6:04 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION
5.1  With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957:
5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT-EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT
Title: Superintendent, Teacher, Personnel Tech
5.2 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6:
5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau
Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate
5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau
Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate
5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau
Name of organization representing employees: Confidential, Supervisory, Administrative Staff

RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
The meeting reconvened to Open Session at 7:04 p.m.

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
Ms. Pryor commented that during Closed Session the Board took action on items that will be ratified later in the meeting.

AGENDA MODIFICATIONS
Mr. Way moved Consent Item 17.11 to Action Item 16.15.

COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
Certificated employee Ms. Tracy Henry thanked the Board for their hard work finding our new Superintendent, Dr. Steve
Charbonneau and for keeping the Director of Innovative Learning position.

COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD

Ms. Pryor was excited to welcome Dr. Charbonneau as the new superintendent. She commented that filing for the Board
vacancies deadline has closed and there were two candidates that filed (Mindy Mohr and Tony Roerick) so there will not
be an election. Ms. Hinton congratulated Ms. Mohr and Mr. Roehrick. Ms. Pryor commented that Mr. Way has a couple
of months left as a Board member, but she wanted to take this time to thank Mr. Way for being part of the team. Ms.
Hinton thanked Mr. Way for making her look at things in another way. Mr. Way commented on his experience while
serving on the Board and shared his reasons for not seeking another term. Ms. Mohr commented that she is excited to
serve on the Board for another term. Ms. Hinton commented that the Board has not selected a date to reopen schools. She
commented that the Board will need to reassess the safety of students and staff and there is a lot of work to be done before
making that decision.

RECOGNITION OF SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT
There were none.

259



Regular Meeting — Governing Board
August 12, 2020

Page 2

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

121 Announcements

Dr. Charbonneau commented that he appreciates the warm welcome he received and that he is happy to be here. He
thanked the classified and certificated staff for working so diligently during this difficult time. He commented on the new
student information system (Aeries) and the challenges going live. He thanked Dr. Rasori and staff for all of their hard
work over the summer to make the transition from Illuminate to Aeries successful.

12.2 Curriculum
There were none.

12.3 Maintenance, Grounds and Operations
There were none.

12.4 Enrollment

Mr. Way asked for clarification regarding enroliment on the new reports in the Board Packet. Dr. Charbonneau
commented that the new vendor (Aeries) did a data transfer and the staff are working on the data gaps.
Enrollment was reported as 944 for the K-6 program, 201 for POCS and 111 for NWP.

ASSOCIATION REPORTS

13.1 POEA

Ms. Zavala thanked the certificated staff members for all their hard work to get ready for the start of the school year. She
gave the Heart of Excellence Award to the bargaining team. She thanked the district for collaboratively agreeing to the
terms of the MOU.

13.2 POCA
Ms. Tunheim thanked the classified members and the negotiation team for all of their hard work. She asked the Board for
guidance on information they would like her to report out on during Virtual Learning.

BOARD POLICIES
There were none.

DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS
There were none.

ACTION ITEMS

16.1 Ratification of Closed Session of Superintendent Employment Agreement

Ms. Pryor announced that the Board voted unanimously to approve the Superintendent Employment Agreement with the
annual base salary for 2020-2021 school year is one hundred eighty thousand dollars ($180,000) prorated to one hundred
and sixty-five thousand dollars ($165,000) based upon the August 1, 2020, commencement date. Health Benefits on the
same terms and conditions as other full-time certificated employees, Higher Education Pay for a master’s degrees in the
sum of eleven hundred dollars ($1,100) per year and a doctorate degree in the sum of eleven hundred dollars ($ 1,100).
Ms. Hinton moved to ratify the closed session action of the Superintendent Employment Agreement, seconded by Ms.
Franicevic.

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.2 Approval of Addendum to the Director of Innovative Learning Employment Agreement

Mr. Way made a statement to the Board members regarding contracts and ratification process.

Ms. Franicevic moved to approve addendum to the Director of Innovative Learning Employment Agreement, seconded
by Ms. Hinton.

Roll call vote. Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- nay

16.3  Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Olivet Families

The Board thanked all of the school-connected organization volunteers.

Olivet Families was approved as a School-Connected Organization on the motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Ms.
Franicevic, all aye.

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

260



Regular Meeting — Governing Board
August 12, 2020

Page 3

16.4  Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Piner-Olivet Charter Parent Club

Mr. Way commented that the Dissolution document does not state that the assets/funds revert to POEF and that it is
determined by a court. Ms. Hatfield commented that she would make the changes needed.

Piner-Olivet Charter Parent Club was approved on the motion of Ms. Mohr, seconded by Ms. Hinton, all aye

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.5  Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Jack London Families
Jack London Families as a School-Connected Organization was tabled to a future Board meeting so a representative
could be available to answer questions.

16.6 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Schaefer Families

Schaefer Families was approved as a School-Connected Organization on the motion of Ms. Franicevic, seconded by Mr.
Way, all aye.

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.7 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Piner-Olivet Educational Foundation
Piner-Olivet Educational Foundation as a School-Connected Organization was approved on the motion of Mr. Way,
seconded by Ms. Mohr, all aye.

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.8 Approval of Resolution # 537 Regarding the Education Protection Account (EPA)

Resolution # 537 Regarding the Education Protection Account (EPA) was approved as presented on the motion of Ms.
Hinton, seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye.

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.9 Approval of Resolution # 538 Regarding Rescission of Elimination or Reduction of Certain Classified Services
Resolution # 538 Regarding Rescission of Elimination or Reduction of Certain Classified Services was approved as
presented on the motion of Ms. Franicevic, seconded by Ms. Hinton, all aye.

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.10 _Approval of Resolution # 539 Declaring Instructional Method for 2020-2021 School Year
Resolution # 539 Declaring Instructional Method for 2020-2021 was approved as presented on the motion
of Ms. Franicevic, seconded by Mr. Way, all aye.

Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.11  Ratification of Closed Session Action between the District and Piner-Olivet Classified Association Regarding
Return Impact and Effects on the CSEA Bargaining Unit MOU

Ms. Pryor opened public comments. There were none. Mr. Way moved to ratify Closed Session action between the
District and Piner-Olivet Classified Association Regarding Return Impact and Effects on the CSEA Bargaining Unit
MOU, seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye.

Roll call vote. Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.12  Ratification of Closed Session Action between the District and Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association Regarding
the COVID -19 Pandemic and School Reopening During the 2020-2021 School Year MOU

Ms. Pryor opened for public comments. Mr. Potter commented that he appreciated working with members of the Board
and other members of the negotiating team. Ms. Pryor commented that the Board voted unanimously in closed session.
Ms. Franicevic moved to ratify Closed Session Action between the District and Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association
Regarding the COVID-19 Pandemic and School Reopening during the 2020-2021 School Year MOU, seconded by Ms.
Hinton.

Roll call vote. Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.13 _Approval of the 2020-2021 Revised Budget for Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School,
Schaefer Charter School, Piner-Olivet Charter School, and Northwest Prep Charter School

Highlights of the 2020-2021 Revised Budget were reviewed. Approval of the 2020-2021 Revised Budget for Piner-Olivet
Union School District, Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter School, Piner-Olivet Union School District, Piner-Olivet
Charter School, and Northwest Prep Charter School was approved as presented on the motion of Mr. Way, seconded by
Ms. Mohr, all aye.

Roll call vote. Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

261



Regular Meeting — Governing Board
August 12, 2020

Page 4

17.

19.
20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

16.14  Approval of Declaration of Surplus Property with a Value of Less than $2,500

Approval of Declaration of surplus property with a value of less than $2,500 was approved on the motion of Ms. Hinton,
seconded by, Mr. Way, all aye.

Roll call vote. Ms. Franicevic — aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- aye

16.15 Approval of MOU between Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools and the Local Educational Agency for
the North Coast Teacher Induction Program, Participating County Offices of Education, and Participating School Districts
and Employing Commences on July 1, 2020 and terminates on June 30, 2021

Mr. Way asked if we needed to employ an Executive Director as part of our responsibilities to the MOU. Ms. Koha
commented that Ms. Harris is the District coordinator for the program.

CONSENT ITEMS
The following consent items (except consent 17.6) were approved on the motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Ms. Mohr,
all aye.

17.1 The minutes of the regular Board meeting of June 17, 2020,

17.2 The minutes of the special Board meeting of June 29, 2020,

17.3 The minutes of the special Board meeting of July 7, 2020,

17.4 The minutes of the special Board meeting of July10, 2020,

17.5 The minutes of the special Board meeting of July 15, 2020,

17.6 The minutes of the special Board meeting of July 29, 2020,

17.7 The minutes of the special Board meeting of July 30, 2020,

17.8 The Personnel Action Report,

17.9  The vendor warrants,

17.10  The routine budget updates,

17.11 OU-betw g

Commences-on-July-1. 2020 to-June-30. 2020-Moved to Action item 16.15
1712 The Williams Settlement Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary Reporting Period from April 1, 2020 to
June 30, 2020,

ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The next regular board meeting was scheduled for Wednesday, September 9, 2020.
Special Governing Board meeting was scheduled for September 2, 2020 from 4:00 pm. to 6:00 pm.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
There was no Closed Session.

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION
There was no Closed Session.

RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
There was no Closed Session.

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA
There was no Closed Session.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dr. Steve Charbonneau
Secretary to the Board

APPROVED:

Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board

262



Piner-Olivet Union School District

TO: Board of Trustees

PERSONNEL ACTION REPORT
Meeting of: September 9, 2020

Type of Information Additional
Name Assignment Salary Funding Source Effective Appointment Assignment Recommendation Cost To Budget
Jordan Zavala Teacher Step 1, AB+30 General Ed August 10, 2020 New Hire NWP Acknowledge 0
Birhana Habtemariam Personnel Tech Step 4 General Ed October 6, 2020 from Acct. Tech to Pers. Tech.  District Acknowledge 0
Maria Gambino Castro Outreach Worker Step 4 General Ed September 8, 2020  New Hire Schaefer/NWP Acknowledge 0
Donna LaTourelle PAli/Yd Dty Step 4 General Ed September 1, 2020  Resignation Jack London Acknowledge 0

209




VENDOR
WARRANTS



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
1796395 08/06/2020 Office Depot 04-4350 Open PO for Office Supplies - Olivet 70.16
2019/20
04-4390 VARIDESK Stadning Dest for A. Moore
09-4311 Open PO for Classroom Supplies- NWP 143.00
2019/20
09-4350 Open PO for Office Supplies- NWP 2019/20 86.59 299.75
1796396 08/06/2020 Fishman Supply 01-4370 Annual Custodial 292.84
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH
Annual Custodial 17.37
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH 18-19
CM All stites. Summer cleaning supplies 133.77-
JI portion machine 527.23
04-4370 Annual Custodial 234.27
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH
Annual Custodial 13.90
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH 18-19
CM All stites. Summer cleaning supplies 107.01-
05-4370 Annual Custodial 234.27
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH
Annual Custodial 574.35-
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH 18-19
CM All stites. Summer cleaning supplies 107.01-
09-4370 Annual Custodial 82.00
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH
Annual Custodial 4.86
Supplies-JL,NWP/VC,OIvt,SCH 18-19
CM All stites. Summer cleaning supplies 37.45- 44715
1796397 08/06/2020 Ressegue, Amanda M 01-5880 Reimb. Livescan services 25.00
1796398 08/06/2020 Becoming Independent 01-5880 Shredding Services 20/21 90.00
1796399 08/06/2020 Esp & Alarm Inc 01-5880 Alarm Monitoring 2020/21 234.00
1796400 08/06/2020 Frontline Tech Group Inc 01-5830 Frontline Implementation 1,960.00
04-5830 Frontline Implementation 800.00
05-5830 Frontline Implementation 880.00
09-5830 Frontline Implementation 360.00 4,000.00
1796401 08/06/2020 Horizon 01-4380 Grounds Supplies 2020/21 520.63
JL/POCS Sprinkler repair supplies 15.72 536.35
1796402 08/06/2020 International Acdmy of Science 01-4340 acellus student master license 5,000.00
09-4340 acellus student master license 3,000.00 8,000.00
1796403 08/06/2020 NutriKids - Heartland Pymt Sys 13-9510 NutriKids EQY process 450.00
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the m
preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 7

043 - Piner-Olivet Union Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

265 2020 9:11AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
1796404 08/06/2020 Rector Plumbing 01-5630 Labor and parts for Services @ JL/POCS 3,030.00
1796405 08/06/2020 Shell Wex Bank 01-4362 Fuel for trucks 2020/21 451.45
1796406 08/06/2020 USA Clean, Inc 01-4370 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 198.21
01-4400 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 6,202.00
04-4370 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 198.21
04-4400 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 6,202.38
05-4370 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 198.21
05-4400 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 6,202.00
09-4370 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 198.21
09-4400 Supplies - COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 6,202.00
Unpaid Sales Tax 540.21- 25,061.01
1796407 08/06/2020 Anova Center of Education 01-5810 SPED/ NPS 2019/20 - CC 4,525.26
SPED/ NPS 2019/20 - LJ 4,407.12
SPED/ NPS 2019/20 - TS 4,485.88 13,418.26
1796408 08/06/2020 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 33.59
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
01-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 12,744.53
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
04-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 62.82
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
04-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 184.18
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
05-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 266.23
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
05-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 17,451.10
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
09-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 18.08
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
09-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 4,766.60 35,527.13
Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH
1797260 08/13/2020 Aeries Software, Inc. dba Eagle Software 01-5840 Aeries District Wide 2020/21 3,199.56
04-5840 Aeries District Wide 2020/21 3,937.92
05-5840 Aeries District Wide 2020/21 4,060.98
09-5840 Aeries District Wide 2020/21 1,107.54 12,306.00
1797261 08/13/2020 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 01-5830 Well Water Testing - 2020-21 NWP 53.30
09-5830 Well Water Testing - 2020-21 NWP 28.70 82.00
1797262 08/13/2020 AT&T 01-5900 Calnet3 Billing / AT&T 148.99
1797263 08/13/2020 Valley Comfort Heating & Air 01-5630 Filter Replacement 2020/21 1,647.20
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the m
preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 7

043 - Piner-Olivet Union Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

266 2020 9:11AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
1797263 08/13/2020 Valley Comfort Heating & Air 09-5630 Filter Replacement 2020/21 177.39 1,824.59
1797264 08/13/2020 Interstate Batteries 01-4380 Olivet Tractor Bat. Replacement 144.58
Schaefer Bat. 54.94 199.52
1797265 08/13/2020 Kelly Moore Paint Co 01-4400 NWP Pressure Washer 1,107.97
1797266 08/13/2020 PACE Supply Corp. 01-4380 NWP repair supplies 52.24
09-4380 NWP repair supplies 28.13 80.37
1797267 08/13/2020 Redwood Vacuum & Janitorial 01-4370 District Wide repair supplies 21.92
04-4370 District Wide repair supplies 17.53
05-4370 District Wide repair supplies 17.53
09-4370 District Wide repair supplies 6.13 63.11
1797268 08/13/2020 Reliable Hardware & Steel 01-4370 Open PO for Custodial Parts & Serivces 48.85
2020/21
1797269 08/13/2020 School Services Of Ca Inc 01-5830 School Services Fiscal Budget Services - 3,840.00
20/21
1798129 08/20/2020 Henry, Tracy L 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798130 08/20/2020 Janssen lII, William H 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798131 08/20/2020 Forrest, Carrie L 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798132 08/20/2020 Seliga, Karie 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798133 08/20/2020 Bickel, Gregory W 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798134 08/20/2020 Walker, Monique T 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 150.00
1798135 08/20/2020 Garlock, Lynn P 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798136 08/20/2020 Napoleon, Adam W 09-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade .4 FTE 160.00
1798137 08/20/2020 Beck, Terry D 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 200.00
1798138 08/20/2020 Gutting, Monica T 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798139 08/20/2020 Holmes, Melissa E 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798140 08/20/2020 Miller, Holly A 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798141 08/20/2020 Rankin, Gregory A 05-4313 Red Folder 2019/20 400.00
1798142 08/20/2020 Lewis, Tiffany A 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 150.00
1798143 08/20/2020 Nguyen-Kramer, Trang 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Combo 600.00
1798144 08/20/2020 Schuler, Sharon D 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798145 08/20/2020 Gallagher, Pamela S 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798146 08/20/2020 Dyer, Wendla J 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798147 08/20/2020 Guillen Zavala, Liana M 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798148 08/20/2020 Rostel, Drue E 05-4313 Red Folder 2019/20 300.00
1798149 08/20/2020 Potter, Jack A 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798150 08/20/2020 Zeman, Julie 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798151 08/20/2020 Gregorio, Amy E 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798152 08/20/2020 Brian, Susan 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Combo 600.00
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the m
preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 7

043 - Piner-Olivet Union Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

267 2020 9:11AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
1798153 08/20/2020 Hart, William L 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798154 08/20/2020 Dreitzler, Jeffrey M 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798155 08/20/2020 Hergert, Nicole B 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798156 08/20/2020 Lecave, Donna 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 .5 FTE 150.00
1798157 08/20/2020 Martin, Tawnya E 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798158 08/20/2020 Shiffman, Charlotte M 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade Combo 800.00
1798159 08/20/2020 Dossat, Alyssa 09-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade .6 FTE 240.00
1798160 08/20/2020 Jacob, James 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798161 08/20/2020 Ortlinghaus, Erin 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 .5 FTE 120.00

04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 .5 FTE 30.00 150.00
1798162 08/20/2020 True, Amelia 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 .5 FTE 150.00
1798163 08/20/2020 Consani, Briana C 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798164 08/20/2020 McCorkell, Laura M 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798165 08/20/2020 Rinkor, Megan 05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798166 08/20/2020 Marquardt, Heather 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798167 08/20/2020 Edmondson, Bradley 09-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798168 08/20/2020 Belfils, Erin 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798169 08/20/2020 Ross, Brittany K 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 80.00

05-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 320.00 400.00
1798170 08/20/2020 Doughty, Daniela 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798171 08/20/2020 Sorentino, Francis 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798172 08/20/2020 Powers, Sarah E 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798173 08/20/2020 Tait, Heather G 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798174 08/20/2020 Dolan, Katie A 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798175 08/20/2020 Shroyer, Joshua 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798176 08/20/2020 Zavala, Jordan 09-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798177 08/20/2020 Bowman, Chelsea R 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 .5 FTE 150.00
1798178 08/20/2020 Boone, Stephanie L 09-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798179 08/20/2020 Jhaveri, Saloni 09-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798180 08/20/2020 Green, Jenna 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 300.00
1798181 08/20/2020 Volmerding, Susan R 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798182 08/20/2020 Ogzbirn, Jessica L 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 320.00
1798183 08/20/2020 Zepeda, Jessica M 01-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798184 08/20/2020 Ressegue, Amanda M 04-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade Combo 800.00
1798185 08/20/2020 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 01-5830 Well Water Testing - 2020/21 Olivet 82.00
1798186 08/20/2020 AT&T 01-5900 Calnet3 Billing / AT&T 1,209.25
1798187 08/20/2020 California's Valued Trust 01-9574 Coverage for August 2020 9,378.75

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the m
preceding Checks be approved. Page 4 of 7

043 - Piner-Olivet Union Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

268 2020 9:11AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
1798187 08/20/2020 California's Valued Trust 01-9575 Coverage for August 2020 2,804.78 12,183.53
1798188 08/20/2020 City of Santa Rosa Alarm Prgrm 01-5880 False Burglary Alarm Fee 02/23/2020 1,000.00
1798189 08/20/2020 City Of Santa Rosa 01-5530 City Water Acct# 021026 2020/21 -JL 1,372.95
1798190 08/20/2020 Frontline Tech Group Inc 01-5830 Frontline Time & Attendance 2,023.77
04-5830 Frontline Time & Attendance 826.03
05-5830 Frontline Time & Attendance 908.63
09-5830 Frontline Time & Attendance 371.71 4,130.14
1798191 08/20/2020 Office Depot 01-4350 Open PO for District Office Supplies - 94.84
2020-21
1798192 08/20/2020 Redwood Vacuum & Janitorial 01-4370 NWP Repair supplies 6.72
09-4370 NWP Repair supplies 3.62 10.34
1798193 08/20/2020 Starfall Education Foundation 01-4340 Software renewal JL, Olivet Schaefer 270.00
04-4340 Software renewal JL, Olivet Schaefer 270.00
05-4340 Software renewal JL, Olivet Schaefer 270.00 810.00
1798194 08/20/2020 The Standard Insurance Co. 01-9576 Coverage for August 2020 22411
1798195 08/20/2020 WeVideo 09-4340 audio visual program 419.00
1799164 08/27/2020 KYOCERA Document Solutions Northern California, Inc 01-5632 Copier Maintenance Contract - D.O 301.10
01-9510 Copier Maintenance Contract 438.12
-JL/POCS-Staff Rm
Copier Maintenance Contract-NWP/Piner 261.89
Staff Rm
04-9510 Copier Maintenance Contract -Olivet-Staff 33.01
Rm
Copier Maintenance Contract-Olivet Office 360.93
05-9510 Copier Maintenance Contract 303.00
-Schaefer-Staff Rm
Copier Maintenance Contract-Schaefer 351.08
Office
09-9510 Copier Maintenance Contract-NWP/Piner 141.02 2,190.15
Staff Rm
1799165 08/27/2020 McPherson & Jacobson, LLC 01-5830 Superintendent search contract 2,246.34
01-9510 Superintendent search contract 5,250.00 7,496.34
1799166 08/27/2020 Becoming Independent 01-5880 Shredding Services 20/21 50.00
1799167 08/27/2020 Bill's Lock & Safe Service 01-4380 SCH -Rekey and labor charges 101.92
01-5630 SCH -Rekey and labor charges 315.00 416.92
1799168 08/27/2020 Business Card 01-4400 COVID19 Sneeze Guards 3qty for District 735.75
Office
01-5880 Bareavement Princ. Parent 10.88
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the m
preceding Checks be approved. Page 5 of 7

043 - Piner-Olivet Union Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

269 2020 9:11AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
1799168 08/27/2020 Business Card 01-5880 Office Supplies 38.14
01-5890 Annual Fee 2020 40.00 824.77
1799169 08/27/2020 BWS Distributors Inc 01-4370 NWP Custodial supplies 37.38
09-4370 NWP Custodial supplies 20.12 57.50
1799170 08/27/2020 City of Santa Rosa Alarm Prgrm 01-5880 Alarm Permit Renewal Charges 15.00
1799171 08/27/2020 City Of Santa Rosa 01-5530 City Water Acct# 021026 2020/21 -JL 1,034.77
City Water Acct# 023537 2020/21 - NWP 334.10
09-5530 City Water Acct# 023537 2020/21 - NWP 179.90 1,548.77
1799172 08/27/2020 Co of Sonoma Dept of Health Services 13-5800 JL-Food Processing Kitchen(2ins/yr) & 1,373.00
Stormwater
NWP-Food Satellite(2ins/yr) & Stormwater 936.00
Olivet-Food Satellite(2ins/yr) 872.00
SCH-Food Processing Kitchen(2ins/yr) & 1,373.00 4,554.00
Stormwater
1799173 08/27/2020 Energy Endeavors dba Westcoast Solar Energy 14-5630 SCH -Repair Solar Panals 23,500.00
1799174 08/27/2020 Horizon 01-4380 JL -Irrigation/field repair supplies 760.28
1799175 08/27/2020 Kelly Moore Paint Co 01-4380 SCH -New Pressure Washer 1,107.97
1799176 08/27/2020 Kenwood Lumber & Hardware 01-4380 2020/21 Open PO all sites 29.42
1799177 08/27/2020 Mead Clark 01-4380 Hose and nozzle for Olivet 56.16
1799178 08/27/2020 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5510 Acct #8210388297-1 - Jack London 80% & 54.75
POCS 20%
01-5520 Acct #8210388297-1 - Jack London 80% & 21.39 76.14
POCS 20%
1799179 08/27/2020 Recology Sonoma Marin 01-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 20/21 all site 476.57
04-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 20/21 all site 275.38
05-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 20/21 all site 252.83
09-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 20/21 all site 96.37 1,101.15
1799180 08/27/2020 Weeks Drilling & Pump Co Inc 01-5630 NWP Water System Service 231.45
Olivet Water System Service 360.79
09-5630 NWP Water System Service 124.63 716.87
Total Number of Checks 108 196,829.10

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

01 General Fund 68 95,492.95

04 Olivet Charter School 26 18,009.71
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the m
preceding Checks be approved. Page 6 of 7

043 - Piner-Olivet Union Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

270 2020 9:11AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
Fund Summary
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
05 Schaefer Charter School 26 35,834.50
09 Charter School Fund 25 19,528.15
13 Cafeteria 2 5,004.00
14 Deferred Maintenance Fund 1 23,500.00
Total Number of Checks 108 197,369.31
Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability 540.21
Net (Check Amount) 196,829.10
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the ESCAPE
preceding Checks be approved. Page 7 of 7

Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

043 - Piner-Olivet Union
271 2020 9:11AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
1796409 08/06/2020 Horizon 03-4380 Open Grounds PO 2020/21 108.15
1796410 08/06/2020 Rector Plumbing 03-5630 Labor and parts for Services @ JL/POCS 2,020.00
1796411 08/06/2020 USA Clean, Inc 03-4370 COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 198.21
03-4400 COVID 19 Cleaning Supplies 1,629.55
Unpaid Sales Tax 38.57- 1,789.19

1797270 08/13/2020 Aeries Software, Inc. dba Eagle Software 03-5840 Aeries District Wide 2020/21 2,344.00
1797271 08/13/2020 Redwood Vacuum & Janitorial 03-4370 Open PO for Custodial Parts & Services 7.01

2020/21
1797272 08/13/2020 Reliable Hardware & Steel 03-4380 POCS portion of Supplies and services 32.56

2020/21
1797273 08/13/2020 Valley Comfort Heating & Air 03-4380 Filter Replacement 2020/21 202.73
1798196 08/20/2020 Strasser, Jules A 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798197 08/20/2020 Meyer, Allison N 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798198 08/20/2020 Worstell, Jen J 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798199 08/20/2020 Berry, Deborah A 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798200 08/20/2020 McDonough, Janet M 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798201 08/20/2020 Pitchford, Robert 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798202 08/20/2020 Brandenburg, Jessica A 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798203 08/20/2020 Finnegan, Alex 03-4313 Red Folder 2020/21 Upper Grade 400.00
1798204 08/20/2020 City Of Santa Rosa 03-5530 City Water Acct# 021026 277.80
1799181 08/27/2020 KYOCERA Document Solutions 03-9510 2019/20 Supplies for Riso Machine 35.09

Copier/Riso Maint-Instr Program 256.99 292.08
1799182 08/27/2020 City Of Santa Rosa 03-5530 City Water Acct# 021026 689.85
1799183 08/27/2020 Horizon 03-4380 Irrigation/field repair supplies 506.85
1799184 08/27/2020 Pacific Gas & Electric 03-5510 8775983334-3 & 20% of 88297-1 Gas & 21.63

Electric Chgs

03-5520 8775983334-3 & 20% of 88297-1 Gas & 393.15 414.78

Electric Chgs

1799185 08/27/2020 Recology Sonoma Marin 03-5560 POCS Portion of Waste 20/21 122.58
Total Number of Checks 21 12,007.58

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
03 General Fund/charter School 21 12,046.15
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the ESCAPE
preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

044 - Piner-Olivet Charter School Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

272 2020 9:08AM



ReqPay12c Board Report

Checks Dated 08/01/2020 through 08/31/2020

Check Check Expensed Check
Number Date Pay to the Order of Fund-Object Comment Amount Amount
Total Number of Checks 21 12,046.15
Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability 38.57
Net (Check Amount) 12,007.58
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the ESCAPE
preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

044 - Piner-Olivet Charter School Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Sep 4

273 2020 9:08AM



BUDGET UPDATES



Ledger06a Transfer of Budget Appropriations
Account Description From To
JE # BR20-00237 JE Trans Date 06/30/2020 JE Posted 09/05/2020 Comment Fund 09 OB 1-8 YEC
09-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-000-0000 Teachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required CR 54,006.00
09-1400-0-1110-1000-1100-000-0000 Teachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required DR 44,892.00
09- 7690- 0- 0000-2700-3101-000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required CR 8,642.00
09-7690-0-1110-1000-3101-000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required CR 12,687.00
09-7690-0-1110-3110-3101-000- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Guidance & Coun,Regular Educati,Not Required CR 5,635.00
09- 0000- 0-0000-2700-5450-000- 0000 Other Insurance,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required CR 4,384.00
09-0000-0-0000-2700-5830-000-FI SC Professional/co,School Administ,Undistributed,Fiscal Svs CR 5,077.00
09- 0000- 0- 0000-2700- 5830- 000- HRPY Professional/co,School Administ,Undistributed,HR/Payroll CR 10,707.00
09-0000-0-1110-1000-5830-000- HS00 Professional/co,Instruction,Regular Educati,Homestudy CR 15,013.00
09-0000- 0-0000-0000-8011-000-0000 Revenue Limit S,Unrestricted/no DR 35,604.00
09-7690- 0- 0000- 0000-8590-000- 0000 All Other State,STRS On-Behalf DR 26,964.00
Net increase to Appropriations 44,892.00 178,719.00
JE # BR20-00238 JE Trans Date 06/30/2020 JE Posted 09/05/2020 Comment Fund 05 OB YEC
05-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-000- 0000 Teachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required CR 87,677.00
05-1400-0-1110-1000-1100-000-0000 Teachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required DR 41,266.00
Net increase to Appropriations 41,266.00 87,677.00
JE # BR20-00239 JE Trans Date 06/30/2020 JE Posted 09/05/2020 Comment Fund 04 OB YEC
04-0000-0-1110-1000-1100-000-0000 Teachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required CR 93,483.00
04-1400-0-1110-1000-1100-000-0000 Teachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required DR 39,645.00
04-0000-0-1110-1000-1149-000-BG01 Teacher Substit,Instruction,Regular Educati,Base Grnt-G1 CR 4,490.00
04- 0000- 0- 0000-8210-2200- 000- 0000 Classified Supp,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required CR 5,136.00
04-0000-0-0000-2700-2400-000-0000 Clerical & Offi,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required CR 2,724.00
04-0000-0-1110-1000-2140- 000- SUBR Instr Aides - S,Instruction,Regular Educati,Sub regular CR 3,567.00
04-0000-0-1570-1000-2100-000- SG03 Instructional A, Instruction,Reading,Supp Grnt-G3 CR 5,028.00
04-1100-0-0000-3140-2200-000-0000 Classified Supp,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required CR 5,032.00
Net increase to Appropriations 39,645.00 119,460.00
JE # BR20-00240 JE Trans Date 06/30/2020 JE Posted 09/05/2020 Comment Fund 01 OB YEC
01-7690-0-0000-2700-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required CR 48,203.00
01-7690-0-0000-3110-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Guidance & Coun,Undistributed,Not Required CR 5,770.00
01-7690-0-0000-3140-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required CR 1,240.00
01-7690- 0- 0000-7150-3101-600- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Superintendent,Undistributed,Not Required CR 19,307.00
01-7690-0-1110-2100-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Supervision Of,Regular Educati,Not Required CR 12,977.00
01-7690-0-3300-1000-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Instruction,Independent Stu,Not Required CR 18,678.00

Selection  Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 8/11/2020, Ending Post Date = 9/8/2020,
Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N)
043 - Piner-Olivet Union
2057,

ESCAPE
Page 1 of 2

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Sep 8 2020 12:46PM



Ledger06a Transfer of Budget Appropriations

Effective 06/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2020

Account Description From To
(continued) JE # BR20-00240 JE Trans Date 06/30/2020 JE Posted 09/05/2020 Comment Fund 01 OB YEC

01-7690-0-5770-1110-3101-600- 0000 Benefits - Strs,Spec Ed-separat,Spec Ed - K-12,Not Required CR 5,928.00
01-7690-0-5770-1120-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Spec Ed-resourc,Spec Ed - K-12,Not Required CR 13,914.00
01-7690-0-5770-2100-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Supervision Of,Spec Ed - K-12,Not Required CR 13,659.00
01-7690-0-5770-3120-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Psychological S,Spec Ed - K-12,Not Required CR 11,007.00
01-7690-0-0000-2100-3101-600-0000 Benefits - Strs,Supervision Of,Undistributed,Not Required CR 3,415.00
01-0000-0-1110-1000-4110-600-7156 Textbooks,Instruction,Regular Educati,IMFRP CR 67,490.00
01-0000-0-0000-8500-6200-600-0000 Bldgs & Improve,Facilities Acqu,Undistributed,Not Required CR 39,901.00
01-0000- 0- 0000- 0000-8011-000- DBAS Revenue Limit S,Unrestricted/no DR 637,973.00
01-0000- 0- 0000- 0000-8041-000-0000 Secured Tax Rol,Unrestricted/no DR 101,614.00
01-0000- 0- 0000- 0000-8677-000-0000 Interagency Svc,Unrestricted/no DR 242,596.00
01-7690-0-0000-0000-8590-000- 0000 All Other State,STRS On-Behalf DR 118,505.00
01-0000- 0- 0000- 0000-8660-000-0000 Interest,Unrestricted/no DR 48,499.00
01-5310-0-0000-0000-8980-000- 0000 Contribute From,Child Nutrition DR 54,066.00
01-6500-0-5001-0000-8792-000- 0000 Trans Of Apport,Special Educati DR 25,651.00
Net increase to Appropriations .00 1,490,393.00

Total for Org 043 125,803.00 1,876,249.00

Org 043 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 832,498.00 Net increase to Appropriations

Selection  Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 8/11/2020, Ending Post Date = 9/8/2020, ESCAPE
Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 2 of 2
043 - Piner-Olivet Union Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Sep 8 2020 12:46PM

210672



Ledger06a Transfer of Budget Appropriations

Effective 06/30/2020 Fiscal Year 2020

Account Description From To

JE # BR20-00044 JE Trans Date 06/30/2020 JE Posted 09/05/2020 Comment OB 5xxx YEC
03-0000-0-0000-2700-5830-000- ADWN Professional/co,School Administ,Undistributed,District Admin CR 47,601.00
Net increase to Appropriations .00 47,601.00

JE # BR20-00045 JE Trans Date 06/30/2020 JE Posted 09/05/2020 Comment OB 8xxx YEC
03-0000- 0-0000-0000-8019-000-0000 Revenue Limit S,Unrestricted/no DR 21,664.00
03-0000-0-0000-0000-8096-000-0000 In-lieu Propert,Unrestricted/no DR 37,093.00
03-7690- 0-0000- 0000-8590-000- 0000 All Other State,STRS On-Behalf DR 23,733.00
Net increase to Appropriations .00 82,490.00
Total for Org 044 .00 130,091.00
Org 044 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 34,889.00 Net increase to Appropriations

Selection  Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 44, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 8/11/2020, Ending Post Date = 9/8/2020, ESCAPE
Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 1 of 1
044 - Piner-Olivet Charter School Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Sep 8 2020 12:47PM

20F 74



AGREEMENT FOR CROSSING GUARD SERVICES

This AGREEMENT FOR CROSSING GUARD SERVICES (the “Agreement”) is dated June _ , 2020 and
is between the PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT (hereinafter called the "District"), and ALL
CITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC., a California corporation (hereinafter called the "Contractor").

WITNESSETH

The parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

1.

This Agreement is for a term which commences on or about July 1, 2020 and ends on June 30, 2021
and for such term thereafter as the parties may agree upon.

The Contractor will provide personnel equipped and trained in appropriate procedures for crossing
pedestrians in marked crosswalks. Such personnel shall be herein referred to as a “Crossing Guard”.
Contractor will perform criminal background checks and confirm employment eligibility through E-
Verify on all prospective personnel. The Contractor is an independent contractor and the Crossing
Guards to be furnished by it shall at all times be its employees and not those of the District.

The District’s representative in dealing with the Contractor shall be designated by the Piner-Olivet
Union School District.

The District shall determine the locations where Crossing Guards shall be furnished by the
Contractor. The Contractor shall provide at each designated location personnel properly trained as
herein specified for the performance of duties as a Crossing Guard. The Contractor shall provide
supervisory personnel to see that Crossing Guard activities are taking place at the required places and
times, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

The Contractor shall maintain adequate reserve personnel to be able to furnish alternate Crossing
Guards in the event that any person fails to report for work at the assigned time and location and
agrees to provide immediate replacement.

In the performance of its duties the Contractor and all employees of the Contractor shall conduct
themselves in accordance with the conditions of this Agreement and all applicable laws of the state in
which the Services are to be performed.

Persons provided by the Contractor as Crossing Guards shall be trained in all applicable laws of the

state in which the Services are to be performed pertaining to general pedestrian safety in school
crossing areas.

Crossing Guard Services (the “Services”) shall be provided by the Contractor at the designated
locations on all days in which school is in session in the area under District’s jurisdiction. The

278



10.

11.

Contractor also agrees to maintain communication with the designated schools to maintain proper
scheduling.

The Contractor shall provide all Crossing Guards with apparel by which they are readily visible and
easily recognized as Crossing Guards. Such apparel shall be uniform for all persons performing the
duties of Crossing Guards and shall be worn at all times while performing said duties. This apparel
must be appropriate for weather conditions. The Contractor shall also provide all Crossing Guards
with hand-held Stop signs and any other safety equipment which may be necessary.

The Contractor shall at all times provide workers' compensation insurance covering its employees
and shall provide and maintain liability insurance for Crossing Guard activities. The Contractor will
provide to the District a Certificate of Insurance naming the District and its officials, officers and
employees as additional insureds. Such insurance shall include commercial general liability with a
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and in aggregate for property
damage and bodily injury. Such insurance shall be primary with respect to any insurance maintained
by the District and shall not call on the District's insurance contributions. Such insurance shall be
endorsed for contractual liability and personal injury and shall include the District, its officers, agents
and interest of the District. Such insurance shall not be canceled, reduced in coverage or limits or
non-renewed except after thirty (30) days written notice has been given to the District.

Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, employees, agents
and representatives, from and against any and all actions, claims for damages to persons or property,
penalties, obligations or liabilities (each a “Claim” and collectively, the “Claims™) that may be
asserted or claimed by any person, firm, entity, corporation, political subdivision or other
organization arising out of the sole negligent acts or omissions, or willful misconduct, of Contractor,
its agents, employees, subcontractors, representatives or invitees.

a) Contractor will defend any action or actions filed in connection with any of said claims,
damages, penalties, obligations or liabilities and will pay all costs and expenses including
attorney's fees incurred in connection herewith.

b) In the event the District, its officers, agents or employees is made a party to any action or
proceeding filed or prosecuted against Contractor for such damages or other claims arising out
of or in connection with the sole negligence of Contractor hereunder, Contractor agrees to pay
District, its officers, agents, or employees, any and all costs and expenses incurred by the
District, its officers agents or employees in such action or proceeding, including, but not
limited to, reasonable attorney's fees.

c) In the event that a court determines that liability for any Claim was caused or contributed to
by the negligent act or omission or the willful misconduct of District, liability will be
apportioned between Contractor and District based upon the parties’ respective degrees
of culpability, as determined by the court, and Contractor’s duty to indemnify District
will be limited accordingly.

d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Contractor’s indemnification
obligation to District for Claims under this Agreement will be limited to the maximum
combined aggregate of Contractor’s general liability and umbrella insurance policies in the
amount of $9,000,000 (Nine Million Dollars).

279



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18

Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving sixty (60) days written notice
to the other party.

The Contractor shall not have the right to assign this Agreement to any other person or entity except
with the prior written consent of the District.

The District agrees to pay the Contractor for the Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement the
sum of Twenty-two Dollars and Eighty Cents ($22.80) per hour, per Crossing Guard during the term.
Based on a minimum of three (3) sites and upon a projected (1,890) hours of service the cost shall not
exceed Forty-three Thousand and Ninety-two Dollars ($43,092.00) per year, unless Contractor fails
to perform service.

Payment is due within thirty (30) days of receipt of Contractor’s properly prepared invoice.

Contractor may request a price increase during the term as a result of any legally-mandated increases
in wages or benefits imposed in the state or municipality in which the Services are to be performed
and to which Contractor’s employees would be subject. Contractor shall provide District with 60
days-notice of its request to increase pricing. District agrees to review and respond to said notice
within 30 days of receipt.

The District shall have an option to renew this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is extended
beyond the end of the term set forth above, the compensation and terms for the Services shall be
established by mutual consent of both parties.

This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement among the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior written or oral statements among the
parties, including any prior statements, warranties, or representations. This Agreement is binding
upon and will inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, administrators,
executors, successors, and assigns. Each party hereto agrees that this Agreement will be governed by
the law of the state in which the Services are to be performed, without regard to its conflicts of law
provisions. Any amendments, modifications, or alterations to this Agreement must be in writing and
signed by all parties. There will be no presumption against any party on the ground that such party
was responsible for preparing this Agreement or any part of it. Each provision of this Agreement is
severable from the other provisions. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or
contrary to existing law, the inoperability of that provision will have no effect on the remaining
provisions of the Agreement which will continue in full force and effect.

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE]

280



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year written

below.
DISTRICT CONTRACTOR
Piner-Olivet Union School District All City Management Services, Inc.
By By
Signature D. Farwell, Corporate Secretary
Print Name and Title
Date Date

281



CONTRACT TO PROVIDE NURSING SERVICES/SUPPORT

2020-2021 ANNUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN

PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT and SONOMA COUNTY OFFICE OF

EDUCATION

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL
DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as the DISTRICT) and the SONOMA COUNTY OFFICE OF
EDUCATION (SCOE).

1.

SCOE hereby agrees to release Yvonne Fox, School Nurse, to work for the District at
a .20 FTE, which equates to a total of 36 instructional days.

The period of this agreement will begin August 10, 2020 and end June 30, 2021.
(You may not obligate SCOE beyond June 30 of the current fiscal year.)

Yvonne Fox, a SCOE employee, will serve as a .20 FTE School Nurse to the Piner-
Olivet Union School District, based upon a 180 day instructional work year as
determined by SCOE. Payment for days beyond the SCOE work year will be paid by
the District directly to the employee at the employee’s daily rate. SCOE and District
will collaborate as to the calendaring of work days during the term of this agreement.

SCOE will continue to disperse Yvonne Fox’s full salary and benefits from July 1, 2020
through June 30, 2021. District shall reimburse SCOE for a .20 FTE (36 work days)
of Yvonne Fox’s’s actual salary and benefits, unless this agreement is amended to
reflect a change in the amount. The estimated annual cost is $16,873.30.

Any travel or other expenses incurred by Yvonne Fox as directed and approved by
the District, will be paid by the District directly to Yvonne Fox and will not result in
additional expenses for SCOE.

Any duties assigned to and/or expected of Yvonne Fox, beyond those that constitute
the prearranged agreement with the District, shall not result in any additional cost to
SCOE.

Upon execution, SCOE shall issue one invoice at the end of this agreement. The
invoice will be issued on June 30, 2021 for services provided August 2020 through
June 2020 services. The District will reimburse SCOE promptly upon receipt of
invoice(s). SCOE will mail invoices directly to the District.

Yvonne Fox will not be considered an employee of the District and will not acquire
any of the rights, privileges, powers, or advantages of an employee including,
without limitation, Workers’ Compensation, disability, insurance, health plans,
vacation, or sick leave pay, or any other benefit available to District employees.

282
_Doc ID.a18c2fbb8d6fbd968411457908e78c8c2c3e6cec7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed
by their duly authorized representatives.

SONOMA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL

DISTRICT
(SCOE) (DISTRICT)
By: WLW Z 7 ’ o mm ,,,,,,,,, —
Mary Downey, Deputy Superintendent Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent
08 /13 /2020 g‘fljﬁ, fﬁgg@
Date: Date: i/ /

a7

283
Doc ID: a18c2fbb8d6fbd968411457908e78c8c2c3e6cc?



Sonoma County
Office of Education

5340 Skylane Boulevard
Santa Rosa, CA 95403-8246
(707) 524-2600 m www.scoe.org

August 10, 2020

Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent
Piner-Olivet Union School District
3450 Coffey Lane

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

SCOE Special Education Services
Memorandum of Understanding

This memorandum of understanding confirms that Piner-Olivet Union School District
(District) agrees to reimburse Sonoma County Office of Education (SCOE) Special
Education Services for expenses incurred related to the services as specified below.
SCOE will provide an APE Specialist to the District for the purpose of:

1) Completion of IEP related services for District students.
2) Reports and meeting attendance as necessary.

Estimated number of hours per month: approximately 15 to 20 hours

Services will be provided during the 2020-2021 school year or until the District informs
SCOE services are no longer needed.

The cost for services will be charged on a basis of $135.00 per hour. An invoice will be

issued June 30, 2021 for services provided August 2020 through June 2021. Please
submit a purchase order to SCOE.

Piner-Olivet Union School District

MWM 5//3/2020

Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent Date

Approval by Sonoma County Office of Education

WL“’% @W 08 /13 / 2020

Mary Downey, Deputy Superintendent Date

Steven D. Herrington, Ph.D. ® Superintendent of Schools
Board of Education ® Gina Cudlis, Herman G. Hemandez, Peter Kostas, Andrew Leonard, Lisa Wittke Schaffner

284
-DocD:.a18¢c2tbbh8d6fbd968411457908e78c8c2c3eb6¢c7



	REGULAR MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	Wednesday, September 9, 2020

	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER 2.  ROLL CALL 3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 4.  ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 5.  CLOSED SESSION
	6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
	8.  AGENDA MODIFICATION
	9. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
	10. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
	11.  RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE
	None
	12.  SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
	13.  ASSOCIATION REPORTS
	14.  BOARD POLICIES
	15.  DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS
	16.  ACTION ITEMS
	17.  CONSENT ITEMS
	18.   ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
	19.   DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
	20.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
	21.  RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (If Necessary)
	22.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	23.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA
	24.  ADJOURNMENT

	16.1 a ACTION Jack London Families School Connected Summary.pdf
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	16.2  a ACTION District & Charters Unaudited Actuals - Summary.pdf
	Presented by:  Felicia Koha, CBO
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	16.3 a ACTION Gann Limit - Summary.pdf
	Presented by:  Felicia Koha, CBO
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	16.5 a ACTION Sufficiency of Inst. Materials Res. #Summary.pdf
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	16.5 b ACTION Resolution # 541- Instructional Materials.pdf
	RESOLUTION #541
	RESOLUTION REGARDING TEXTBOOK AND INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS SUFFICIENCY FOR THE PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE 2020-2021 FISCAL YEAR

	ADPEF63.tmp
	Presented by:  Felicia Koha, CBO
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	16.7 b.  Action POUSD_Learning_Continuity.pdf
	Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21)
	General Information
	Stakeholder Engagement
	Continuity of Learning
	In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Distance Learning Program
	Continuity of Instruction
	Access to Devices and Connectivity
	Pupil Participation and Progress
	Distance Learning Professional Development
	Staff Roles and Responsibilities
	Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs
	Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Pupil Learning Loss
	Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]


	Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
	Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
	School Nutrition
	Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Required Descriptions



	16.7 c. Action Schaefer_Learning_Continuity.pdf
	Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21)
	General Information
	Stakeholder Engagement
	Continuity of Learning
	In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Distance Learning Program
	Continuity of Instruction
	Access to Devices and Connectivity
	Pupil Participation and Progress
	Distance Learning Professional Development
	Staff Roles and Responsibilities
	Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs
	Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Pupil Learning Loss
	Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]


	Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
	Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
	School Nutrition
	Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Required Descriptions



	16.7 d. Action Olivet_Learning_Continuity.pdf
	Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21)
	General Information
	Stakeholder Engagement
	Continuity of Learning
	In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Distance Learning Program
	Continuity of Instruction
	Access to Devices and Connectivity
	Pupil Participation and Progress
	Distance Learning Professional Development
	Staff Roles and Responsibilities
	Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs
	Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Pupil Learning Loss
	Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]


	Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
	Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
	School Nutrition
	Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Required Descriptions



	16.7 e Action POCS_Learning_Continuity.pdf
	Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21)
	General Information
	Stakeholder Engagement
	Continuity of Learning
	In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Distance Learning Program
	Continuity of Instruction
	Access to Devices and Connectivity
	Pupil Participation and Progress
	Distance Learning Professional Development
	Staff Roles and Responsibilities
	Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs
	Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Pupil Learning Loss
	Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]


	Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
	Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
	School Nutrition
	Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Required Descriptions



	16.7 f NWP_Learning_Continuity.pdf
	Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Template (2020–21)
	General Information
	Stakeholder Engagement
	Continuity of Learning
	In-Person Instructional Offerings
	Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Distance Learning Program
	Continuity of Instruction
	Access to Devices and Connectivity
	Pupil Participation and Progress
	Distance Learning Professional Development
	Staff Roles and Responsibilities
	Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs
	Actions related to the Distance Learning Program [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]

	Pupil Learning Loss
	Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Effectiveness of Implemented Pupil Learning Loss Strategies
	Actions to Address Pupil Learning Loss [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]


	Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being
	Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach
	School Nutrition
	Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan [additional rows and actions may be added as necessary]
	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Required Descriptions



	18.1 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 8-12-2020.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	17. 3 b. CONSENT  Vendor ReqPay12c POUSD Aug 2020.pdf
	ReqPay12c POUSD Aug 2020
	Board Report
	1
	1796395
	1796396
	1796397
	1796398
	1796399
	1796400
	1796401
	1796402
	1796403
	1796404
	1796405
	1796406
	1796407
	1796408
	1797260
	1797261
	1797262
	1797263
	1797264
	1797265
	1797266
	1797267
	1797268
	1797269
	1798129
	1798130
	1798131
	1798132
	1798133
	1798134
	1798135
	1798136
	1798137
	1798138
	1798139
	1798140
	1798141
	1798142
	1798143
	1798144
	1798145
	1798146
	1798147
	1798148
	1798149
	1798150
	1798151
	1798152
	1798153
	1798154
	1798155
	1798156
	1798157
	1798158
	1798159
	1798160
	1798161
	1798162
	1798163
	1798164
	1798165
	1798166
	1798167
	1798168
	1798169
	1798170
	1798171
	1798172
	1798173
	1798174
	1798175
	1798176
	1798177
	1798178
	1798179
	1798180
	1798181
	1798182
	1798183
	1798184
	1798185
	1798186
	1798187
	1798188
	1798189
	1798190
	1798191
	1798192
	1798193
	1798194
	1798195
	1799164
	1799165
	1799166
	1799167
	1799168
	1799169
	1799170
	1799171
	1799172
	1799173
	1799174
	1799175
	1799176
	1799177
	1799178
	1799179
	1799180

	2
	01
	04
	05
	09
	13
	14



	ReqPay12c POCS Aug 2020
	Board Report
	1
	1796409
	1796410
	1796411
	1797270
	1797271
	1797272
	1797273
	1798196
	1798197
	1798198
	1798199
	1798200
	1798201
	1798202
	1798203
	1798204
	1799181
	1799182
	1799183
	1799184
	1799185

	2
	03




	17.4  CONSENT  Budget Updates DI 43.pdf
	Transfer of Budget Appropriations
	43
	2,020
	
	
	BR20-00237
	BR20-00238
	BR20-00239
	BR20-00240






	17.4  CONSENT  Budget Updates DI 44.pdf
	Transfer of Budget Appropriations
	44
	2,020
	
	
	BR20-00044
	BR20-00045






	ADP9C57.tmp
	REGULAR MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	Wednesday, September 9, 2020

	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER 2.  ROLL CALL 3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 4.  ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 5.  CLOSED SESSION
	6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
	8.  AGENDA MODIFICATION
	9. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
	10. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
	11.  RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE
	None
	12.  SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
	13.  ASSOCIATION REPORTS
	14.  BOARD POLICIES
	15.  DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS
	16.  ACTION ITEMS
	17.  CONSENT ITEMS
	18.   ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
	19.   DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
	20.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
	21.  RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (If Necessary)
	22.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	23.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA
	24.  ADJOURNMENT


	ADPD51C.tmp
	REGULAR MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	Wednesday, September 9, 2020

	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER 2.  ROLL CALL 3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 4.  ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 5.  CLOSED SESSION
	6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
	8.  AGENDA MODIFICATION
	9. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
	10. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
	11.  RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE
	None
	12.  SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
	13.  ASSOCIATION REPORTS
	14.  BOARD POLICIES
	15.  DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS
	16.  ACTION ITEMS
	17.  CONSENT ITEMS
	18.   ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
	19.   DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
	20.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
	21.  RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (If Necessary)
	22.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	23.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA
	24.  ADJOURNMENT


	ADP9E59.tmp
	Presented by:  Felicia Koha, CBO
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	18.1 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 8-12-2020.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	18.1 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 8-12-2020.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE




